
LOCAL GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS 
SUBCOMMITTEE 

Steve Crisafulli 
Speaker 

MEETING PACKET 

Tuesday,January19,2016 
12:30 p.m. 

Webster Hall (212 Knott) 

Debbie Mayfield 
Chair 



Steve Crisafulli 
Speaker 

The Florida House of Representatives 
Local Government Affairs Subcommittee 

Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday,January19,2016 
Webster Hall (212 Knott) 

12:30 p.m. - 3:30p.m. 

Debbie Mayfield 
Chair 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

IV. Welcome and Opening Remarks 

V. Consideration of the Following Bill(s): 

CS/HB 517 Licensure of Life Support Services by Health Quality Subcommittee, 
Renner, Campbell 

HB 937 Tierra Verde Fire Control & Rescue District, Pinellas County by Peters 

HB 945 Downtown Development Authority of the City of Fort Lauderdale, 
Broward County by DuBose 

HB 971 Community Development Districts by Sullivan 

HB 1039 Babcock Ranch Community Independent Special District, Charlotte 
and Lee Counties by Caldwell 

HB 1071 South Broward Hospital District, Broward County by Stark 

HB 1121 City of Fort Lauderdale, Broward County by Moraitis 

VI. Adjournment 

317 House Office Building, 402 South Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1 300 
(850) 717-4862 Fax : (850) 410-0129 





HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS 

BILL#: CS/HB 517 Licensure of Life Support Services 
SPONSOR(S): Health Quality Subcommittee; Renner 
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: 

REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR or 

BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF 

1) Health Quality Subcommittee 13 Y, 0 N, As Siples O'Callaghan 
cs 

2) Local Government Affairs Subcommittee Darden Miller C:1<1~ 
3) Health & Human Services Committee 

SUMMARY ANALYSIS 

The provision of emergency medical transportation services are governed by the Raymond H. Alexander, 
M.D. , Emergency Medical Transportation Services Act, found in part Ill of ch. 401, F.S. 

The Department of Health (DOH) is charged with licensing basic life support (BLS) service providers, 
advanced life support (ALS) service providers and air ambulances. All license applicants must meet the 
minimum standards regarding equipment, vehicles, personnel , services, and insurance established by the 
DOH. However, BLS and ALS service providers must also obtain a Certificate of Public Convenience and 
Necessity (COPCN) from the government of each county where the provider plans to operate. 

Pursuant to s. 401 .25, F.S., each county may adopt an ordinance establishing the standards for the issuance 
of a COPCN . Currently, a county must consider state guidelines, recommendations of local and regional 
trauma centers , and recommendations of municipal ities within its jurisdiction. The bill makes the adoption of 
such an ordinance mandatory and requires existing COPCN ord inances to be amended to comply with the 
bill 's provisions. The new or amended ordinance must include objective standards regarding the quality and 
cost of service, such as available equipment and trained personnel. The bill also requires the county 
commission to consider recommendations from fire control districts in establishing the standards for the 
COPCN . 

Currently, if a COPCN is denied or revoked , an applicant appeals the decision in accordance with an enacted 
ordinance, which may include appealing to the county commission that denied or revoked the application or to 
a court of competent jurisdiction. However, in counties without enacted ordinances, the appropriate forum to 
review such decision may be unclear to the applicant. The bill allows an applicant for a COPCN whose 
application is denied to seek review of the the county commission 's decision by writ of certiorari to the circuit 
court with jurisdiction over the county and the applicant. The bill provides that the applicant must be awarded 
the COPCN if the court record demonstrates that the applicant will provide service that is superior to the 
service provided by the current provider, as measured by the objective standards provided in the county 's 
enacted ordinance and state guidelines. 

The bill may have an indeterminate, negative fiscal impact on the state court system related to the review of 
denied COPCN applications in the circuit court having jurisdiction over the county and applicant. 

The bill may have an indeterminate, negative fiscal impact on those counties that have to defend denial of 
COPCN applications in circuit court. 

The bill provides an effective date of July 1, 2016. 

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives. 
STORAGE NAME: h0517b.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 12/15/2015 



FULL ANALYSIS 

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS 

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES: 

Present Situation 

Emergency Medical Services 

Part Ill of ch. 401, F.S., governs the provision of emergency medical transportation services in Florida 
and is titled the "Raymond H. Alexander, M.D. , Emergency Medical Transportation Services Act (Act) ."1 

The Act establishes the licensing and operational requirements for emergency medical services. 

Emergency Medical Services Advisory Council 

The Act creates the Emergency Medical Services Advisory Council (Council)2 to act as an advisory 
body to the emergency medical services program within the Department of Health (DOH).3 The 
Council's duties include: 

• Identifying and making recommendations to the DOH regarding the appropriateness of 
suggested changes to statutes and administrative rules ; 

• Acting as a clearinghouse for information specific to changes in the provision of medical 
services and trauma care; 

• Providing technical support to the DOH in the areas of emergency medical services and trauma 
systems design, required medical and rescue equipment, required drugs and dosages, medical 
treatment protocols and emergency medical services personnel education and training 
requirements ; 

• Providing a forum for discussing significant issues facing the emergency medical services and 
trauma care communities; 

• Providing a forum for planning the continued development of the state's emergency medical 
services system through the joint production of the emergency medical services state plan ; 

• Assisting the DOH in developing the emergency medical services quality management program; 
• Assisting the DOH in setting program priorities; and 
• Providing feedback to the DOH on the administration and performance of the emergency 

medical services program.4 

Emergency Medical Transportation Services 

Basic life support (BLS) service refers to any emergency medical service that uses only basic life 
support techniques.5 BLS includes basic non-invasive interventions to reduce morbidity and mortality 
associated with out-of-hospital medical and traumatic emergencies.6 The services provided may 
include stabilization and maintenance of airway and breathing, pharmacological interventions, trauma 
care, and transportation to an appropriate medical facility. 7 

1 Section 401.2101 , F.S. 
2 Section 401 .245{2), F.S. The Council consists of 15 members appointed by the State Surgeon General , except that state agency 
representatives are appointed by the respective agency heads. Members are typically appointed for four year terms, with the chair 
being designated by the State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health . Additional members include six ex officio representatives 
appointed by various other state agency heads. 
3 Section 401 .245{1), F.S. 
4 /d . 
5 Section 401 .23(8), F.S . 
6 Section 401 .23(7), F.S., and U.S. Department of Transportation, National Highway Safety Administration , National EMS Scope of 
Practice Mode/23-24 , available at www.nhtsa .gov/people/injurv/ems/pub/emtbnsc.pdf (last visited Nov. 21 , 2015). 
7 /d . 
STORAGE NAME: h0517b.LGAS.DOCX PAGE : 2 
DATE: 12/15/2015 



Advanced life support (ALS) service refers to any emergency medical or non-transport service that 
uses advanced life support techniques.8 ALS includes the assessment or treatment of a person by a 
qualified individual, such as a paramedic, who is trained in the use of techniques such as the 
administration of drugs or intravenous fluid, endotracheal intubation, telemetry, cardiac monitoring, and 
cardiac defibrillation.9 

Air ambulance service refers to a licensed publicly or privately owned service that operates air 
ambulances to transport persons requiring or likely to require medical attention during transport. 10 An 
air ambulance is a fixed-wing or rotary-wing aircraft used for, or intended to be used for, the air 
transportation of sick or injured persons that require or are likely to require medical attention during 
transport.11 

Licensure 

Current law requires providers of basic or advanced life support transportation services to be licensed 
in their respective fields. 12 Air ambulances must also be licensed by the DOH. 13 The provider must 
submit an application to the DOH and must include documentation that the applicant meets the 
requirements for a BLS service or an ALS service .14 There are currently 233 licensed ALS providers, 8 
licensed BLS providers, and 33 licensed air ambulance providers in Florida .15 

To be licensed as a BLS orALS service, an applicant must comply with the following requirements: 

• The ambulances, equipment, vehicles, personnel, communications systems, staffing patterns, 
and services of the applicant meet the statutory requirement and administrative rules for either a 
BLS service or an ALS service, whichever is applicable; 

• Have adequate insurance coverage or certificate of self-insurance for claims arising out of injury 
to or death of persons and damage to the property of others resulting from any cause for which 
the owner of such business or service would be liable; and 

• A Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity from each county in which the applicant will 
operate .16 

In addition to the general licensure requirement, the DOH by rule provides a list of the equipment and 
supplies with which each BLS vehicle must be equipped and maintained and the equipment and 
medication with which each ALS vehicle must be equipped and maintained. 17 Each BLS and ALS 
service must employ or contract with a medical director who is a licensed physician to oversee the 
services provided.18 

To be licensed as an air ambulance service, an applicant must: 

• Submit an application to the DOH with the appropriate fee; 
• Specify the location of all required medical equipment and provide documentation that all such 

equipment is available and in good working order; 

8 Section 401.23(2), F.S . 
9 Section 401.23(1 ), F.S. 
10 Section 401 .23(4), F.S . 
11 Section 401.23(3), F.S . 
12 Section 401.25(1), F.S. 
13 Section 401.251, F.S. 
14 /d. 
15 E-mail communication with staff of the Department of Health (Nov. 20, 2015) (on file with the Health Quality Subcommittee). 
16 Section 401.25(2), F.S. 
17 Rule 64J-1 .002(4) F.A.C. (Basic Life Support Service License- Ground); Rule 64J-1.003(7), F.A.C. (Advanced Life Support Service 
License- Ground) .. 
18 Rule 64J-1.004, F.A.C. The medical director must also be board certified , active in a broad-based clinical medical specialty with 
experience in prehospital care , and hold a certificate in Advanced Cardiac Life Support or its equivalent. 
STORAGE NAME: h0517b.LGAS.DOCX PAGE: 3 
DATE : 12/15/2015 



• Provide documentation that all aircraft and crew members meet applicable Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) regulations; 

• Provide proof of adequate insurance coverage or certificate of self-insurance for claims arising 
out of injury to or death of persons and damage to the property of others resulting from any 
cause for which the owner of such business or service would be liable; 

• Specify whether the service uses either fixed-winged or rotary-winged aircraft, or both; and 
• Provide evidence the service has employed or contracted with a medical director, if the service 

provides interhospital air transport, air transport from one hospital to another facility, air 
transport from hospital to home, or other similar air transport. 19 

The DOH has provided a list of structural, equipment, and supply requirements that air ambulances 
must meet for licensure.20 An air ambulance service must also have a safety committee and emergency 
protocols to address, at minimum, emergency procedures when the aircraft is overdue, when radio 
communications cannot be established, or when aircraft location cannot be verified. 21 

Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 

A Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity (COPCN) is a written statement, issued by the 
governing board of a county, granting permission for an emergency medical service provider to provide 
authorized services for the benefit of the population of that county or the benefit of the population of 
some geographic area of that county. 22 At the time of licensure, each provider of life support 
transportation services must have a COPCN from the county in which the provider intends to operate.23 

Section 401 .25(6), F.S., authorizes each county to adopt an ordinance establishing standards for 
issuing a COPCN. 

Thirty-eight of Florida's sixty-seven counties have adopted ordinances to establish the procedure and 
set the standards for obtaining a COPCN.24 These ordinances generally provide instructions on the 
application process, criteria on which the application may be judged, and procedures for appealing a 
denial, suspension, or revocation of a COPCN with the county commission or a court of competent 
jurisdiction. 

Effect of Proposed Changes 

Each county has the authority to adopt an ordinance providing standards for a COPCN, which takes 
into account state guidelines, recommendations of local and regional trauma centers, and 
recommendations of municipalities within its jurisdiction . The bill requires each county to adopt such an 
ordinance or amend an existing ordinance to comply with the bill 's provisions. The new or amended 
ordinance must include objective standards that address the quality and cost of service, such as 
available equipment and trained personnel. The bill also requires the county commissions to consider 
recommendations from fire control districts in establishing the standards for the COPCN. 

Currently, if a COPCN is denied or revoked, there is no uniform appeal process and an applicant must 
adhere to the appeal process provided in an ordinance, if the county has enacted such an ordinance. 
This may include appealing the decision to the county commission that denied or revoked the 
application or to a court of competent jurisdiction. The bill allows an applicant for a COPCN whose 
application is denied to appeal the decision by writ of certiorari to the circuit court with jurisdiction over 

19 Section 401 .251 , F.S . 
20 Rule 64J-1 .005, F.A.C. 
21 /d . 
22 Rule 64J-1 .001(4), F.A.C. 
23 Section 401.25(2)(d), F.S . 
24 See, e.g. Volusia County Code of Ordinances Chapter 46 (Emergency Services); St. Johns County Ordinance No. 2012-20. County 
ordinances generally are available from Municode (https://www.municode.com/librarv/fl). Some counties have adopted policies or 
informal procedures to award COPCNs, but have not enacted an ordinance. 
STORAGE NAME: h0517b.LGAS.DOCX PAGE: 4 
DATE : 12/15/2015 



the county and the applicant to review the county commission 's decision.25 The bill provides that the 
applicant must be awarded the COPCN if the court record demonstrates that the applicant will provide 
service that is superior to the current provider, as measured by the standards set forth in the enacted 
ordinance in the applicant's jurisdiction and applicable state guidelines. 

The bill provides an effective date of July 1, 2016. 

B. SECTION DIRECTORY: 

Section 1. Amends s. 401.25, F.S., relating to licensure as a basic life support or an advanced life 
support service. 

Section 2. Provides an effective date of July 1, 2016. 

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT 

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT: 

1. Revenues: 

The state court system may see an indeterminate, positive fiscal impact from the collection of filing 
fees associated with providers filing writs of certiorari to review the decision of a county commission 
to deny an application for a COPCN. 

2. Expenditures: 

The state court system may see an indeterminate, negative fiscal impact from ALS , BLS, or air 
ambulance providers filing writs of certiorari to review the decision of a county commission to deny 
an application for a COPCN. 

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS: 

1. Revenues: 

None. 

2. Expenditures: 

A county that has not enacted an ordinance or needs to amend an existing ordinance establishing 
standards for issuing a COPCN, as required by the bill, may incur expenses or use resources to 
enact or amend an ordinance to comply with the bill's provisions. 

To the extent that a county commission must defend its decision to deny the award of a COPCN, a 
county may accrue legal fees associated with such a legal action. 

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR: 

None. 

D. FISCAL COMMENTS: 

None. 

25 A writ of certiorari may be used to commence a review of a quasi-judicial decision of any administrative body, agency, board , or 
commission not subject to the Administrative Procedures Act, unless judicial review by appeal is provided by general law. Fla. R. App. 
P. 9.190. See a/so Fla. R. App. P. 9.100(c). 
STORAGE NAME: h0517b.LGAS.DOCX PAGE: 5 
DATE : 12/15/2015 



Ill. COMMENTS 

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES: 

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision: 

Not Applicable. The bill does not appear to require counties or municipalities to spend funds or take 
action requiring the expenditure of funds; reduce the authority that counties or municipalities have to 
raise revenues in the aggregate; or reduce the percentage of state tax shared with counties or 
municipalities. 

2. Other: 

None. 

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY: 

The bill does not provide authority or require implementation by administrative agency rulemaking . 

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS: 

A state or any of its political subdivisions is preempted from enacting or enforcing any law or regulation 
that has the force or effect of law related to price, route, or service of any air carrier providing air 
transportation subject to the provisions of the Airline Deregulation Act. 26 The General Counsel of the 
U.S. Department of Transportation has opined that the Florida requirement for air ambulances to obtain 
a COPCN was preempted by the Airline Deregulation Act of 1978, because it effectively regulates the 
routes a carrier may fly by limiting them to the counties for which they have obtained a COPCN .27 

IV. AMENDMENTS/ COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES 

On December 1, 2015, the Health Quality Subcommittee adopted an amendment that did the following : 

• Requires the standards for certificates of public convenience and necessity (COPCN) for basic or 
advanced life support services and air ambulance services to be objective and address the quality 
and cost of services. 

• Provides that a court 's review of a denial of a COPCN is to be based on the standards set forth in 
the enacted ordinance in the appellant's jurisdiction and state guidelines. 

The bill was reported favorably as a committee substitute. This analysis is drafted to the committee 
substitute. 

26 49 U.S.C. s. 41713(b). 
27 Letter from D.J. Gribbin, General Counsel , U.S. Department of Transportation , to Michael Grief, Assistant General Counsel , Florida 
Department of Health (Oct. 10, 2007) (on file with the Health Quality Subcommittee). 
STORAGE NAME: h0517b.LGAS.DOCX PAGE : 6 
DATE: 12/15/2015 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

CS/HB 51 7 2016 

1 A bill to be entitled 

2 An act relating to licensure of l ife support services ; 

3 amending s . 401 . 25, F . S . ; requiring county gove r ning 

4 bodies to adopt or ame nd ordinances that provide 

5 standards for certificates of public convenience and 

6 necessity for l ife support and air ambulance services; 

7 providing for the filing of an appeal by an applicant 

8 for a certificate of public convenience and necessity 

9 under certain circumstances; provid i ng an effective 

10 date. 

11 

12 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida : 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Section 1. Subsection (6) of section 401 . 25 , Florida 

Statutes , is amended to read: 

40 1. 25 Licensure as a basic life support or an advanced 

life support servi ce .-

(6) The govern i ng body of each county shall may adopt or 

amend an ordinance o r d inanees that provides prov i de reasonable 

standards for certificates of public convenience and necessity 

for basic or advanced life support services and air ambulance 

22 services , including , but not l i mited to, objective standards 

23 that address the quality and cost of service , such as available 

24 equipment and trained personnel. In developing standards for 

25 certificates of public convenience and necessity , the governing 

26 body of each county must consider state guidelines , 

Page 1 of 2 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0517 -01 -c1 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

CS/HB 517 2016 

27 recommendations of the local or regional trauma agency c r eated 

28 under chapter 39 5 , and the re commendations of municipalities and 

29 fire control districts within its jurisdiction . An applicant 

30 whose appli c ati on f or a certificate o f public convenience and 

31 necessity to provide basic or advanced life support services or 

32 air ambulanc e services p ursuant to this chapter is denied may 

33 appea l the decision by certiorari to the circuit court with 

34 jurisdiction over t h e count y and the applicant . An appel l an t 

35 shal l be awarded the requested ce rtificate if the re cord on 

36 appeal demonstrates that the applicant will provide a service 

37 that i s superi o r to the service provided by the current 

38 provider , as measured by the standards se t fort h in the 

39 o rdinance enacted in the applicant ' s jurisdiction and applicable 

40 state guidelines . 

41 Section 2. This act shall take effect Ju ly 1 , 2016 . 

Page 2 of 2 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underl ined are additions. 

hb0517 -01-c1 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No . 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. CS/HB 517 (2016) 

COMMITT EE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/ N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECTI ON 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WITHDRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill : Local Government Affairs 

2 Subcommittee 

3 Representative Renner offered the following: 

4 

5 Amendment (with title amendment) 

6 Remove everything after the enacting clause and insert: 

7 Section 1 . Section 401.25 , Florida Statutes , is amended to 

8 read: 

9 401 . 25 Licensure as a basic life support or an advanced 

10 life support service ; ai r ambulance services . -

11 (1) Every person, firm, corporation , association , or 

12 governmental entity owning or acting as agent for the owner of 

13 any business or service whi ch furnishes , operates , conducts , 

14 maintains , advertises , engages in , proposes to engage in , or 

15 professes to engage in the business or service of providing 

16 prehospital or interfacility advanced life support services or 

17 basic life support transportation services must be licensed as a 

578247 - HB 517 Amendment 1 . docx 

Published On : 1 /15/2016 5:43 : 43 PM 

Page 1 of 6 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No . 1 

COMMI TTEE /SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. CS/HB 517 (2016) 

18 basic li fe support service or an advanced life support service , 

19 whichever is applicable , before offering such service to the 

20 public . The application for such li cense must be submitted to 

21 the department o n forms provided for this purpose . The 

22 application must include documentation that the applicant meets 

23 the appropriate requirements for a basic life support service or 

24 an advanced life suppor t servi ce , whichever is applicable , as 

25 specified by rule o f the department. 

26 (2) The department shall issue a license for operation to 

27 any applicant who complies with the f ol lowing requirements: 

28 (a) The applicant has pa i d the fees required by s . 401 . 34 . 

29 (b) The ambulances , equipment , vehicles , personnel , 

30 commun i cations systems , staffing patterns , and services of the 

31 appl i cant meet the requirements of this part , including the 

32 appropriate rul es for either a basic life support service or an 

33 advanced life support service , whichever is applicable . 

34 (c) The applicant has furnish ed evidence of adequat e 

35 insurance coverage for claims arising out of injury to o r death 

36 of pers ons and damage to the property of others resulting fr om 

37 any cause for which the owner of such business o r service would 

38 be liable . The applicant must provide insurance in s uch sums and 

39 under suc h terms as required by the department. In lieu of such 

40 insurance , the applicant ma y furnish a certificate of self -

41 insurance evidencing that the applicant has established an 

42 adequate self- insurance plan to cover such risks and tha t the 

578247 - HB 517 Amendment 1 . docx 

Published On : 1 /15/2016 5 : 43:43 PM 

Page 2 of 6 



43 

44 

45 

46 

47 

48 

49 

50 

51 

52 

53 

54 

55 

56 

57 

58 

59 

60 

61 

62 

63 

64 

65 

66 

67 

68 

l\llllllllllllllllllllllll\1 

Amendment No. 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. CS/HB 517 (20 1 6) 

plan has been approved by the Office of Insurance Regula tion of 

the Financia l Services Commission. 

(d ) The applicant has obtained a certificate of public 

conven i ence and necessity from each county in which the 

appli c ant will operate . In issuing the certificate of public 

conven ience and necessi ty, the govern ing body o f each county 

shall consider the recommendations of municipalities within its 

jurisdiction. 

(3) The department may suspend or revoke a license at any 

time if it determines that the licensee has failed to maintain 

compliance with the requirements prescribed for operating a 

basic or advanced life support service. 

(4) Each license issued in accordance with this part will 

expire automatically 2 years after the date of issuance. 

(5) The requirements for renewal of any license issued 

under this part are the same as the requirements for original 

licens ure that are in effect at the time of renewal . 

( 6) (a) By January 1, 2 017 , the governing body of each 

county that is not a fiscally constrained county as defined by 

s. 218 . 67(1) shall may adopt an o rdinance or amend an existing 

ordinance to ordinances that provide reasonable , objective 

standards for certificates of public convenience and necessity 

for basic or advanced life support services and air ambulance 

services . In develop ing the standards for certificates of public 

convenience and necessity, the governing body of each county 

must consider state guidelines , recommendations of the local or 

578247 - HB 517 Amendment l.docx 

Published On : 1 /15/2016 5:43:43 PM 

Page 3 of 6 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No . 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No . CS/HB 517 (2016) 

69 regiona l trauma agency created under chapter 395 , and the 

70 recommendations of the mun i cipalities within its jurisdiction~ 

71 and recommendations of the independent special districts that 

72 provide fire rescue services within its jurisdiction. The 

73 ordinance shall provide a quasi - judic ial process , or some other 

74 type of evidentiary process , for approval or denial of an 

75 application for a certif i cate . The ordinance shall also provide 

76 that applicants maintaining fire rescue infrastructure and 

77 providing first response in the county as of January 1, 2016 , 

78 may appeal the county ' s decision to the circuit court with 

79 jurisdiction over the county . A county that , as of January 1 , 

80 2016 , has adopted an ordinance that complies with this 

81 subsect i on is not required to further amend the ordinance . 

82 (b) The governing body of a county defined as fisca ll y 

83 constrained pursuant to s . 218.67(1) may adopt an o rdinance to 

84 provide reasonable , objective standards for certificates of 

85 public convenience and necessity for basic or advanced life 

86 support services. In developing the standards , the governing 

87 body of each county must cons i der state guidelines , 

88 re commendati on s of the local or regiona l trauma agency c reated 

89 under chapter 395 , recommendati ons of the municipalities wi thin 

90 its jurisdiction , and recommendations of the independent special 

91 districts that provide fire rescue serv ices within its 

92 jurisdiction . 

93 (c) The govern i ng body o f each county may adopt an 

94 ordinance to provide reasonable , ob jective standards for 

57 8247 - HB 517 Amendment 1.docx 

Published On : 1/15 /20 16 5:43 : 43 PM 

Page 4 of 6 



11111111111111111111111 11111 

Amendment No . 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No . CS/HB 517 (2016) 

95 ce r tif i cates of public convenience and necessity for air 

96 ambulance services . I n deve l oping the standards , the gove r ning 

97 body of each county must consider state guidelines , 

98 recommendations of the local or regional trauma agency created 

99 under chapter 395 , recommendations of the municipalities within 

100 its jurisdiction , and recommendations of t he independent special 

101 distr i cts that provide fi re rescue services within its 

102 j urisdiction . 

103 (7) (a) Each permitted basic life support ambulance not 

104 specifically exempted from this part , when transporting a person 

105 who is sick , injured , wounded , incapacitated , or helpless , must 

106 be occupied by at least t wo persons : one patient attendant who 

107 is a c ertified emergency medical technic i an , certified 

108 paramedic , or licensed phys i cian ; and one ambulance driver who 

109 meets the requirements of s . 401 . 281. This paragraph does not 

110 apply to interfaci l ity transfers governed by s . 401.252(1) . 

111 (b) Each permitted advanced life support ambulance not 

112 specifically exempted from this part , when t ransporting a person 

113 who is s i c k, i nj ured , wounded , incapac i tated , or help l ess , must 

114 be occupied by at least two persons : one who is a certified 

115 paramedic or licensed physician ; and one who is a certified 

116 emergency medical technician , certified paramedic , or licensed 

117 physician who also meets the requirements of s. 401 . 281 for 

118 drivers . The person with t he highest medical certifications 

119 shal l be i n charge of patient care . This paragraph does no t 

120 apply to interfac i lity transfers governed by s . 401 . 252( 1 ) . 

578247 - HB 517 Amendment 1 . docx 

Published On : 1/15/2016 5 : 43 : 43 PM 

Page 5 of 6 



121 

122 

123 

124 

125 

126 

127 

128 

129 

130 

131 

132 

133 

134 

135 

136 

137 

138 

139 

140 

141 

142 

1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No . 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No . CS/HB 517 (2016) 

Section 2 . This act shall take effect July 1 , 2016 . 

T I T L E A M E N D M E N T 

Remove everything before the enacting clause and insert: 

A bill to be entitled 

An act relating to certificates of public convenience 

and necessity for life support or air ambulance 

services ; amending s. 401.25, F . S.; requiring , rather 

than authorizing , county governing boards to adopt 

ordinances or amend existing ordinances that provide 

standards for the issuance of certificates of public 

convenience and necessity for basic or advanced life 

support services ; including the recommendations of 

specified districts in the development of such 

standards; requiring counties to adopt a process for 

review of applications ; providing an appeal process; 

authorizing county governing boards to adopt 

ordinances that provide standards for the issuance of 

certificates of public convenience and necessity for 

air ambulance services ; specifying considerations for 

such standards; providing an effective date. 

578247 - HB 517 Amendment 1.docx 

Published On : 1/15/2016 5 : 43 : 43 PM 

Page 6 of 6 





... 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES LOCAL BILL STAFF ANALYSIS 

BILL#: HB 937 Tierra Verde Fire Control & Rescue District, Pinellas County 
SPONSOR(S): Peters 
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: 

REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST 

1) Local Government Affairs Subcommittee 

2) Finance & Tax Committee 

3) Local & Federal Affairs Committee 

SUMMARY ANALYSIS 

STAFF DIRECTOR or 
BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF 

Miller 

Independent special fire control districts are a type of independent specia l district created by the Legislature for 
the purpose of providing fire suppression and related activities within the territorial jurisdiction of the district. 
Independent fire control districts are governed by both ch.189, F.S. , the "Uniform Special District Accountability 
Act ," and ch . 191 , F.S ., the "Independent Special Fire Control District Act. " 

The bill creates the Tierra Verde Fire Control and Rescue District, an independent special fire control district in 
Pinellas County. The bill provides all necessary elements for the charter of the new district, including powers, 
financing, and memberships and terms for commissioners. 

The bill provides for a referendum to be held at the next general election following the certification of a petition 
of ten percent of the electors residing in the district, to be held no later than December 31, 2031 , except that 
sections 2 and 3 of the bill shall take effect upon becoming law. 

According to House Rule 5.5(b), a local bill providing an exception to general law may not be placed on 
the Special Order Calendar for expedited consideration. The provisions of House Rule 5.5(b) may apply 
to this bill. 

Article Ill, s. 11 (a)(21), of the State Constitution prohibits any special law pertaining to any subject 
when prohibited by general law passed by 3/5 vote of the membership of the House and of the Senate. 
Because general law requires the local government in the jurisdiction of which an independent special 
district is being created to state its consent or that the creation complies with local planning, and 
because Pinellas County has not provided such a statement, the 3/5 vote requirement may be 
implicated. 

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives. 
STORAGE NAME: h0937.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/13/2016 



FULL ANALYSIS 

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS 

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES: 

Present Situation 

Independent Special Fire Control Districts 

An independent special fire control district is a type of independent special distrid created by the 
Legislature for the purpose of providing fire suppression and related activities within the territorial 
jurisdiction of the district. 2 Chapter 191 , F .S., the "Independent Special Fire Control District Act," is 
intended to provide standards, direction, and procedures for greater uniformity in the operation and 
governance of these districts, including financing authority, fiscally-responsible service delivery, and 
election of members to the governing boards for greater public accountability. 3 Chapter 191 controls 
over more specific provisions in any special act or general law of local application creating an 
independent fire control district's charter.4 The statute requires every independent fire control district be 
governed by a five-member board5 and provides for: 

• General powers;6 

• Special powers; 7 

• Authority and procedures for the assessment and collection of ad valorem taxes;8 

• Authority and procedures for the imposition, levy, and collection of non-ad valorem 
assessments, charges, and fees; 9 and 

• Issuance of district bonds and evidences of debt. 10 

As a type of independent special district, 11 independent special fire control districts are also subject to 
applicable provisions of ch . 189, F.S., the "Uniform Special District Accountability Act." 12 That Act 
prohibits special laws or general laws of local application that: 13 

1 A "special district" is a local government unit of "special purpose, as opposed to genera l purpose, operat[ ed] within a limited 
boundary and created by genera l law, special act, local ordinance, or by rule of the Governor and Cabinet." S. 189.0 12(6), F.S . An 
" independent special district" is any special district that is not a "dependent specia l district," which is defined as a special district in 
which: the membership of the governing body is identical to the governing body of a single county or municipality, all members of the 
governing body are appointed by the governing body of a single county or municipality, members of the special district ' s governing 
body are removable at will during their unexpired terms by the governing body of a single county or municipality, or the district ' s 
budget is subject to the approval of the governing body of a single county or municipality. S. 189.012(3) , F.S. 
2 Section 191.003(5), F.S. 
3 Section 191.002, F.S. 
4 Section 191 .004, F .S. Provisions in other laws pertaining to district boundaries or geographical sub-districts for electing members to 
the governing board are excepted from this section. Jd. 
5 Section 191.005(1 )(a) , F.S. A fire control district may continue to be governed by a three-member board if authorized by special act 
adopted in or after 1997. 
6 Section 191 .006, F. S. (such as the power to sue and be sued in the name of the district, the power to contract, and the power of 
eminent domain) . 
7 Section 191.008, F.S. 
8 Section 191.006(14); 191.009(1), F.S. 
9 Section 191.006(11), (15), 191.009(2)- (4), 191.011 , F.S. 
10 Section 191.012, F.S. 
11 Section 191.0 14(1 ), F.S. , providing that new districts are created by the Legislature pursuant to s. 189.031 , F.S. 
12 Section 189.031, F.S . 
13 Article lll , s. 11 (a)(2 1 ), Fla. Const. This paragraph prohibits any special law or general law of local application on a subject if such 
prohibition is passed as a general law approved by three-fifths vote of the membership of each house. A general law passed in this 
manner may be amended or repealed by " like vote." The "Uniform Special District Accountabi lity Act" (ch. 89-169, s. 67, Laws of 
Fla.) was originally passed by a three-fifths majority in each the House and the Senate. 
STORAGE NAME: h0937.LGAS.DOCX PAGE: 2 
DATE: 1/13/2016 



• Create special districts which do not conform with the minimum requirements for district 
charters under s. 189.031(3), F.S.;14 

• Exempt district elections from the requirements of s. 189.04, F.S.; 15 

• Exempt a district from the requirements for bond referenda under s. 189.042, F.S.; 16 

• Exempt a district from the requirements for reporting, notice, or public meetings under ss. 
189.015, 189.016, 189.051, or 189.08, F.S.;17 

• Create a district for which a statement documenting the following is not submitted to the 
Legislature: 
).- The purpose of the proposed district; 
).- The authority of the proposed district; 
).- An explanation of why the district is the best alternative; and 
).- A resolution or official statement from the local general-government jurisdiction where the 

proposed district will be located stating that the proposed district is consistent with approved 
local government plans and the local government does not object to creation of the district. 18 

An independent special district, as an entity created by the Legislature, only possesses the powers 
granted by the authorizing law. 19 Therefore, any boundary expansion must be approved by the 
Legislature.20 A special district may not levy ad valorem taxes without approval by the effected voters in 
a referendum .21 

Effect of Proposed Changes 

The bill creates the Tierra Verde Fire Control and Rescue District (District), an independent special 
district in Pinellas County and provides a charter for the district. The charter provides: 

• Charter Section 1 provides that the bill may be cited as the "Tierra Verde Fire Control and 
Rescue District Act." 

• Charter Section 2 provides the boundaries for the District. 
• Charter Section 3 states the purpose of the District, including: 

o Managing the operations and governance of the District 
o Providing uniformity between the District and other independent special fire control 

districts 
o Providing the District with financing authority without disrupting previously authorized 

revenue sources 
o Improving communication and coordination between the District and other local 

governments to provide service delivery in a cost-effective manner. 
o Ensuring public accountability 

• Charter Section 4 provides the structure of the board of the District. The District would be 
governed by a board of five commissioners, who elect a chair, vice chair, secretary, and 
treasurer from among their ranks. Commissioners are required to execute a performance bond, 
as required by statute.22 Commissioners may approve, by a "majority plus one vote" (four of five 
members), a salary of up to $500 a month for themselves. The compensation of the treasurer 
may be a different amount than the other board members, but is still subject to the $500 cap. 
Commissioners are entitled to travel and per diem expenses as provided by general law. 

14 Section 189.03 1(2)(a), F.S. 
15 Section 189.03 1(2)(b), F.S. 
16 Section 189.03 1(2)(c) , F.S. 
17 Section 189.03 1(2)(d), F.S . 
18 Section 189 .03 1(2)(e) , F.S. 
19 Bd. o.fComm 'rs of Jupiter Inlet Dist. v. Th ibadeau, 956 So. 2d 529 , 53 1 (Fla. 4th DCA 2007). 
20 Section 19 1.0 14(2), F.S. ("The territorial boundaries of[ an independent special fi re contro l] distri ct may be modifi ed, extended, or 
enlarged with the approval or rati fication of the Legislature."). 
21 Article VII, s. 9(b ), Fla. Const. 
22 Section 191.005(6), F.S. 
STORAGE NAME: h0937.LGAS.DOCX PAGE : 3 
DATE: 1/13/201 6 



Commissioners must comply with ethics requirements established by ch. 112, F.S., or as 
otherwise provided by law or regulation . 

• Charter Section 5 provides that the District's elections be held in accordance with ch . 191 , F.S. 
As each member of the board must be a qualified elector,23 and the statute defines "elector" as 
a person who resides in the district,24 each member of the board must be a resident of the 
district at the time of qualifying and throughout their tenure. Commissioners are elected at-large 
on a nonpartisan basis. If any commissioner's seat becomes vacant, the board may appoint a 
qualified person to serve in the interim until the next general election. Commissioners may be 
removed for unexcused absences. This section of the charter also provides for an official record 
of the district's meetings, resolutions, and other proceedings and that this official record will be 
open to the public in compliance with the public records laws. 

• Charter Section 6 authorizes the board to adopt rules and regulations necessary for the 
prevention of fires or for completing fire control and rescue work. Rules and regulations must be 
signed by the president and secretary of the District and made available on the District's 
website and in at least three public places for up to ten days before taking effect. 

• Charter Section 7 states that District funds may only be used to purchase firefighting and 
rescue equipment and facilities and for other services as necessary to provide those services. 
The District may exercise all powers set out in chs. 189 and 191, F.S. for these purposes. 

• Charter Section 8 states the financing mechanisms for the district. The board may levy ad 
valorem taxes up to two mills, non-ad valorem assessments, and impact fees for capital 
improvements. The District must adopt an annual budget and has the authority to issue bonds 
in accordance with s. 191.012, F.S. 

• Charter Section 9 states that the District will comply with the planning requirements of Part VIII 
of Ch. 189, F.S. 

• Charter Section 10 requires any modification, extension, or enlargement of the District's 
boundaries to the approved or ratified by the Legislature. 

• Charter Section 11 states that the charter of the District may only be amended by special act of 
the Legislature. 

• Charter Section 12 requires the District to enter into an agreement with the Pinellas County 
Emergency Medical Services Authority to provide emergency medical services and first 
responder services, with a requirement for cost recovery for the district for first responder 
services in Fort DeSoto Park. 

• Charter Section 13 requires the District to enter into the Automatic Aid/Closest Unit Response 
Agreement dated October 16, 1990, within one year after the act takes effect. 

• Charter Section 14 provides for severability of the act. 

The bill provides that the charter shall take effect upon approval by a majority of qualified electors 
voting in a referendum held on or before December 30, 2031. This referendum can only be called upon 
the submission of a petition signed by 1 0 percent of the District's electors. This petition must be 
certified by the Pinellas County Supervisor of Elections at no cost to the county or the state. The Board 
of County Commissioners of Pinellas County is required to conduct the referendum at the next general 
election following certification. 

Compliance with s. 189.031(2), F.S. 

A proposed charter must meet the requirements of 189.031 (2), F.S. The following chart compares the 
District charter to the statutory requirement: 

23 Section 191.005(2), F.S. A member who ceases to be a qualified elector is automatically removed from office by this statute. 
24 Section 191.003(3), F.S. : "Elector" means a person who is a resident of the district and is qualified to vote in a general election 
within the local general-purpose govenunent jurisdiction in which the district is located. 
STORAGE NAME: h0937.LGAS.DOCX PAGE : 4 
DATE: 1/13/2016 



Statutory 
Specific Statute 

Mandate 

189.031{3)(a) 

189.031{3 )(b) 

189.031{2)(a) 189.031(3)(c) 

189.031(3)(d) 

189.031(3)(e) 

189.031(3)(f) 

189.031{3 )(g) 

189.031{3)(h) 

STORAGE NAME: h0937.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/13/2016 

Requirement 

Charter must include the 
minimum requirements of 
s. 189.031(3), F.S. 

Purpose of district 

Powers/functions/duties of 
district re: 

• Ad valorem taxation 

• Issuing bonds 

• Other revenue-
raising capabilities 

• Budget preparation 

• Budget approval 

• Liens 

• Foreclosure of liens 

• Use of tax deeds, tax 
certificates for non-
ad valorem 
assessments 

• Contracting 

Method of establishing 
district 

Method of amending 
charter 

Governing board of district : 

• Membership 

• Organization 

• If elected on basis of 
1 acre = 1 vote, 
requires 5 member 
board; 3 member 
quorum. 

Maximum compensation of 
board members 

Administrative duties of 
board 

Applicable requirements 
for : 

• Financial disclosure 

• Noticing 

• Reporting 

Compliance with Mandate 

Bill/Charter Section or 
Yes/No 

Statement to Legislature 

y 

y Charters. 3 

Charters. 7(1): "district has, and 
the board may exercise, all the 
powers and duties set forth in 

y chapters 189 and 191, Florida 
Statutes." 

• Charters. 8(1) 

• Budget: Charters. 8(3) 

• s. 191.003(5), F.S . 
y • Special Act: Bill s. 1 

• Referendum: Bill ss. 2 & 3 

y Charters. 11 

• Membership : Charter ss . 
4{1), 5(1), & 5(2) y 

• Organization: Charter ss . 
4(1) & 5(5) 

y Charters. 4(3) 

y Charter ss. 7(1) & 7(2) 

y Charter ss. 4(4), 5(9), & 5{10} 

PAGE : 5 



189.031(3 )(i) 

189.031(3 )(j) 

189.031(3 )(k) 

189.031(2)(a) 

189.031(3)(1) 

189.031(3)(m) 

189.031(3)(n) 

189.031(3)(o) 

189.031(2)(b) 189.04 

189.031(2)(c) 189.042 

189.015 
189.016 

189.031(2)(d) 
189.051 
189.08 

189.031(2)(e)l. 

189.031(2)(e)2. 

189.031(2)(e)3. 

189.031(2)(e) 

189.031(2)(e)4. 

STORAGE NAME: h0937. LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/13/2016 

If district is authorized to 
issue bonds, procedures & 
requirements for issuing 

• Procedures to 
conduct any district 
election/referenda 

• Qualifications of 
district elector 

District financing methods 

If district authorized to levy 
ad valorem taxes- millage 

rate 

Method to collect non-ad 

valorem assessments, fees, 
charges 

Planning requirements 

Geographic boundary limits 
of district 

District elections must 
comply with s. 189.04, F.S. 

District bond referenda 
must comply with s. 

189.042, F.S. 

District must comply with 
reporting, notice, public 
meetings requirements 

Statement to Legislature 
documenting: 

Purpose of proposed 
district 

Authority of proposed 
district 

Explanation why dist. is 
best alt. 

Resolution/ offici a I 
statement of govern ing 

body/administrator of local 
jurisdiction within which 
proposed district is located: 

• Creation of district is 
consistent with 

approved loca l plans 
of local gov' t 

• No objection to 

creation 

y Charters. 8(1) 

y Charters. 5(1) 

y Charters. 8(1) 

Bill s. 2; Charters 8(2). 
y Maximum millage rate would be 

2.0 mills. 

y Charter ss. 8(3) & 8(4) 

y Charter ss . 7(1) & 7(2); s. 

191.006, F.S. 

y Charters. 2 

y Charters. 5(1) 

Charters. 8(1}, incorporating ss. 
y 189.051, 191.012, F.S. 

y Charter ss. 4(4), 5(9), & 5(10) 

N 

y Charters. 3 

y Charter ss . 4 & 7 

y Local Bill Certification 

Pinellas County has not passed a 
resolution or made an official 

N 
statement expressing support 
for the creation of the district. 

PAGE: 6 



The bill provides all terms and conditions required for the creation and chartering of an independent 
special district.25 However, there is no resolution or other official statement from the Board of 
Commissioners of Pinellas County stating either that the board has no objection to the creation of the 
District or that the creation of the District is consistent with the county's comprehensive plan . Thus, the 
bill may require passage by 3/5 vote in the House and in the Senate.26 

B. SECTION DIRECTORY: 

Section 1: Creates the Tierra Verde Fire Control and Rescue District as an independent special fire 
control district in Pinellas County. 

Section 2: Provides that the Board of County Commissioners of Pinellas County shall call a 
referendum of the qualified electors of the proposed district upon the certification of a 
petition containing 10 percent of the electors of district. 

Section 3: Provides that the bill shall take effect only upon approval by a majority vote of qualified 
electors of the district voting in a referendum held on or before December 30, 2031 , 
except that this section and section 2 take effect upon becoming law. 

II. NOTICE/REFERENDUM AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS 

A. NOTICE PUBLISHED? Yes [] No [x] 

IF YES, WHEN? 

WHERE? 

B. REFERENDUM(S) REQUIRED? Yes [x] No[] 

IF YES, WHEN? At the next general election following the certification by the Pinellas County 
Supervisor of Elections of a petition signed by ten percent of electors residing in 
the boundaries of the proposed district. 

C. LOCAL BILL CERTIFICATION FILED? Yes, attached [x] No[] 

D. ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT FILED? Yes, attached [x] No[] 

Ill. COMMENTS 

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES: 

Article Ill, s. 11 (a)(21 ), of the Florida Constitution prohibits any special law pertaining to any subject 
when prohibited by general law passed by 3/5 vote of the membership of the House and of the Senate, 
unless amended or repealed by like vote. Because general law requires the local government in the 
jurisdiction of which an independent special district is being created to state its consent or that the 
creation complies with local planning, and because Pinellas County has not provided such a statement, 
the 3/5 vote requirement may be implicated. 

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY: 

This bill does not provide rulemaking authority or require executive branch rulemaking. 

25 Section 189.031, F.S . 
26 Art. lll , s. ll (a)(2 1), Fla. Const.; s. 189.03 1(2) , F.S. 
STORAGE NAME: h0937.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/13/2016 

PAGE : 7 



C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS: 

Lines 135-136 of the bill state that the District's elections and referenda shall be held in accordance 
with ch. 191, F.S., but does not include the special district election requirements in ch. 189, F.S. 

According to House Rule 5.5(b), a local bill providing an exemption from general law may not be placed 
on the Special Order Calendar for expedited consideration. The provisions of House Rule 5.5(b) may 
apply to this bill. 

IV. AMENDMENTS/ COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES 

STORAGE NAME: h0937.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/13/2016 

PAGE: 8 



BILL#: 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

2016 LOCAL BILL CERTIFICATION FORM 

\--( ·3 9~~ 
SPONSOR(S): 

RELATING TO: --y}~--1"2---A v E t-.Pf?" 1 '2~-fu.?l?E-Pf ct?...F "PtSTf?..-IC.c 
[Indicate Area Affected (City, County, or Special District) and Subject] 

NAMEOFDELEGATION:~~! ~J0~6~u~<uA~.~s~------------------
CONTACT PERSON: ·-g..:._...:::::J:........:....(Y).:__Vf:...;:~;;...:....;;.. __________________ _ 

PHONE NO.: (£SCo) CJ s -s- a~g3 

I. House local bill policy requires the following steps must occur before a committee or subcommittee of 
the House considers a local bill: 
(1) The members of the local legislative delegation must certify that the purpose of the bill cannot be 
accomplished at the local/eve/; 
(2) The legislative delegation must hold a public hearing in the area affected for the purpose of 
considering the local bill issue(s); and 
(3) The bill must be approved by a majority of the legislative delegation, or a higher threshold if so 
required by the rules of the delegation, at the public hearing or at a subsequent delegation meeting. 
(4) An Economic Impact Statement for local bills must be prepared at the local/eve/ and submitted to 
the Local Government Affairs Subcommittee. Under House policy, no local bill will be considered by a 
committee or subcommittee without an Economic Impact Statement. 

(1) Does the delegation certify the purpose of the bill cannot be accomplished by 
ordinance of a local governing body without the legal need for a referendum'? 

YES(~J' NO D 

(2) Did ~elegation conduct a public hearing on the subject of the bill? 

YES~ NOD 

Date hearing held: 

Location: us F st. '?'€.TE 

(3) Was thi~ill formally approved by a majority of the delegation members? 

YES[] NOD 

(4) Was an Economic Impact Statement prepared at the local level and submitted to the 
Local Government Affairs Subcommittee? 

YESD 

II. Article Ill, Section 10 of the State Constitution prohibits passage of any special act unless notice of 
intention to seek enactment of the bill has been published as provided by genera/law (s. 11.02, F. S.) or 
the act is conditioned to take effect only upon approval by referendum vote of the electors in the area 
affected. 

Has this constitutional notice requirement been met? 

Notice published: YESD NOD DATE __________ _ 

Where? County 

Page 1 of 2 



Referendum in lieu of publication: 

Date of Referendum 1'6D ----------------------------
Ill. Article VII, Section 9(b) of the State Constitution prohibits passage of any bill creating a special taxing 

district, or changing the authorized millage rate for an existing special taxing district, unless the bill 
subjects the taxing provision to approval by referendum vote of the electors in the area affected. 

(1) Does the bill create a special district and authorize the district to impose an ad 
valorem tax? 

YESD 

(2) Does this bill change the authorized ad valorem millage rate for an existing special 
district? ___/" 

YESD NOCj 

If the answer to question (1) or (2) is YES, does the bill require voter approval of the ad 
valorem tax provision(s)? 

YESD 

Please submit this completed, original form to the Local Government Affairs Subcommittee. 

JcJ/;;I;s-
oate:t I 

Printed Name of Delegation Chair 

Page 2 of 2 



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

2016 ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT FORM 

*Read all instructions carefully. • 
House local bill policy requires that no local bill will be considered by a committee or a subcommittee without an 
Economic Impact Statement. This form must be prepared at the LOCAL LEVEL by an individual who is qualified 
to establish fiscal data and impacts and has personal knowledge of the information given (for example. a chief 
financial officer of a particular local government}. Please submit this completed, original form to the Local 
Government Affairs Subcommittee as soon as possible after a bill is filed. Additional pages may be attached as 
necessary. 

BILL#: HB 937 -------------------------------------------------------------------
SPONSOR(S): Rep. Peters 

--~---------------------------------------------------------------
RELATING TO: Tierra Verde Fire Control and Rescue District, Pinellas County 

[Indicate Area Affected (City, County or Special District) and Subject] 

I. REVENUES: 

These figures are new revenues that would not exist but for the passage of the bill. 
The term "revenue" contemplates, but is not limited to, taxes, fees and special assessments. 
For example, license plate fees may be a revenue source. If the bill will add or remove 
property or individuals from the tax base, include this information as well. 

Revenue decrease due to bill: 

Revenue increase due to bill: 

II. COST: 

FY 16-17 

$ 0 

FY 17-18 

$ Indeterminate 

$ Indeterminate 

Include all costs, both direct and indirect, including start-up costs. If the bill repeals the 
existence of a certain entity, state the related costs, such as satisfying liabilities and 
distributing assets. 

Expenditures for Implementation, Administration and Enforcement: 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 

$ Indeterminate 

Please include explanations and calculations regarding how each dollar figure was 
determined in reaching total cost. 

Assuming a successful referendum is held in 2016 and taxes can be placed on the 2017/2018 tax roll, the maximum costs that could 

be incurred would be that amount generated by 2 mills of ad valorem tax, which is currently $1 .68 milion. This would 

be offset, however, by the elimination of Pinellas County's MSTU for the area in the amount of 1.9118 mills, effectively creating 

a tax swap. The only additional cost would be the potential for paying members of the new board up to $500 per month, as authorized by Ch. 191. F.S. 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 1 of 4 



Ill. FUNDING SOURCE(S): 

State the specific sources from which funding will be received, for example, license plate 
fees, state funds, borrowed funds, or special assessments. 

If certain funding changes are anticipated to occur beyond the following two fiscal years, 
explain the change and at what rate taxes, fees or assessments will be collected in those 
years. 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 

Local: ~~ \J'o.\l>fe.-"-- ~~<; $ 0 $ lndelennlnale 

State: $0 $0 

Federal: $ 0 $ 0 

IV. ECONOMIC IMPACT: 

Potential Advantages: 

Include all possible outcomes linked to the bill, such as increased efficiencies, and 
positive or negative changes to tax revenue. If an act is being repealed or an entity 
dissolved, include the increased or decreased efficiencies caused thereby. 

Include specific figures for anticipated job growth. 

1. Advantages to Individuals: 

2. Advantages to Businesses: 

3. Advantages to Government: 

Potential Disadvantages: 

For the taxpayers of Tierra Verde, assurance that 

all revenue generated by the new district will be 

spent on fire/rescue services in Tierra Verde. 

More efficient fire/rescue service and more 

rapid response. Possibly lower fire insurance costs. 

Local control of fire/rescue and budget by a board 

of residents elected by Tierra Verde electors. 

Include all possible outcomes linked to the bill, such as inefficiencies, shortages, or 
market changes anticipated. 

Include reduced business opportunities, such as reduced access to capital or training. 

State any decreases in tax revenue as a result of the bill. 

1. Disadvantages to Individuals: _N_o_n_e_. -------------
Economic Impact Statement 

PAGE 2 of4 



2. Disadvantages to Businesses: _N_o_n_e_. --------------

3. Disadvantages to Government: _N_o_n_e ______________ _ 

V. DESCRIBE THE POTENTIAL IMPACT OF THE BILL ON PRESENT GOVERNMENTAL 
SERVICES: 

The only impact will be to replace the County MSTU funding source with an independei 

district governed by elected officials from Tierra Verde. Budgetary predictability and 

potentially better service should be the result. 

VI. SPECIFIC DATA USED IN REACHING ESTIMATES: 

Include the type(s) and source(s) of data used, percentages, dollar figures, all 
assumptions made, history of the industry/issue affected by the bill , and any audits. 

Review of operations and budgets of similar fire/rescue districts; review of Pinellas County tax roll 

to determine aggregate taxable value of real property within the boundaries of the proposed 

district; and review of County MSTU budget and tax collections for Tierra Verde area. 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 3 of4 

I I 



VII. CERTIFICATION BY PREPARER 

I hereby certify I am qualified to establish fiscal data and impacts and have personal 
knowledge of the information given. I have reviewed all available financial information 
applicable to the substance of the above-stated local bill and confirm the foregoing 
Economic Impact Statement is a true and accurate estimate of the economic impact of 
the bill. 

PREPARED BY: 

Print preparer's name: 

TITLE (such as Executive Director, Actuary, Chief Accountant, or Budget Director): 

REPRESENTING: 

PHONE: 

E-MAIL ADDRESS: 

-~-+-l ~V ~=+-',b.______~--~:..____;::'('-{_ VIc{ <foV f-
11£i== 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE4of4 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 937 2016 

1 A b il l to be e nt it led 

2 An act rela t ing to Pinellas Cou nty ; creating the 

3 Tierra Verde Fire Cont rol and Rescue District , an 

4 independent special d i strict ; providing a charter ; 

5 providing a short t i t l e ; providing territorial 

6 boundaries of t he dis t r ict ; providing purposes and 

7 intent ; providing for a board of commissioners of t h e 

8 d i strict ; provi d ing f o r qualification , election , 

9 members h ip , terms of of f ice , and compensation of the 

10 board ; providing for the filling o f vacancies ; 

11 provi d i ng for meetings ; providing r u l e making 

12 authority ; provid i ng powers and duties o f t h e board ; 

13 prov i d ing for use of d i strict fund s; authorizing the 

14 d i strict to issue bonds and levy ad v a lo r em taxes , 

15 non - ad valorem assessments , i mpact fees , and user 

16 charges ; providing planni ng requirements ; providing 

17 for modification o f d i s t rict boundaries ; providing fo r 

18 a mendment of t he c har t e r by special act of the 

19 Legislatu re ; requiring t h e district to enter into 

20 specified agreeme nts; providing severability ; 

21 requiring a re f e r endum; providing an effective date . 

22 

23 Be I t Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida : 

24 

25 Sec ti on 1 . Notwiths t anding s . 189 . 0 31 (2) (e) , Florida 

26 Statutes, the Tierra Verde Fire Con tro l and Rescue District , an 

Page 1 of 13 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0937-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

39 

40 

41 

42 

43 

44 

45 

46 

47 

48 

49 

50 

51 

52 

HB 937 2016 

independent special district in Pinellas County , is created and 

established pursuant to c hapters 189 and 191 , Florida Statutes , 

and the charter for the district is created to read : 

Sect i on 1 . Short title . -This act may be cited as the 

" Tierra Verde Fire Cont r o l and Rescue District Act ." 

Section 2 . Formati on ; boundaries.-For the purpose o f 

providing fire prevent i on and emergency rescue services pursuant 

to chapter 191, Florida Statutes , the Tierra Verde Fire Control 

a nd Rescue District ( "district " ) , an i ndependent special 

district , is created and i ncorporated in Pinellas County and 

shall embrace and inc l ude the territory described as : 

A p ortion of fractional Sections 17 , 18 , 1 9 , 20 , 29 , 30 , 

31 , and 32 , Township 32 South , Range 1 6 East, together with 

submerged lands and together with unsurveyed lands , lying 

in Pinellas County , Florida , being described as fo l lows : 

From t h e Southerly most corner of Lot 5 , Block 23 , TIERRA 

VERDE UNIT ONE , as r ecorded i n Plat Book 57 , Pages 42 

through 55 , Public Records of Pinellas County , Florida , as 

the Point of Commence ment ; thence North 30°52 ' 53 " Eas t, 

along the East l i ne of said Block 23 and the Northeasterly 

extension thereof , 1 , 187 . 95 feet to a point on the center 

of the main ship channel of Boca Ciega Bay , the same being 

the City Limits of the City of St . Petersburg ; thence along 

said main ship channel of Boca Ciega Bay and Ci ty Limits of 

the City of St . Petersburg the fol l owi ng two courses and 

distances , (1 ) North 56°23 ' 06 " West 2 , 350.94 feet , (2) 

Page 2 of 13 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0937-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB937 2016 

53 North 24°49 ' 37 " West 459 . 96 feet to the intersection with 

54 the Passa - Grille Channel , the same being the City Limits of 

55 the City of St. Pete Beach , said point being the Point of 

56 Beginning ; thence a l ong the said Pass - a - Grille Channel and 

57 the City Limits of t h e City of St . Pete Beach , the 

58 following fo u r cours es and d i stances : ( 1) South 4 9 o 04 ' OS " 

59 West 2 , 741.70 feet , (2) South 38°55 ' 13 " West 1 , 201.77 f eet , 

60 (3) South 21°58 ' 42 " West 1 , 202 . 38 feet , (4) South 11°52 ' 59 " 

61 East 2549 . 64 feet ; thence departing said Pass - a - Grille 

62 Channel and City Limits of the City of St. Pete Beach , 

63 South 10°50 ' 24 " East 2 , 510 . 20 feet ; thence South 48°30 ' 09 " 

64 East 740 . 07 feet ; thence South 03°49 ' 00 " West 2 , 557.86 

65 feet ; thence South 37°18 ' 04 " East 6 , 807 . 92 feet ; thence 

66 North 88°30 ' 47 " Ea s t 173 . 30 feet , more or less to a point 

67 on the West line of the City Limits of the City of St. 

68 Petersburg ; thence a l ong said West line of the City Limits 

69 of the City of St . Petersburg North 00°09 ' 46 " West 

70 15 , 402 . 33 feet to a po i nt on the aforesaid main ship 

71 channel o f Boca Ciega Bay ; thence a l ong said main ship 

72 channel of Boca Ciega Bay continuing along the City Limi ts 

73 of the City of St . Petersburg , the following two courses 

74 

75 

76 

77 

and distances : (1 ) North 56°23 ' 06 " West 2 , 601.89 feet , (2) 

North 24°49 ' 37 " West 459.96 feet to the Point of Beginning . 

Section 3 . Intent . -The purposes of this act are to : 

( 1) Provide standards , direction , and procedures 

78 concerning the operation and governance of the Tierra Verde Fire 

Page 3 of 13 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0937-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

79 

80 

81 

82 

83 

84 

85 

86 

87 

88 

89 

90 

91 

92 

93 

94 

95 

96 

97 

98 

99 

100 

101 

102 

103 

104 

HB 937 

Control and Rescue District . 

(2) Provide uniformity between the Tierra Verde Fire 

Control and Rescue District and other independent special fire 

control districts . 

(3) Provide financing authority of the Tierra Verde Fire 

2016 

Control and Rescue Distr i c t without hampering the efficiency and 

effectiveness of cur rent authorized and implemented methods and 

procedures of raising revenues . 

( 4 ) Improve communication and coordination between the 

distr i ct and other local governments with respect to short - range 

and long- range planning to meet the demands for service delivery 

whi l e maintaining fiscal respons ibility. 

(5) Provide uniform procedures for electing members of the 

gove rning board of the district t o ensure greater accountability 

to the public . 

Section 4. Board of commissioners ; officers ; bond; 

compensation .-

(1) The business affairs of the district shall be 

conducted and administered , pursuant to chapter 191 , Florida 

Statutes , by the Board o f Commissioners of the Tierra Verde Fire 

Control and Rescue District ( "board " ) , which is established as a 

board of five commissioners . Annually, within 60 days after 

newly elected members have taken office , the board shall 

organ i ze by electing from its members a chair, a vice chair , a 

secre ta ry , and a treasurer . The positions of secretary and 

treasurer may be held by one member. The office of each 

Page 4 of 13 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0937-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 937 2016 

105 commissioner comprising the board is designated as being a seat 

106 on the commission , distinguished from each of the other seats by 

107 a numeral : 1 , 2 , 3 , 4 , or 5 . The numeri cal seat designation does 

108 not designate a geographical subdistrict of the district . 

109 (2 ) Each commissioner shall, upon assuming office , take 

110 and subscribe to the oath of office prescribed by s. 5(b) , 

111 Article II of the State Constitution and s . 876 . 05 , Florida 

112 Statutes . Each commissioner , upon taking office and in 

113 accordance with chapters 189 and 191 , Florida Statutes , shall 

114 execute to the Governor for the benefit of the district a bond 

115 conditioned upon the faithful performance of the duties of the 

116 commissioner ' s office . The premium for such bonds shall be paid 

117 from district funds. 

118 (3) Members of the board may each be paid a salary or 

119 honorarium to be determined by at least a majority plus one vote 

120 of the board, which salary or honorarium may not exceed $500 per 

121 month for each member . Special notice of any meeting at which 

122 the board will consider a salary change for a board member shall 

123 be published at least once , at least 14 days before the meeting, 

124 in a newspaper of gene ral circula tion in the county . Separate 

125 compensation for the board member serving as treasurer may be 

126 aut horized by like vote so long as total compensation for the 

127 board member does not exceed $500 per month . Members may be 

128 reimburs ed for travel and per diem expenses as provided in s . 

129 112.061 , Fl orida Statutes . 

130 (4) Members of the board shall comply with the financial 

Page 5 of 13 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0937-00 



FLOR I DA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 937 2016 

131 disclosure , noticing , and reporting requirements of chapter 112, 

132 Florida Statutes , and any other applicable law or regulation. 

133 Section 5 . Board of commissioners ; terms ; election , 

134 qualifications , certif i cation of single candidate .-

135 (1) District elections and referenda shall be held in 

136 accordance with chapter 191, Florida Statutes . 

137 (2) Except as provided in this subsect ion, each of the 

138 f i ve commissioners shal l hold his or her respective seat on the 

139 board for a term of 4 yea r s and shall be elected by maj ority 

140 vote o f the electors of the district voting at a general 

141 elect i on . In the f irst election after the effective date of this 

142 act , seats 1 , 3 , and 5 shall be designated for 4- year terms , and 

143 seats 2 and 4 shall be designated f or 2- year terms . All 

144 commissioners must be qualified electors within the dist ri ct and 

145 must reside wi thin the district . 

14 6 (3) Voting for commissioners shall be districtwide and 

147 nonpart isan . 

148 (4) If a vacancy occurs on the board due to the 

149 res i gnation , death, or removal of a commissioner , or the failure 

150 o f anyone to qualify for a board seat , the remaining members may 

151 appoint a qualified person to fill the seat until the next 

152 genera l elect i on , at which time an elect i on s h a ll be held to 

153 fi ll the vacancy for the remaining term, if any. The board shall 

154 remove any member who has three consecutive , unexcused absences 

155 from regular l y scheduled meetings . The board shall adopt 

156 policies by resolution defining excused and unexcused absences . 

Page 6 of 13 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0937-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTAT I VES 

HB 937 

157 (5) Each commissioner , whenever elected, shall assume 

158 off ice 10 days after his or her election and shall serve until 

159 his o r her successor is elected . 

160 (6) All candidates shall qualify with the Supervisor of 

161 Elections of Pinellas County. All candidates may qualify by 

2016 

162 paying a filing fee o f $25 o r by obtaining the s i gnatures of at 

1 63 least 25 reg istered e lectors of the district on petition forms 

164 provided by the supervi s or of elections , which petitions must be 

165 submi tted and checked in the same manner as petitions filed by 

1 66 nonpartisan judi cial candidates pursuant to s . 105 . 035 , Florida 

167 Sta tutes. 

168 (7) The names of all candidates qualifying for election to 

169 a seat on the board shall be included on the ballot o r voti n g 

170 machines provided f o r use in the district , along with the 

171 candidates for county office at each regular county election , in 

172 such a way as to clearly indicate the respective seat for which 

173 each qualified candidate for district commissioner is running. 

174 (8) Any expense o f holding e l ections for commission seat s 

17 5 at the regular coun ty elections shall be paid out of the funds 

176 o f the district, if required by proper authority. 

177 (9) The board shal l keep a permanent record book entitled 

178 " Record of Proceedings of Tierra Verde Fire Control and Rescue 

179 District " in which t h e minut es of all meetings , resolutions , 

180 proceedings , certificates , bonds given by commissioners , and 

181 corporate acts shall be r eco rded . The record book shall be open 

182 to inspect i on in the same manner as state , county , and municipal 

Page 7 of 13 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0937-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 937 2016 

183 records are open under chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and s . 24 , 

184 Article I of the State Constitution . The record book shall be 

185 kept at the off ice or other regular place o f business maintained 

186 by the board in the county or municipality in which the d istrict 

187 is located . 

188 (10 ) All meetings of the board shall be open to the 

189 

190 

191 

192 

193 

194 

195 

196 

197 

198 

199 

200 

201 

202 

203 

204 

public , consistent with chapter 286 , Florida Statutes , s. 

189.015, Florida Statutes, and other applicable general laws. 

Section 6 . Rules and regulations .-The board is authorized 

to adopt rules and regulations for the prevention of fires , fire 

cont rol, and rescue work within the district . Such rules and 

regulations , after being adopted by the board and copies thereof 

signed by the president and the secretary , and posted on the 

district website and in at least three public places within the 

district , one of which must be the fire station or such similar 

place wherein the firefighting and rescue equ ipment is normally 

kept, after 10 days has the force and effect o f law . 

Section 7 . Powers ; us e of district funds .-

(1) The district has, and the board may exercise , a ll the 

powers and duties set forth in chapte rs 189 and 191 , Florida 

Statutes . 

(2) No funds of the district may be used for any purposes 

205 other than the administration of the affairs and business of the 

206 d istrict; the construction, care , maintenance , upkeep, 

207 operation, and purchase of firefighting and res c u e equ ipment or 

208 a fir e station or stations ; the payment o f public utilities ; and 

Page 8 of 13 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0937-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 937 2016 

209 the payment o f salaries of district personnel as the board may 

210 from time t o time determine to be necessary for the operations 

211 and effectiveness of the district. 

212 (3) The board is authorized and empowered to buy , own , 

213 lease , and maintain a fire department within the district and t o 

214 purchase, acquire by gift , lease, own , and dispose of 

215 firefighting equipment and property, real and personal, that the 

216 board may from time to time deem necessary or needful to prevent 

2 17 and extinguish fires within the district. 

2 18 Section 8. Finances . -

219 (1) The powers , functions, and duties of the distri c t 

220 regard i ng ad valorem taxation , b ond issuance , other revenue -

221 raising capabilities , budget preparation and approval, liens and 

222 foreclosure of liens , use of tax deeds and tax certif icates as 

223 appropriate for non- ad valorem assessments , and contractual 

224 agreements , and the methods for financing the distri ct and for 

225 collecting non-ad valorem assessments , fees , or service charges , 

226 shall be as set f or th in this charter , in chapters 170 , 189 , 

227 191 , and 197 , Florida Statutes, and in any applicable gene r al or 

228 special law . 

229 (2) The district is authorized to levy and collect ad 

230 valorem taxes in accordance with s . 191 . 009, Florida Statutes , 

231 and chapter 200, Florida Statutes. The taxes levied and assessed 

23 2 by the district shall be a lien upon the land so assessed along 

233 with t h e county taxes assessed against s u c h l and until such 

234 assessments and taxes have been paid , and if the taxes levied by 

Page 9 of 13 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underl ined are additions. 

hb0937-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 937 2016 

235 the district become delinquent, such taxes are considered a part 

236 of the county tax subject to the same penalties , charges , fees , 

237 and remedies for e nfo r cement and collect i on and shal l be 

238 enforced and collected as provided by genera l law for the 

239 col lection of such taxes . The maximum ad valorem millage rate 

240 that can be l evied in any one year is 2 . 0 mills . 

241 (3) The district has the authority t o levy non-ad va l orem 

242 assessments . The methods for assessing and collecting non - ad 

243 valorem assessment s , fees , or service charges shall be as set 

244 forth in this charter , chapter 170 , chapter 189 , chapter 1 91 , or 

245 chapte r 197 , Flor ida Statutes . 

246 (4) The district has the authority to charge and collect 

247 impact fees for capital improvements on new construction within 

248 the district as prescribed in c hapter 191 , Florida Statutes , or 

249 any other app li cab le general law . The distr i ct shall compl y with 

250 the requirements in ss . 163 . 3180 1 and 191 . 009(4) , Fl orida 

25 1 Statutes , in i t s collection and use of impact fees . New 

2 52 facilities and equipment shall be as provided for in s . 

253 191.009(4), Flor i da Statute s . The district is a uthorized to 

254 enter into ag reements regarding the collection of i mpact fees . 

255 (5) The district has authority to issue general obligation 

256 bonds , assessment bonds , revenue bonds , notes , bond anticipation 

257 notes , and other evidences of indebtedness to finance all or a 

258 part of any proposed improvements in accordance wi th s . 191 . 012 , 

259 Flor ida Statutes , chapter 189 , Fl orida Statutes , and a n y other 

260 applicable general or special law. 

Page 10 of 13 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0937-00 



- ---- -------------

FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 937 2016 

261 (6) The board shall annually prepa re, consider , and adopt 

262 a district budget pursuant to the applicable requirements o f 

263 chapters 189 and 191 , Florida Statutes . The fiscal year shall be 

264 from October 1 through September 30 . The budget shall state the 

265 purpose for which the money is required and the amount necessary 

266 to be raised by taxation within the district . Such budget and 

267 p r oposed millage rate must be noticed , heard , and adopted in 

268 accordance with chapter s 189 , 192 , and 200 , Florida Statutes . 

269 (7) All warrants f or the paymen t of labor , equipment , 

270 mate rials , and other allowable expenses incurred by the d istrict 

271 board in carrying out the provisions of this charte r are payable 

272 on account s and vouche rs app r oved by the district boa r d . 

273 Section 9 . Planning requirements . - The district comp l y with 

274 the p lanning requ irements set f o rt h in part VIII of chapter 189 , 

275 Florida Statutes . 

276 Sect i on 10 . Boundaries . -The boundaries of the district may 

277 be modified , extended , or enlarged upon approval or ratif i cation 

278 by the Legislature. 

279 Section 11. Amendment of charter .-This charter may be 

280 amended only by special act of the Legislature. 

281 Section 12 . Emergency medical se r vices ; first responder 

282 servi ces . -The district shall enter into an agreement with the 

283 Pinellas County Emergency Medical Services Authority for 

284 automatic aid in the provision of emergency medica l services and 

285 first responder servi ces . Such agreement must comply wi th t h e 

286 provis i ons of the Automatic Aid/Closest Uni t Response Agreement 

Page 11 of 13 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0937-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTA T IVES 

HB 937 

287 dated October 1 6 , 1990. However, any agreement shall include 

288 provisions for actual cost recovery by the district for first 

289 responder services to Fort DeSoto Park. 

290 Section 13 . Automatic aid .-The district shall enter into 

2016 

291 the Automatic Aid/Closest Unit Response Agreement dated Oc tober 

292 16 , 1990, within 1 year after this act takes effect . 

293 Section 14 . Severability . -If any provision of this act is 

294 held unconstitutional , inoperative , or void , such holding o r 

295 invalidity does not affect the remaining portions of this act . 

296 Section 2 . The Board of County Commissioners of Pinellas 

297 County shall ca l l and the Supervisor of Elections of Pinellas 

298 County shall conduct a referendum of the qualified electors of 

299 the proposed district on the question of whether the Tierra 

300 Verde Fire Contro l and Rescue Di strict shall be created and 

301 authorized to levy non- ad valorem assessments and ad valorem 

302 taxes on real property within the district at a rate not to 

303 exceed 2 mills . The referendum shall only be called upon the 

304 certification of signatures of 10 percent of the electors 

305 residing within the boundaries described in section 2 of section 

306 1 on a petition to cal l such referendum. The certification of 

307 signatures shall be conducted by the Supervisor o f Elections of 

308 Pinellas Count y at no cost to Pinellas County or the state. Upon 

309 certification of the necessary number of signatures, the 

310 referendum sha ll be held in conjunction with the next general 

311 elect ion . If such referendum is not approved by the electors 

312 before De cembe r 3 1 , 2031 , this act shall stand repealed . 

Page 12 of 13 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0937-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 937 2016 

313 Section 3 . This act shall take effect only upon approval 

314 by a majority vote of those qua l ified electors of the Tierra 

315 Verde Fire Contro l and Rescue District voting in a referendum 

316 election to be held on or before December 30 , 2031, in 

317 accordance with the provisions of l aw relating to elections 

318 currently i n force in the district , except that this section and 

319 section 2 shall take ef f ect upon becoming a law. 

Page 13 of 13 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0937-00 



11111111111111111111 11111111 

Amendment No. 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMEN T 

Bill No. HB 937 (2016) 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMM I TTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECTION (Y/N) 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WITHDRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bi l l: Local Government Affairs 

2 Subcommittee 

3 Representative Peters offered t he following: 

4 

5 Amendment 

6 Remove l ine 136 and i nsert : 

7 accordance wi th chapte r s 189 and 191 , Florida Statutes . 

255171 - HB 937 Amendment 1 . docx 

Published On : 1/15/2016 5 : 48 : 37 PM 

Page 1 of 1 





HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES LOCAL BILL STAFF ANALYSIS 

BILL#: HB 945 Downtown Development Authority of the City of Fort Lauderdale, Broward County 
SPONSOR(S): DuBose 
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: 

REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR or 
BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF 

1) Local Government Affairs Subcommittee Mille /7.,Miller C /JI- fp...._ 
2) Finance & Tax Committee 

3) Local & Federal Affairs Committee 

SUMMARY ANALYSIS 

The Downtown Development Authority of the City of Ft. Lauderdale is a special taxing district created to 
provide economic development, redevelopment, and coordination services to benefit areas of the city. To 
support the projects and responsibilities of the Authority, the city levies ad valorem taxes not to exceed one mill 
annually. The DDA's charter defines those properties subject to taxation and excludes most actual residential 
property. The enabling law for the DDA is due to expire on December 31, 2030. 

Sections 1 and 2 of the bill revise the definitions of "residential property, " resulting in more properties being 
included within those "non-residential" properties subject to the one mill ad valorem tax. Section 3 revises 
additional sections of the DDA charter to provide more autonomy in budgeting and direct control of DDA tax 
receipts. This section also authorizes the DDA, instead of the city commission, to levy the annual ad valorem 
tax. Finally, Section 3 of the bill extends the expiration date of the DDA to December 31 , 2050. 

The Economic Impact Statement projects increased ad valorem tax revenues for FY 2016-2017 of $390,056, 
and for FY 2017-2018 of $525,808, if the changes are approved by voter referendum. 

Section 4 of the bill takes effect upon becoming law. The remainder of the bill takes effect only upon approval 
by a majority of resident qualified electors of the DDA in a referendum to be conducted in conjunction with the 
next general, special, or other election. 

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives. 
STORAGE NAME: h0945.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/14/2016 



FULL ANALYSIS 

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS 

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES: 

Present Situation 

The Downtown Development Authority of the City of Fort Lauderdale (DDA) was established by special 
act of the Legisiature in 1965.1 In accordance with s. 189.019, F.S. , in 2005 the DDA submitted a 
recodified charter as a single, organized document for approval by the Legislature.2 The DDA serves 
several functions in the community, include economic development, redevelopment of blighted areas, 
marketing, and coordinating projects between governmental entities and the private sector.3 

The DDA's current charter defines "downtown" as all lands described in Section 2 of the charter that 
are "not being used as a residence. "4 "Not being used as a residence" is defined as all residential 5 

lands not being used as a "residence ," as well as portions of nonresidential lands not being used as a 
"residence."6 A "residence" is defined as a building used as living quarters by one or more persons.7 

The Executive Director of the DDA determines whether property constitutes a residence.8 

The Executive Director prepares an annual budget for the DDA, conforming to the fiscal year of the city 
and containing the information required of city departments in their respective budgets. The budget is 
submitted to the board of the DDA for approval.9 After approval , a copy of the budget is submitted to 
the city, with a statement of the necessary millage to fund services, as determined by the DDA board. 10 

The city commission of Fort Lauderdale is authorized to levy an ad valorem tax of up to one mill to 
finance the operations of the DDA. 11 The funds generated by this tax are deposited in the city treasury, 
credited to the DDA. 12 The city commission has the authority to use a "reasonable pro rata share" of the 
funds to defer the cost of handling and auditing .13 

The DDA's charter currently is set to expire on December 31 , 2030. 14 On that date, all assets of the 
authority will become property of the City of Fort Lauderdale. 15 If the Authority has any remaining 
outstanding debt at dissolution, the city is allowed to continuing levying ad valorem taxes authorized by 
the charter to retire the indebtedness. 16 

Effect of Proposed Changes 

The bill revises the charter of the DDA in four significant areas: 

1 Ch. 65-1 541 , Laws ofFla. 
2 Ch. 2005-346, Laws of Fla. 
3 Welcome to Downtown Fort Lauderdale, About the DDA , http: //www.ddaftl.org/#!about-the-dda/c I uh6 (last visited J/14/20 16). 
4 S. 5(a), Charter for the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Ft. Lauderdale, as codified in s.3 , Ch. 2005-346, Laws of 
Fla. (herein Ft. Lauderdale DDA Charter) . 
5 Defined as lands zoned by the City of Fort Lauderdale as R-1-A, R-1 , R-1-P, R-2-A, R-2 , R-3-A/RM-25 , R-3-9, RM-1 5, R-3/RM-
30, R-3-C, R-4/RM-60, or R-4-C. 
6 S. 5(b), Ft. Lauderdale DDA Charter 
7 S. 5(c), Ft. Lauderdale DDA Charter 
8 S. 5(b ), Ft. Lauderdale DDA Charter 
9 S. II , Ft. Lauderdale DDA Charter 
10 Jd. 
11 S. 12, Ft. Lauderdale DDA Charter 
12 Jd. 
13 S. 13, Ft. Lauderdale DDA Charter 
14 S. 15, Ft. Lauderdale DDA Charter 
15 Jd. 
16 Jd. 
STORAGE NAME: h0945.LGAS.DOCX PAGE : 2 
DATE: 1/14/201 6 



• First, the bill narrows the classifications of property excluded from the definition of "downtown." 
Under the bill's definition of "downtown," only residential buildings or units for which a 
homestead exemption is claimed are excluded from classification as "downtown." 

• Second, the bill amends the provisions pertaining to budget preparation . The Authority would no 
longer be linked directly to the fiscal year of the city and would be required only to deliver a copy 
of its budget within 30 days after the budget was adopted. 

• Third, the authority itself would be authorized to levy the ad valorem taxes provided in the 
charter, subject to the present one mill cap. The tax collector would transmit the funds directly to 
the Authority for deposit. The Authority would be responsible to comply with the Truth in Millage 
Rules and s. 200.065, F.S., in adopting a budget and levying taxes. 

• Fourth, the expiration date of the law would be extended to December 31, 2050. 

The bill provides for a referendum on all changes provided in the bill. Only the referendum provision 
takes effect upon the act becoming law. 

B. SECTION DIRECTORY: 

Section 1: 

Section 2: 

Section 3: 

Section 4: 

Amends Subsection 5 of Section 1 of Section 3 of Ch. 2005-346, Laws of Florida, to 
revise the definition of "downtown" and "residence," and removing definitions for "not 
being used as a residence" and "residential." 

Amends Section 2 of Section 3 of Ch. 2005-346, Laws of Florida, to include certain 
residential property within those properties subject to taxation by the Authority. 

Amends Sections 11, 12, 13, and 15 of Section 3 of Ch. 2005-346, Laws of Florida, 
revising procedures for final adoption of budget and millage and the authority to levy ad 
valorem taxes, and extending the expiration date of the Authority to December 31 , 2050. 

Provides the provisions of section 4 shall take effect upon becoming law and sections 1, 
2, and 3 take effect only upon approval in a referendum of resident qualified electors of 
the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Fort Lauderdale to be held in 
conjunction with the next general , special, or other election in Broward County. 

II. NOTICE/REFERENDUM AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS 

A. NOTICE PUBLISHED? Yes [X] No[] 

IF YES, WHEN? 

WHERE? 

October 4, 2015 

Sun-Sentinel, a daily newspaper of general circulation, published in Broward 
County, Florida 

B. REFERENDUM(S) REQUIRED? Yes [X] No[] 

IF YES, WHEN? In conjunction with the next general, special, or other election in Broward County. 

C. LOCAL BILL CERTIFICATION FILED? Yes, attached [X] No[] 

D. ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT FILED? Yes, attached [X] No[] 

STORAGE NAME: h0945.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/14/2016 

Ill. COMMENTS 

PAGE: 3 



A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES: 

None. 

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY: 

The bill neither authorizes nor requires implementation by executive branch rulemaking. 

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS: 

None. 

IV. AMENDMENTS/ COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES 

STORAGE NAME: h0945.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/14/2016 

PAGE: 4 



r------------ - - - -·- ------ ----·· 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

2016 LOCAL BILL AMENDMENT FORM 

Prior to consideration of a substantive amendment to a local bill, the chair of the legislative delegation must 
certify, by signing this Amendment Form, that the amendment is approved by a m;yority of the legislative 
delegation. House local bill policy does not require a delegation meeting to formally approve an amendment. All 
substantive committee, subcommittee, and floor amendments must be accompanied by a completed original 
Amendment Form which has been provided to and reviewed by Local Government Affairs Subcommittee staff 
prior to consideration. An Amendment Form is not required for technical amendments. 

BILL NUMBER: HB 945 -----------------------------------------
SPONSOR(S): _R_e..;_p_. _D_u_B_os_e __________________ _ 

RELATING TO: The Downtown Development Authority of Fort Lauderdale, Broward County 
[Indicate Area Affected (City, County or Special District) and Subject] 

SPONSOR OF AMENDMENT: Rep. DuBose 
--~-------------------------

AMENDMENT FOR: 0 committee: Local Government Affairs Subcommittee 
(Check One) · (Name of Committee or Subcommittee} 

D Floor 

CONTACT PERSON: Gabriel Sheffield ------------------------------
PHONE NO: 850-717-5094 E-MAIL: Gabriei.Sheffield@myfloridahouse.gov 

REVIEWED BY STAFF OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS SUBCOMMITTEE [lj 

I. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT: 
(Attach additional page(s) if necessary) 

*Must Be Checked* 

Removes provision extending the expiration date of district from December 31, 2030, to 
December 31, 2050. 

II. REASON/NEED FOR AMENDMENT: 
(Attach additional page(s) if necessary) 

Under its existing authorization act, the expiration date of the district is December 31, 2030. 
The amendment retains this expiration date so that the operations of the district, and whether 
there is a continuing need for its services, may be more promptly reviewed. 

Ill. NOTICE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Is the amendment consistent with the published notice of intent to seek enactment of the 
local bill? 

YES 0 NOD NOT APPLICABLE D 
B. If the amendment is not consistent with the published notice, does the amendment 

require voter approval in order for the bill to become effective? 

YES D NO 0 NOT APPLICABLE D 

Page 1 of 2 



IV. DOES THE AMENDMENT ALTER THE ECONOMIC IMPACT OF THE BILL? 

YESO NO[{] 

NOTE: If the amendment alters the economic impact of the bill, a revised Economic Impact Statement describing 
the impact of the amendment must be submitted to the Local Government Affairs Subcommittee prior to 
consideration of the amendment. 

If yes, was the Revised Economic Impact Statement submitted as follows? 

0 Committee Amendment: EIS filed with staff of committee/subcommittee hearing the bill. 

D Floor Amendment: EIS filed with staff of Local Government Affairs Subcommittee. 

YESD NOD 

V. HAS THE AMENDMENT AS DESCRIBED ABOVE BEEN APPROVED BY A MAJORITY OF 
THE DELEGATION? 

YES~ NOD UNANIMOUSLy APPROVED D 

For substantive amendments considered in committee or subcommittee, the properly-executed 
original of this form must be filed with the committee or subcommittee staff prior to the amendment 
being heard. [Note to committee staff: after receiving this form the original must be filed with the 
House Clerk.] 

For substantive floor amendments, the properly-executed original of this form must be filed with the 
House Clerk prior to the amendment being heard. 

Date 

Print Name of Delegation Chair 

Page 2 of 2 



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

2016 LOCAL BILL CERTIFICATION FORM 

BILL#: Q L[ .5 
--~~~~~----~~--------~~~~---------------------------

SPONSOR(S): \\ 

RELATING TO: ~0 ) - .lli 
[Indicate Area Affected (Ci , County, or Special District) and Subje ] 

NAME OF DELEGATIO:~I(}ic\ leq::Gt \we.. 'be \P{)Q\i {)Y) 

CONTACTPERSON: ~BD~,{L~(~ea~~~V~~~O~D~)~~~~~-S~----------------------------
PHONE NO.: (1St.( ) )J5 -aCf'60 E-Mail: A (I OOW\f'S Q txf)\/\(1 tr;( . arg 

I. House local bill policy requires the following steps must occur before a committee or subcommittee of 
the House considers a local bill: 
(1) The members of the local legislative delegation must certify that the purpose of the bill cannot be 
accomplished at the local/eve/; 
(2) The legislative delegation must hold a public hearing in the area affected for the purpose of 
considering the local bill issue(s); and 
(3) The bill must be approved by a majority of the legislative delegation, or a higher threshold if so 
required by the rules of the delegation, at the public hearing or at a subsequent delegation meeting. 
(4) An Economic Impact Statement for local bills must be prepared at the local/eve/ and submitted to 
the Local Government Affairs Subcommittee. Under House policy, no local bill will be considered by a 
committee or subcommittee without an Economic Impact Statement. 

(1) Does the delegation certify the purpose of the bill cannot be accomplished by 
ordinance of a local governing body without the legal need for a referendum? 

YES~ NO[ 1 
(2) Did the delegation conduct a public hearing on the subject of the bill? 

YES~ NO[ 1 . . 

Date hearing held: ~~ tlj\Qe<;:' ~~ 
Location: et(Cl{ Co_)(r\-u c==ntt/ Cenkr 

I 
(3) Was this bill formally approved by a majority of the delegation members? 

YES P4 NO [ 1 

(4) Was an Economic Impact Statement prepared at the local level and submitted to the 
Local Government Affairs Subcommittee? 

YES 0 NO [ 1 

II. Article 1/1, Section 10 of the State Constitution prohibits passage of any special act unless notice of 
intention to seek enactment of the bill has been published as provided by genera/Jaw (s. 11.02, F. S.) or 
the act is conditioned to take effect only upon approval by referendum vote of the electors in the area 
affected. 

Has this constitutional notice requirement been met? 

Notice published: YES '0 NO [ 1 DATE frkX£\ L.f 12{)15"' 
Where? QJ()-S?obne \ county __..,~~(('-=O_,_WCA~t.>,._d..____ ___ _ 

Page 1 of 2 



Referendum in lieu of publication: YES [ 1 NoJ<{ 
Date of Referendum _____________ _ 

Ill. Article VII, Section 9(b) of the State Constitution prohibits passage of any bill creating a special taxing 
district, or changing the authorized millage rate for an existing special taxing district, unless the bill 
subjects the taxing provision to approval by referendum vote of the electors in the area affected. 

(1) Does the bill create a special district and authorize the district to impose an ad 
valorem tax? 

YES [ 1 

(2) Does this bill change the authorized ad valorem millage rate for an existing special 
district? 

YES [ 1 No)<f 
If the answer to question (1) or (2) is YES, does the bill require voter approval of the ad 
valorem tax prov1sion(s)? 

YES [ 1 NO [ 1 

Page 2 of 2 



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

2016 ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT FORM 

*Read all instructions carefully.* 
House local bill policy requires that no local bill will be considered by a committee or a subcommittee without an 
Economic Impact Statement. This form must be prepared at the LOCAL LEVEL by an individual who is qualified 
to establish fiscal data and impacts and has personal knowledge of the information given (for example, a chief 
financial officer of a particular local government). Please submit this completed, original form to the Local 
Government Affairs Subcommittee as soon as possible after a bill is filed. Additional pages may be attached as 
necessary. 

BILL#: __ q~L{_?~-----------------
SPONSOR(S): Representative Bobby B. DuBose 

RELATING TO: Downtown Development Authority of the City of Fort Lauderdale 
[Indicate Area Affected (City, County or Special District) and Subject] 

I. REVENUES: 

These figures are new revenues that would not exist but for the passage of the bill. 
The term "revenue" contemplates, but is not limited to , taxes , fees and special assessments. 
For example, license plate fees may be a revenue source. If the bill will add or remove 
property or individuals from the tax base, include this information as well . 

Revenue decrease due to bill: 

Revenue increase due to bill: 

II. COST: 

FY 16-17 

$_0 __ _ 

$ 390,056 

FY 17-18 

$ 0 ----

$ 525,808 

Include all costs , both direct and indirect, including start-up costs. If the bill repeals the 
existence of a certain entity, state the related costs, such as satisfying liabilities and 
distributing assets. 

Expenditures for Implementation, Administration and Enforcement: 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 

Please include explanations and calculations regarding how each dollar figure was 
determined in reaching total cost. 

Estimated increase in ad valorem tax receipts is shown in 2015 constant dollars 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 1 of 4 



Ill. FUNDING SOURCE(S): 

State the specific sources from which funding will be received, for example, license plate 
fees, state funds, borrowed funds, or special assessments. 

If certain funding changes are anticipated to occur beyond the following two fiscal years, 
explain the change and at what rate taxes, fees or assessments will be collected in those 
years. 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 

Local: $ 390,056 $ 525,808 

State: $ $ ____ __ 

Federal : $ $ ____ __ 

IV. ECONOMIC IMPACT: 

Potential Advantages: 

Include all possible outcomes linked to the bill, such as increased efficiencies, and 
positive or negative changes to tax revenue. If an act is being repealed or an entity 
dissolved, include the increased or decreased efficiencies caused thereby. 

Include specific figures for anticipated job growth. 

1. Advantages to Individuals: Extension of new services such as 

security program 

2. Advantages to Businesses: Same as No.1 above 

3. Advantages to Government: Streamlining of ad valorem tax 

procedures 

Potential Disadvantages: 

Include all possible outcomes linked to the bill , such as inefficiencies, shortages, or 
market changes anticipated . 

Include reduced business opportunities, such as reduced access to capital or training. 

State any decreases in tax revenue as a result of the bill. 

1. Disadvantages to Individuals: Potential increase in ad valorem taxes 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 2 of4 



for new properties added to DDA 

boundaries upon Referendum 

2. Disadvantages to Businesses: Same as No. 1 above 

3. Disadvantages to Government: _N_o_n_e ____________ _ 

V. DESCRIBE THE POTENTIAL IMPACT OF THE BILL ON PRESENT GOVERNMENTAL 
SERVICES: 

No Impact. 

VI. SPECIFIC DATA USED IN REACHING ESTIMATES: 

Include the type(s) and source(s) of data used, percentages, dollar figures, all 
assumptions made, history of the industry/issue affected by the bill, and any audits. 

2015 tax rolls for all property within DDA boundaries with annual 

net new operating tax revenue generated using the DDA•s operating 

millage rate. 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 3 of 4 



VII. CERTIFICATION BY PREPARER 

I hereby certify I am qualified to establish fiscal data and impacts and have personal 
knowledge of the information given . I have reviewed all available financial information 
applicable to the substance of the above-stated local bill and confirm the foregoing 
Economic Impact Statement is a true and accurate estimate of the economic impact of 
the bill. 

PREPARED BY: 
[Must be signed by Preparer] 

Print preparer's name: Chris Wren 

Date 

TITLE (such as Executive Director, Actuary, Chief Accountant, or Budget Director): 

REPRESENTING: 

PHONE: 

E-MAIL ADDRESS: 

Executive Director 

Downtown Development Authority 

of the City of Fort Lauderdale 

(954) 463-6574 CHRISWREN©DDAFTL.ORG 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 4 of4 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 945 2016 

1 A bill to be entitled 

2 An act relating to the Downtown Development Authority 

3 of the City of Fort Lauderdale, Broward County ; 

4 amending chapter 2005 - 346 , Laws of Florida; revising 

5 definitions; adding certain residential property to 

6 the boundaries of the authority ; revising procedures 

7 f or final adoption of budget and millage; extending 

8 the expiration date of the act ; requiring a 

9 referendum; providing an effective date. 

10 

11 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida: 

12 

13 Section 1. Subsection (5) of sect i on 1 of section 3 of 

14 chapter 2005 - 346 , Laws of Fl or ida, is amended to read : 

15 Section 1. Definitions .-As used in this act , the following 

16 terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them in this section 

17 unless the con text shal l clearly requires otherwise: 

18 (5) (a) " Downtown " means the lands described in section 2.L 

19 specifically excluding each residential unit for which a 

20 homestead exemption is in effect as of January 1 o f the 

21 applicable year not being used as a residence. 

22 (b) "Hot being used as a residence" FA:eans all residential 

23 lands not being used as a residence or that portion of 

24 nonresidential lands not being used as a residence. The 

2 5 deterFA:ination of ·.:hen land is being used as a residence shall be 

26 FA:ade and certified by the EHecutive Director of the DovmtoHn 

Page 1 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 945 2016 

27 Developff\ent Authority at the tiffie the boolcs close for a Dmmtmm 

28 Developff\ent Authority election or, if the Dmmtmm Developffient 

29 Authority does not hold an election in a particular year, as of 

30 January 1 of that year. 

3 1 J..Ql_-te+ "Res idence " means a building or unit i n which one 

32 or more natural persons live . 

33 (d) "Residential" ff\Cans lands zoned by the City of Fort 

34 Lauderdale as R 1 A, R 1, R 1 P, R 2 A, R 2, R 3 A/RH 25, R 3 9, 

3 5 RH 1 5 , R 3 / RH 3 0 , R 3 C , R 4 / RH 6 0 , or R 4 C . 

36 Section 2 . Secti on 2 of section 3 of chapter 2005 - 346 , 

37 Laws of Florida, is amended to read: 

38 Section 2. The boundaries of the authority shall include 

39 the following lands in the Ci ty of Fort Lauderdale, Broward 

40 County: 

41 

42 

43 

44 

45 

46 

47 

48 

49 

50 

51 

52 

1. All lands not being used as a residence lying 

north of New River, east of Southwest and Northwes t 

Fourth Avenue, south o f Northwest and Northeast Second 

Street and west of Northeast and Southeast Sixth 

Avenue; 

2. All lands not being used as a residence lying 

north of Northwest Second Street, east o f the Florida 

East Coast Railroad, south of Northwest Fourth Street, 

and west of No rth Andrews Avenue; 

Page 2 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F RE P RESENTATIVES 

53 

54 

55 

56 

57 

58 

59 

60 

61 

62 

63 

64 

65 

66 

67 

68 

69 

70 

71 

72 

73 

74 

75 

76 

77 

HB 945 

3 . All lands not being used as a residence lying 

within one hundred fifty feet of and being in common 

ownership with any of said boundary streets and 

avenues (excluding, however , all lands lying east of 

Southeast Sixth Avenue); 

4 . All lands not being used as a residence lying 

south of Northeast Fourth Street and within one 

hundred fifty feet of and being in common ownersh ip 

with Northeast Third Avenue and Northeast Sixth 

Avenue . For the purposes of definition, the words, 

" common ownership " contained herein shall be 

"contiguous to and owned by the same entity; and 

5. All lands not being used as a residence lying 

north of Northeast Second Street , east of Northeast 

Second Avenue , south of Northeast Sixth Street , and 

west of Federal Hi ghway , together with all lands fiet 

being used as a residence lying north of Southeast 

Seventh Street, east of the F.E.C . Railroad Tracks , 

south of Southeast Sixth Court, and west of Federal 

Highway, as legally described as foll ows : 

PARCEL I 

Page 3 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

2016 

hb0945-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 945 2016 

78 All of Blocks 1, 2 , 4 , 29 and 30, and portions of 

79 Blocks 33 and 34 , NORTH LAUDERDALE AMENDED, according 

80 to the p la t thereof recorded in Plat Book 1, Page 182, 

81 of the public records of Dade County , Florida ; 

82 TOGETHER WITH all of the Blocks 2 , 31 , and 32 , NORTH 

83 LAUDERDALE AMENDED RE - SUB, according to the plat 

84 thereof recorded in Plat Book 5, Page 25, of the 

85 public records of Broward Count y , Florida; ALSO 

8 6 TOGETHER WITH portions of Blocks A and B, GEORGE M. 

87 PHIPPEN S SUB ., according to the plat thereof recorded 

88 in Plat Book B, Page 146, of the public records of 

89 Dade County, Florida; ALSO TOGETHER WI TH portions of 

90 Blocks A and B, FORT LAUDERDALE LAND AND DEVELOPMENT 

91 CO. , SUB ., according to the p lat thereof recorded in 

92 Plat Book 1, Page 56 , of the publi c records of Dade 

93 County, Florida; AND ALSO TOGETHER WITH p o rtions of 

94 Northeast 3rd Street , Northeast 4th Street , Northeast 

95 5th Street , Northeast 5th Avenue , and No r theast 5th 

96 Terrace, lying adjacent to said Blocks, and being all 

97 mor e fully described as f o llows: 

98 

99 Beginning at the Northwest corner of Lot 26, of said 

100 Block 4, thence due South , on the West lines of said 

101 Bl ocks 4 and 29 , and extensions thereof, a distance of 

102 1300.00 feet; thence due East , on the North right- o f-

103 way line of said Northeast 4th Street , a distance 

Page 4 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



---- -------------------------------------------------

FLOR I DA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 945 2016 

104 83 . 99 feet ; thence due South , a distance of 50 . 00 

105 feet ; thence due East , on t he South right - of way line 

106 o f said Northeast 4th Stree t , a distance o f 392 feet ; 

107 thence South 00°01 ' 00 " West , on the West lines of Lots 

108 20 and 19 , Bl ock A, and the West line of Lot 20 , Bl oc k 

109 B, of sa i d GEORGE M. PHIPPENS SUB ., and extensions 

110 thereo f , a d istance of 495 . 00 feet ; thence South 

11 1 89°57 ' 4 6" East , on the South lines of Lo t s 20 , 18 , 16 , 

11 2 14 , 12 , 10 , 8 , 6 , 4 , and 2 , Block B, of said GEORGE M. 

113 PHIPPENS SUB . , and the Easterly ext e nsi on thereof , a 

114 d i stance of 720. 17 feet ; thence North 00°01 ' 54 " West , 

115 on the Souther l y extension of t h e East line o f Lo t 20 , 

116 Block A, o f said FORT LAUDER DALE LAND AND DEVE LOPMENT 

117 CO ., SUB . and the Northerly ex tensi on thereof , a 

118 d i stance of 205 . 47 feet , thence due West , on the North 

119 right - o f - way line of said Northeast 3rd St reet , a 

120 distanc e of 25.00 feet ; thence Nor t h 00°01 ' 00 " East , 

121 on the East l ines o f Lots 7 and 20 , Bl ock B, o f said 

122 FORT LAUDERDALE LAND AND DEVELOPMENT CO . SUB ., and 

123 extensions thereof , a distance of 289 . 15 feet ; thence 

124 due East , on the South r i ght - of- way line of Northeast 

125 4th Street , a distance of 169 . 75 feet ; thence Nor th 

126 00°17 ' 27 " East , on t h e West right - of way line of U. S . 

127 Hi ghway No . 1; a distance of 1323 . 87 f eet t o t h e Po i nt 

128 of Beginning less the fo l lowing descr i bed land : Lots 

129 20 , 21 , 22 , 23 , 24 , 25 and 26 , Bl oc k " B", FORT 

Page 5 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 945 2016 

130 LAUDERDALE LAND AND DEVELOPMENT CO . Sub d i v ision of 

131 Lots 1 and 2 , Block 1, Fo r t Lauderdale , accord ing to 

1 32 the plat thereo f, recorded in Plat Book 1 , Page 56, of 

133 the publi c records of Dade County , Florida, and Lots 2 

1 3 4 and 4, Block "A", GEORGE M. PHIPPEN' S SUBDIVIS I ON of 

135 Lots 3 , 4, 5 and 6 , Block 1, and Lots 3 , 4, 5 , 6, 7 , 

136 8 , 9 a nd 10 , Block 14, TOWN OF FORT LAUDERDALE, 

137 according to the plat thereof , recorded in Plat Book 

138 B, Page 146, o f the public re co r ds of Dade County, 

1 39 Fl o rida . 

1 40 

141 

142 

143 

144 

145 

14 6 

14 7 

14 8 

149 

150 

15 1 

1 52 

153 

154 

PARCEL II 

Lots 4, 5, 6 , 7 , 8 , 9 , 1 0 , 11 , 12, 13, 14, 15, 16 , 17 , 

18 , 19, 20 and 21, HARCOURT, according to the plat 

the reof , as recorded in Plat Book 2 , Page 9 , of the 

publi c records of Broward Coun ty, Flor ida; AND the 

west one-half (W 1/2) of Federal Hi ghway (US No. 1), 

lying Ea s t o f and adjacen t to sa id Lots 4, 5, 6 , 7, 9 , 

9 , 10, 11 and 12 ; AND the Eas t one-half (E 1/2) of 

S. E. 5th Terrace , lying West of and adjacent t o said 

Lots 14, 15 , 16, 17 , 18 , 19 , 20 a nd 21. 

TOGETHER WITH: 

Page 6 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB945 2016 

155 Lots 4, 5, 6 , 7 , 8 , 9 , 10, 1 1 and 12, HENRY 

156 SHACKELFORD AMENDED PLAT SUBDIV I SION OF LOTS 2 & 3 , 

157 BLOCK 57 , TOWN OF FORT LAUDERDALE, according to the 

158 p lat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 3 , Page 3 , of 

159 the public records of Dade County , Florida; AND the 

160 West one-ha lf of S .E. 5th Terrace, lying East of 

161 adjacent to and referenced Lots; AND the East one - half 

162 of S.E . 5th Avenue , l ying West of adjacent of above 

163 referenced Lo t s . 

164 

165 

166 

167 

168 

169 

170 

171 

172 

173 

174 

175 

176 

177 

178 

179 

180 

TOGE THER WITH: 

Lots 4 , 5, 6 , 7 , 8, 9 , 10, 11 and 12 , RE - AMENDED PLAT 

OF HENRY SHACKELFORD'S SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 2 & 3 , 

BLOCK 57, TOWN OF FORT LAUDERDALE, according to the 

plat thereof, as r ecorded in Pl at Book 3, Page 3 of 

the public records of Dade County , Florida; AND the 

West one - ha lf of S.E. 5th Avenue, lying East of 

ad j acent to and referenced Lots; AND the East one - half 

of S .E. 4th Avenue , lying West of adjacent to the 

above referenced Lots. 

AND ALSO TOGETHER WI TH: 

Lots 2, 3 , 4, 5, 6 , 7 , 8 and 9 , MRS. DAISY 

SHACKELFORD ' S AMENDED NEW SUBDIVISION OF LOT 4, BLOCK 

Page 7 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 945 2016 

1 81 57 , TOWN OF FORT LAUDERDALE, according to the plat 

182 thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 1, Page 165, of the 

183 publ i c records of Dade County, Florida, AND 10.00 foot 

184 Alley adjacent to said Lot 6 and Lots 7, 8 & 9 ; AND 

1 85 the West one - half of (W 1/2) of S.E. 4t h Avenue, lying 

186 East of and adjacent to above referenced Lots. 

187 

188 

189 

190 

191 

192 

193 

194 

195 

196 

1 97 

1 98 

199 

200 

201 

202 

203 

204 

205 

206 

AND ALSO TOGETHER WITH: 

Lots 5 , 6 , 7, 8 , 9, 10, 11 a n d 12, SOUTH FLORIDA 

DREDGING COMPANY DI VISION OF LOT 5, BLOCK 57, TOWN OF 

FORT LAUDERDALE, according to the plat thereof, as 

recorded in Plat Book 3, Page 27, of the public 

records of Broward County, Flor i da; AND 10.00 foot 

Alley adjacent to Lot 9 and Lots 10 , 11 and 12; AND 

5.50 foot Alley lying East of and adjacent to above 

referenced Lots; AND the East one -half (E1/2) of S .E. 

3rd Avenue , lying West of and adjacent to said Lots. 

AND ALSO TOGETHER WITH: 

The South 80 . 00 feet of Lots 2 , 4 and 6 , Block 3 , all 

of Bl ocks 4, 5 and 6, SUBDIV I SION OF BLOCK 56 , TOWN OF 

FORT LAUDERDALE, accord i ng to the plat thereof, as 

recorded in Pl at Book 1, Page 63, of the public 

records of Dade County , Florida; AND the West one-half 

Page 8 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 945 2016 

207 (Wl/2) of S . E . 3rd Avenue , lying East of and adjacent 

208 to above referenced South 80 . 00 feet o f Lot 2 and said 

209 Bl ock 6 ; AND the East one - half (E 1/2) of S . E . 1st 

2 10 Avenue , lying West of and adjacent to above referenced 

2 11 Bl ock 4 ; AND the North one - half (N l /2) of S . E . 6th 

212 Court, lying South of and adjacent to said Lots 2 , 4 

213 and 6, Block 3 ; AND the South one - half of S .E. 6th 

214 

215 

216 

217 

218 

219 

220 

221 

222 

223 

22 4 

225 

226 

227 

228 

229 

230 

231 

Court , lying North of and adjacent to said Blocks 4 , 5 

and 6 . 

AND ALSO TOGETHER WITH : 

Lots 17 , 18 , 1 9 , 20 and 21, Block 55 , TOWN OF FORT 

LAUDERDALE, according to the plat thereof , as recorded 

in Pl at Book " B", Page 40 , of the public records of 

Dade County , Florida , AND Parcel " A"; AND the East 

one - half of Andrews Avenue , l ying West of and adjacent 

to said Parcel "A"; AND all that certain 14 . 00 f oot 

Alley within said Block 55 , lying North and East of 

said Parcel "A"; AND all that certain irregul ar Alley, 

l ying North of said Parcel " A" and South of said Lot 

17 . 

AND ALSO TOG ETH ER WITH ; 

Page 9 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

232 

233 

234 

235 

236 

237 

238 

239 

240 

241 

242 

243 

244 

245 

246 

247 

248 

249 

250 

251 

252 

253 

254 

255 

256 

257 

HB 945 

Lots 4, 5, 6 , 7, 8 , 9 , 10, 11 , 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 

18, 1 9 , 20 and 21, Block 54, TOWN OF FORT LAUDERDALE, 

accord ing to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat 

Book "B", Page 40 , o f the public records of Dade 

County , Florida; AND the West one -half (W1/2 ) of 

Andrews Avenue, lying East of and adjacent to said 

Lots 1 3 , 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19 , 20 and 21; AND the 

East one-half of S.W. 1st Avenue lying West of and 

adjacent to said Lots 4 , 5 , 6 , 7 , 8, 9 , 10, 11 and 12 ; 

AND all that certain 14. 00 fo ot Alley in said Block 

54, l yi ng adjacent t o above referenced Lots. 

AND ALSO TOGETHER WITH: 

Lots 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 , 9 , 10, 11 , 12 , 13, 14, 15, 1 6 , 17, 

18 , 1 9 and Lot 20, less the North 25.00 feet thereof, 

Block 53, TOWN OF FORT LAUDERDALE, according to the 

plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book "B", Page 40, 

of the public records of Dade County , Flor ida ; AND the 

West one -ha lf of (W1/2) of S.W. 1st Avenue, lying East 

of and adjacent to said Lots 13 , 14, 15 , 16, 17, 18, 

19 and Lot 20 , less the North 25 . 00 feet thereof; AND 

all of S.W. Flagler Avenue lying West of and adjacent 

to said Lots 4 , 5, 6 , 7 , 8 , 9, 10, 11 and 12; AND the 

East one -half (E1 /2) o f the Florida East Coast 

Ra ilroad Right-of-Way, lying West of said S .W . Flagler 

Page 10 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

2016 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESEN T ATIVES 

258 

259 

2 60 

261 

262 

263 

264 

265 

266 

267 

268 

269 

270 

271 

272 

273 

274 

275 

276 

277 

278 

279 

280 

281 

282 

283 

HB 945 

Avenue and South of the Westerly extension of the 

Nor t h line of sa i d Lot 4 and North of the Westerly 

extens i on of the Northerly right of way li ne of S.W. 

7th Street. 

Said lands situate , l ying and being in the Ci ty of 

Fort Lauderdale, Broward County , Fl or i da , a nd 

containing 24 . 8679 Acres more or l ess. 

6. (a) All l ands no t be i ng used a r es i dence lying 

south of New River , east of the Flor i da East Coast 

Railroad , north of Southeast Sixth Street and 

Southwest Sixth Street , and west of Southeast Sixth 

Avenue. 

(b) All lands no t being u sed a residence lying south 

of Southeast and Southwest Si xth Streets , east of the 

Florida East Coast Rai l road, and west of Southeast 

Sixth Avenu e, which are situated within one hundred 

fifty feet (150' ) of and are i n contiguous 

proprietorship with Southeast or Southwest Sixth 

Street , upon approva l of the majo r ity of those voting 

i n a re f erend um in wh i ch those participating a r e 

limi ted to the electors of the downtown (including 

a l so the lands added to the downtown by this act) who 

at the time of t he referendum are owners of freeho l ds 

Page 11 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

2016 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESEN T ATIVES 

284 

285 

286 

287 

288 

289 

290 

291 

292 

293 

294 

295 

296 

297 

298 

299 

300 

301 

302 

303 

304 

305 

306 

307 

308 

309 

HB 945 

in the downtown (as hereby expanded) , not wholly 

exempt from taxation, and who are then duly registered 

for a Downtown Development Authority referendum, 

according to law. For the purposes of such referendum, 

the electors who register only as owners of freeholds 

which are situated within the lands authorized to be 

added to the downtown by this act may be separately 

registered and their votes cast in separate ballot 

boxes or voting machines (as the case may be) and 

separately tabulated , in case on or more other 

questi ons are being voted upon at such referendum, and 

such separate registrants shal l thus be permitted to 

vote upon such o ther question or questions. If this 

law is approved at such referendum, such separately 

registered electors shall be incorporated into the 

permanent registrati on of electors of the Downtown 

Development Authority and their votes then counted o n 

any other quest i on or questions vo ted upon at such 

referendum . 

7 . All of lots 14, 15 1 16 1 17 , 18 , 19 1 20 , 21 1 22 , 

231 24 , 25 1 2 61 27 , 2 8 1 29 , 30 , 31 , 32 , 33 , 34 , 35 , 

38 , 39 , 40, 41 , 42 , 4 31 44 , 4 5 1 4 61 47 and 48 , and 

po r tions of Lots 1 1 2 1 3 , 4 I 5 , 6 , 7 I 8 , 9, 101 11 , 

1 2 , 13 , 36 and 37 , Bloc k 19 , BRYAN SUBDIVISION of 

Bl ocks 5 , 8 and 19 , of the To wn of Fo rt Lauderdale , as 

Page 12 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

201 6 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB945 2016 

310 recorded in Plat Book 1, Page 18 , of the public 

311 records of Dade County , Florida , together with 

312 po r t i ons of those certain 10 foot alleys , lying within 

313 said Block 19 , 

314 

315 TOGETHER WI TH al l of Lots 2 , 3 , 4 , 5 , 6 , 7 , 8 , 9 , and 

316 10 , AND A PORTION OF Lot 1 , Block 18 , TOWN OF FORT 

317 LAUDERDALE , as recorded in Plat Book 8 , Page 40 , of 

318 the public records of Dade County , Florida , together 

319 with that portion of a 14 - foot alley lying within said 

320 Block 18 , 

321 

322 

323 

324 

325 

326 

327 

328 

329 

330 

331 

332 

333 

334 

335 

ALSO TOGETHER WITH all of Lots 1 and 2 , T . M. BRYAN 

SUBDIVISION of Lots 11 and 12 , Block 18 , Town of Fort 

Lauderdale , as recorded in Plat Book 3 , Page 12 , of 

the public records of Dade County , Florida , 

ALSO TOGETHER WITH a l l of Lots 6 , 7 , 8 and 9 , and 

portions of Lots 1 , 2 , 3 , 4 and 5 , Block 1 , a ll of 

Lots 6 , 7 , 8 , 9 , 10 and 11 and portions of Lots 1 , 2 , 

3 , 4 and 5 , Block 2 KELLY ' S RESUBDIVISION, as recorded 

in Plat Book 16 , Page 50 , of the public records of 

Broward County , Florida , 

ALSO TOGETHER WITH all of Lots 1 , 2 , 3 , 4 , 5 , 6 , 7 , 8 , 

9 , 10 , 11 , 12 , 13 , 14 , 15 , 16 , 17 , 18 , 19 , 20 , 21 , 22 , 

Page 13 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB945 2016 

336 23 , 24, A, B and C, HULDA S . HO LMES SUBDIVIS I ON of 

337 Block 23 , Fort Lauderdale, as recorded in Plat Book 7, 

338 Page 26, of the public records of Broward County , 

339 Florida , 

340 

341 

342 

343 

344 

345 

346 

347 

348 

349 

350 

351 

352 

353 

354 

355 

356 

357 

358 

359 

360 

361 

ALSO TOGETHER WITH Lots 1 , 2, 3, and 4, and a portion 

of Lot 5 , Bl ock 24 , TOWN OF FORT LAUDE RDALE , as 

recorded in Plat Book 8, Page 40 , of the public 

records of Dade County, Florida, 

ALSO TOGETHER WITH all of Lots 1 , 2 , 3, and 4, F.H. 

BENTON'S SUBDIVISION in Block 24, Town of Fort 

Lauderdale , as re corded in Plat Book 3, Page 30 , of 

the public records of Broward County, Florida , 

together with al l that portion of a 10 foot driveway 

and cu l-de- sac of said F. H. BENTON ' S SUBDIVIS I ON , 

ALSO TOGETHER WITH a ll of Lots 1 and 2, Canal 2 and 

Canal 3 and portions of Lots 6 , 7, 8 , 9 , 10 , 11 and 13 

and Canal No. 1 , L.H. BRYAN ' S SUBDIVISION of Block 32 , 

of Fort Lauderdale, Florida , as recorded in Plat Book 

3, Page 78 , of the public records of Dade County , 

Florida, 

AND ALSO TOGETHER WI TH portions of S.W. Fifth Avenue , 

S .W. Sixth Avenue , S.W. Second Street , S.W . Second 

Page 14 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB945 2016 

362 Court, Las Olas Boulevard, N. W. River Drive and North 

363 River Street , lying within or adjacent to the above 

364 said Blocks and being all more fully described as 

365 follows: 

366 

367 

368 

369 

370 

371 

372 

373 

374 

375 

376 

377 

378 

379 

380 

38 1 

382 

383 

384 

385 

386 

387 

Commencing at the Northwest corner of Lot 24 of said 

Block 18 , TOWN OF FORT LAUDERDALE, thence South 0° 07 ' 

30 " East , along the Eas t line of said alley within 

Block 18 , a distance of 15 . 00 feet to the Point of 

Beginning ; thence continuing South 0° 07 ' 24 " East , 

along the East line of said alley a d i stance of 585 . 04 

fe et ; thence South 89° 59 ' 02 " East, a distance of 

40.97 feet , thence South 0° 07 ' 24 " East , along the 

Northerly extension of the East line of the said F . H. 

BENTON'S SUBDIVISION , and along the said East line , a 

distance of 316 . 49 fe et to a point on the existing 

bulkhead forming the Northerly limits of New River ; 

thence Westerly and Southerly along the said existing 

bulkhead and extensions thereof , the fol l owing 11 

courses and distances : thence North 87° 04 ' 09 " West , 

a distance o f 37 . 36 fee t ; thence South 86° 43 ' 52 " 

West , a distance of 13.74 feet , thence South 77° 14 ' 

35 " West , a distance of 50 . 12 feet , thence South 73° 

43' 38 " West, a distance of 43 . 15 feet; thence South 

54° 27 ' 01 " West a distance o f 67 . 25 feet; thence 

South 45° 58 " 48 ' East, a distance of 7 . 62 feet ; 

Page 15 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

388 

389 

390 

391 

392 

393 

394 

395 

396 

397 

398 

399 

400 

401 

402 

403 

404 

405 

406 

407 

408 

409 

410 

411 

41 2 

413 

HB 945 

thence South 35° 35 ' 21 " West , a distance of 175 . 30 

feet; thence South 7 ° 34 ' 3 1 ' West , a distance o f 

51 . 2 6 feet ; thence South 2° 01 ' 02 " West , a d i stance 

of 25 . 35 feet , thence South 7° 22 ' 59 " West , a 

distance of 205 .31 feet, thence South 29° 18 ' 46 " 

West , a distance o f 92 . 94 feet to the Point of 

Terminat ion of the said 11 courses and distances ; 

thence North 89° 59 ' 37 " West , along the Easterly 

extension o f the South line of Canal No. 3 of L . H. 

BRYAN ' S SUBDIVIS I ON and along the said South line and 

extensions thereof , a distance of 211 . 49 feet to a 

point on the Easterly right-of-way line of S.W . 

Seventh Avenue and a point on a curve ; thence 

Northwesterly along the said Easter ly right - of - way 

line and al ong a curve to the right, whose tangent 

bears North 54° 00 ' 36 " West , with a radius of 630 . 35 

feet and a central angle of 18° 52 ' 41 ", an arc 

distance o f 207 . 69 feet to a point of compound curve; 

thence Northwesterly along the sa id Easterl y right - of 

way line and al ong a curve to the right, with a radius 

of 513 . 96 feet and a central angle of 35° 00 ' 00 ", an 

arc distance o f 3 13.96 feet to a point of tangency ; 

thence North 0° 07 ' 55 " West , along the said Easterly 

right - of- way line and along the line 20 . 00 fe et East 

of and parallel with the West line of said Block 1 and 

2 of said KELLY ' S SUBDIVISI ON and along the line of 

Page 16 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

2016 

hb0945-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

414 

415 

416 

417 

41 8 

41 9 

420 

421 

422 

423 

424 

425 

426 

427 

428 

429 

430 

431 

HB 945 

20.00 fe et East of and paralle l with the West line o f 

said Block 19 , BRYAN SUBD I VIS I ON o f Blocks 5 , 8 and 

19 , a distance o f 1008 . 08 feet to a point o f curve ; 

thence Northeasterly along a cu r ve to the right , with 

a radius o f 25 . 00 feet and a central angle of 90° 07 ' 

55 ", an arc distance o f 39 . 33 feet to a p oint o f 

tangency; thence d ue East , along the South right - of 

way line o f Broward Boulevard and along the line 15 . 00 

fee t South o f and parallel with the North line o f said 

Block 19, BRYAN SUBDI VISI ON of Blocks 5 , 8 and 19 and 

said Block 18, TOWN OF FORT LAUDERDALE, a distance o f 

898 . 88 f eet t o the Po int of Beginning. 

All of the above said land situate , lying and being i n 

the City of Fort Lauderda l e , Broward County , Fl o rida , 

and conta ining 22 . 8328 acres mo re or less . 

Section 3 . Sections 11, 12 , 13 , and 15 of sect i o n 3 of 

432 c hapter 2005 - 346 , Laws o f Florida , are amended to read : 

2016 

433 Section 11 . The director shall prepare and submit f or the 

434 approval o f the board a budget for the operation of t he 

435 a uthori ty for the next fiscal yea r. With in 30 days The budget 

436 shall conform to the fiscal year of the city and shall contain 

437 the information required of all city departments. after approval 

438 b y the b oard , a copy of the budget shall be de live r ed to the 

439 c i ty by the director v.'ith a statement of the millage required 

Page 17 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 945 2016 

440 therefor as detenained by the board, ,,,hieh millage shall be 

441 levied by the city eoffiffiission not to eJweed the limits fiHed by 

442 ±aw. The operat i ons of the authority shall be financed from any 

443 lawful source , including the following sources : 

444 (1) Moneys borrowed and to be repaid from other funds 

445 received under the authority of this act . 

446 (2) Donations and contributions to the authority for the 

447 per forman ce of its functions from any source, public or private. 

448 (3) Revenues from the rental, ope ration, or sale of 

449 assets, facilities, and projects of the authority . 

450 (4) Proceeds of special assessments and an ad valorem tax 

451 of property in the downtown area . 

452 Section 12 . The authority city eoffiffiission is authorized to 

453 levy an ad valorem tax on all downtown real and personal 

454 property not exceeding 1 mill on the dollar valuation (as such 

455 valuat ions are assessed f or the general ad valorem r o ll o f the 

456 city) of such property f or the purpose of financing the 

457 operation of the authority provided that no tax under this l aw 

458 shall be levied upon property which is exempt from taxation by 

459 general or constitutional law. The €±ty tax collector shall 

460 transmit funds so collected to the appropriate officer of the 

461 authority e±ty responsible for the handling of the public money 

462 who shall deposit same in a bank account the city treasury to 

4 63 the credit of the authority. Such money shall be used for no 

464 purpose other than those purposes authorized herein and on l y 

465 upon approval of the board , pursuant to vouchers signed by the 

Page 18 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 945 

466 director and the treasurer of the authority . The funds of the 

467 authority shall be secured as other public funds are secured. 

468 Other moneys received by the authority shall forthwith be 

2016 

469 deposited in the bank account eity treasury to the credit of the 

470 authority, subject to disbursement as herein authorized. 

471 Section 13. The authority shall comply with the Truth in 

472 Millage rules and s. 200 . 065 , Florida Statutes, when adopting 

473 its budget and assessing the ad va l orem tax authorized by this 

4 7 4 act city coffifflission shall have the pO'><'er to assess against the 

475 funds of the authority, for the use and benefit of the general 

476 fund of the city, a reasonable pro rata share of such funds for 

4 77 the cost of handling and auditing, '><'hich assessment '><'hen made 

478 shall be paid annually by the board pursuant to an appropriate 

479 item in the budget. 

480 Section 15. On December 31 , 2050 ~' this law shall 

481 expire and all assets of the authority shall on or before that 

482 date be transferred by the authority to the city. Any assets 

483 remaining in the hands of the authority on December 31, 2050 

484 ~' shall automatica lly devolve upon and become the property 

485 of the city. In the event there shall be any indebtedness 

486 outstanding against the author i ty , the city may continue to levy 

487 whatever portion shall be necessary of the tax authorized by 

488 this law t o retire such indebtedness. 

489 Section 4. This act shall take effect only upon its 

490 approval by a majority vote of those qualified electors residing 

491 within the corporate limits of the Downtown Development 

Page 19 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 945 2016 

492 Author i ty o f the City of Fort Lauderdale , as described in 

493 section 2 , voting in a referendum to be held in con jun c tion with 

494 the next general , special , or other e l ection to be held in 

495 Broward County , except that this section shall take effect upon 

496 becoming a law . 

Page 20 of 20 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0945-00 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendme n t No . 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No . HB 945 (2016) 

COMMITT EE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECT I ON 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WITHDRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bi l l : Local Government Affairs 

2 Subcommit t ee 

3 Represen t a t ive DuBose offered the follow ing : 

4 

5 Amendment (with title amendment) 

6 Remove lines 480 - 488 

7 

8 

9 

10 T I T L E A M E N D M E N T 

11 Remove lines 7- 8 a nd i nsert : 

12 for final adoption of budget and millage ; requiring a 

102479 - HB 945 Arnendment1 . docx 

Published On : 1/15/2016 5 : 50 : 24 PM 

Page 1 of 1 





HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS 

BILL#: HB 971 Community Development Districts 
SPONSOR(S): Sullivan 
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 1156 

REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST 

1) Local Government Affairs Subcommittee 

2) Economic Development & Tourism Subcommittee 

3) Local & Federal Affairs Committee 

SUMMARY ANALYSIS 

STAFF DIRECTOR or 
BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF 

Community development districts (COD) are a type of special-purpose local government intended to provide 
basic urban community services in a cost-effective manner. The operation of COOs is governed by Chapter 
190, F.S. , the "Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980." Depending on their size, COOs are 
created by a county or municipal ordinance or the adoption of a rule by the Florida Land and Water 
Adjudicatory Commission (FLWAC). There are currently 605 active CDDs in Florida. 

The bill would increase the size of COOs that may be created by a county or municipal ordinance from 1 ,000 
acres or less to 2,500 acres or less. The bill makes corresponding changes to the threshold for creating a COD 
by FLWAC rule and the process for determining district expansion. The bill clarifies COOs may contract with 
towing operators to provide services to facilities and property owned by the district. The bill also creates a 
merger procedure for multiple districts created by ordinances of the same county or municipality. 

The bill provides an effective date of July 1, 2016. 

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives. 
STORAGE NAME: h0971.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/15/2016 



FULL ANALYSIS 

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS 

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES: 

Present Situation 

Chapter 190, F.S., the "Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980,"1 sets forth the exclusive 
and uniform procedures for establishing and operating a community development district (CDD).2 This 
type of independent special districe is an alternative method to manage and finance basic services for 
community development.4 There are currently 605 active COOs in Florida.5 

A COD must act within the constraints of applicable comprehensive plans, ordinances, and regulations 
of the local general purpose government.6 COOs have certain general powers, including the authority to 
assess and impose ad valorem taxes upon lands in the COD, sue and be sued, participate in the state 
retirement system, contract for services, borrow money, accept gifts, adopt rules and orders pursuant 
to the APA, maintain an office, lease, issue bonds, raise money by user charges or fees, and levy and 
enforce special assessments.7 

The statute also authorizes additional special powers pertaining to public improvements and facilities, 
such as systems for water management, water supply, sewer, and wastewater management, as well as 
roads, bridges, culverts, street lights, buses, trolleys, transit shelters, ridesharing facilities and services, 
parking improvements, signage, environmental contamination, conservation areas, mitigation areas, 
and wildlife habitat.8 With the consent of the applicable local general-purpose government with 
jurisdiction over the affected area, a COD may plan, establish, acquire, construct or reconstruct, 
enlarge or extend, equip, operate, and maintain additional systems and facilities for improvements such 
as parks and recreational areas, fire prevention and control , school buildings and related structures; 
security; control and elimination of mosquitoes and other arthropods of public health importance; waste 
collection and disposal.9 

Establishing a COD 

Petition for Rulemaking by the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission 

The method for establishing a COD depends upon its size. COOs of 1 ,000 acres or more are 
established by petitioning the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission (FLWAC)10 to adopt an 

1 Section 190.001 , F.S. 
2 Sections 190.004 & 190.005, F.S . 
3 A "special district" is "a unit of local government created for a special purpose ... within a limited geographic boundary ... created 
by general law, special act, local ordinance, or by rule of the Governor and Cabinet." Section 189.0 12(6), F.S. An "independent 
special district" is characterized by having a govern ing body the members of which are not identical in membership to, nor all 
appointed by, nor any removable at will by, the governing body of a single county or municipality, and the district budget cannot be 
affirmed or vetoed by the governing body of a single county or municipality. Section 189.0 12(3), F.S. Any special district including 
more than one county is an independent special district, unless the district lies wholly within a single municipality. Section 
189.012(3), F.S. 
4 Section 190.003(6), F.S. 
5 Department of Economic Opportunity, Official List of Special Districts Online- Directory, available at 
https://dca.deo.myflorida.com/fhcd/sdip/OfficialListdeo/ (last visited Jan. 13 , 2016). 
6 Section 190.004(3), F.S. 
7 Section 190.QJ I , F.S. 
8 Section 190.0 12(1 ), F.S. The rule or ordinance establishing the CDD may restrict the special powers authorized in this subsection. 
Section 190.005(l)(f), (2)(d) , F.S. 
9 Section 190.012(2), F.S. 
1° Created by s. 380.07, F.S., the FLWAC is comprised of the Administration Commission, which in tum is created by s. 14.202, F.S., 
and is composed of the Governor and Cabinet. This distinction affects the requirements for an affirmative vote by the FL WAC. Unless 
STORAGE NAME: h0971 .LGAS.DOCX PAGE: 2 
DATE: 1/15/2016 



administrative rule creating the district. 11 The statute requires each petition to contain specific 
information, including the written consent to establishing the COD by all landowners 12 of real property to 
be included in the district. 13 Prior to filing, the petitioner must submit copies of the petition and pay 
separate filing fees of $15,000 each to the county or municipality in which the proposed COD will be 
located and also to each municipality contiguous with or containing a portion of the land proposed for 
inclusion in the district. 14 The counties and municipalities required to receive copies of the petition may 
conduct public hearings and express support or objection to the proposed district by resolution and by 
stating their position before the FLWAC. 15 Additionally, a public hearing on the petition must be held in 
the county where the COD will be located; these hearings are conducted under the requirements of the 
Administrative Procedure Act16 before an administrative law judge.17 Once the hearing process is 
complete, the entire record is submitted to the FLWAC, reviewed by staff, and placed on the FLWAC 
meeting agenda for final consideration with the petition. 18 If the petition is approved, staff of the FLWAC 
initiates proceedings to adopt the rule creating the COD. 

APA Rulemaking Requirements 

A rule creating a COD may not expand, modify, or delete any of the statutory requirements for a COD 
charter, except for inclusion or exclusion of special powers as provided in s. 190.012, F.S.19 

Rulemaking begins with publication of a notice of rule development.20 Once the final form of the rule is 
developed, the agency must publish a notice of the proposed rule before it rna¥: be adopted .21 The 
publication of this notice triggers certain deadlines for the rulemaking process. 2 The notice must 
include the full text of the proposed rule, other additional information, and the procedure to request a 
hearing on the proposed rule. 23 Once the statutory rulemaking requirements are met, the FLWAC may 
file the rule with the Department of State for final adoption and the rule typically goes into effect 20 days 
from this filing unless the notice of proposed rule provides a later date.24 

otherwise provided in law, the statutory voting requirements for the Administration Commission apply and affirmation by the 
FLWAC requires approval by the Governor and at least 2 Cabinet members. 
11 Section 190.005( 1), F.S. 
12"'Landowner" means the owner of a freehold estate as appears by the deed record , including a trustee, a pri vate corporation, and an 
owner of a condominium unit; it does not include a reversioner, remainderman, mortgagee, or any governmental entity, who shall not 
be counted and need not be notified of proceedings under this act. Landowner shall also mean the owner of a ground lease from a 
governmental entity, which leasehold interest has a remaining term, excluding all renewal options, in excess of 50 years." Section 
190.003(14), F.S . 
13 Section 190.005(1)(a), F.S. 
14 Section 190.005(1 )(b), F.S. 
15 Section 190.005(1)(c), F.S. 
16 Ch. 120, F.S. The general hearing requirements are stated in ss. 120.569 and 120.57( 1), F.S. 
17 Section 190.005( 1)(d), F.S.; Rules 42-1.009 & 42-l.ol2, F.A.C. Chapter 42-1 , F.A.C., the procedural rules of the FLWAC, remains 
substantially unchanged since its adoption in 1982. 
18 Section 190.005(l)(e), F.S. A similar process is followed when the FLWAC considers a proposed merger of existing CDDs. See 
FLW AC Agenda Item 1 and attachments (Aug. 8, 20 11 ), at http://www.myflorida.com/myflorida/cabinet/agenda11/08 16/index.html 
(last visited Jan. 13, 201 6). 
19 Section 190.005(1 )(f) , F.S. The statute permits the rule to contain only the metes and bounds description of the real property 
included in the CDD, the names of the 5 members of the initial board of supervisors for the CDD, and the name of the CDD. 
20 Section 120.54(2), F.S. 
2 1 Section 120.54(3)(a) l. , F.S. 
22 Persons affected by the proposed rule have 21 days from the date of publication to request a hearing on the proposed rule. Section 
120.54(3)(c), F.S. Those wanting to submit a lower cost regulatory alternative to the proposed rule have the same 21 day time limit. 
Sections 120.54(3)(a) 1., 120.541 ( I )(a) , F.S. The agency must wait at least 28 days from the date of publication before fi ling the 
proposed rule for final adoption. Section 120.54(3)(a)2., (3)(e) l. , F.S. 
23 Section 120.54(3)(a) l ., F.S. 
24 Section 120.54(3)(e)6., F.S.1f the rule itself increases regulatory costs in excess of$1 million over the first 5 years fro m 
implementation the rule cannot go into effect until ratifi ed by the Legislature. Section 120.54 1 (3) , F.S. 
STORAGE NAME: h0971 .LGAS.DOCX PAGE: 3 
DATE: 1/15/2016 



Petition for Ordinance Creating a COD 

COOs of less than 1 ,000 acres are established by ordinance of the county having jurisdiction over the 
majority of land in the area in which the COD is to be located, with certain exceptions.25 A petition to 
establish a COD is filed with the county commission.26 After conducting a local public hearing before an 
administrative law judge,27 the commission may adopt an ordinance creating the CDD.28 If any of the 
land proposed for inclusion in the COD lies within the area of a municipality the county cannot create 
the district without approval of the affected municipality. 29 

If all the land proposed for inclusion in the COD lies within the territorial jurisdiction of a municipality, the 
petition is filed with that municipality which then exercises the duties otherwise performed by the county 
commission.30 In this case, the COD would be created by municipal ordinance. Within 90 days of 
receiving the petition, the county commission (or municipality, as applicable) may transfer the petition to 
the FLWAC.31 Finally, if all the land of the proposed COD lies within the territorial jurisdiction of two or 
more municipalities, the petition must be filed with the FLWAC even if the total area is less than 1,000 
acres.32 

Requirements for Notice, Meeting, and Vote of Landowners in a COD 

The powers of a COD are exercised by the board of supervisors elected by the landowners of the 
district. 33 The board must have five members serving two or four year terms. 34 The initial members of 
the board are designated in the original petition to create the COD and serve until new members are 
elected after the district is established.35 A meeting of landowners for the purpose of electing the board 
must be held within 90 days of the effective date of the rule or ordinance creating the district. 36 Each 
landowner is entitled to one vote for each acre he or she owns. 37 The top two candidates are elected to 
four year terms, while the next three candidates are elected to two year terms.38 A new board election, 
held among the qualified electors of the district, occurs when either the board proposes to exercise its 
ad valorem taxing authority or six years after the formation of the district (ten years for districts 
exceeding 5,000 acres).39 Once the statutory requirements are met for election of one or more board 
member by all qualified electors in the district, such elections are non-partisan general elections 
conducted by the supervisor of elections.40 

Special Powers of a COD 

In addition to the general powers granted to a COD ins. 190.011, F.S., a COD may exercise additional 
powers subject to the consent of other regulatory and permitting bodies encompassing the territory of 

25 Section 190.005(2), F.S. 
26 Section 190.005(2)(a), F.S. The petition must contain the same information as required for submission to the FLW AC. 
27 Section 190.005(2)(b), F.S. The hearing must follow the same notice and procedural requirements as the local hearing for petitions 
before the FLWAC. 
28 Sees. 190.005(2)(d), F.S. 
29 Section 190.005(2)(e), F.S. 
30 Section 190.005(2)(e), F.S. 
31 Section 190.005(2)(£), F.S. 
32 Section 190.005(2)(e), F.S. 
33 Section 190.006(1), F.S . 
34 Jd. 
35 Sections 190.005(1 )(a)3. , 190.005(2)(a), F.S. 
36 Section 190.006(2)(a), F.S. 
37 Section 190.006(2)(b ), F.S. 
38 Jd. 
39 Sections 190.006(3)(a)l.-2., F.S .. ). For CDDs with less than certain minimum numbers of qualified electors after 6 or 10 years, as 
applicable, the district landowners shall continue to elect the board members (s. 190.006(3)(a)2.a., F.S.) until the number of qualified 
electors in the district exceeds the statutory minimum (s. 190.006(3)(a)2.b., F.S.). 
40 Section 190.006(3)(b ), F.S. The statute does not specify which supervisor of elections conducts the board election if the district 
encompasses property in more than one county. 
STORAGE NAME: h0971.LGAS.DOCX PAGE: 4 
DATE: 1/15/2016 



the district.41 With the consent of the local general-purpose government, a COD may operate and 
maintain facilities for: 

• Indoor and outdoor recreational , cultural, and educational uses;42 

• Fire prevention and control ;43 

• School buildings and related structures;44 

• Security systems, except that the district may not exercise any police power.45 

Financial Reporting by a COD 

COOs are subject to the financial reporting requirements of Chapters, 189, 190, and 218, F.S.46 The 
district manager is responsible for drafting a proposed budget on or before June 15 of each year.47 The 
board of the COD considers the proposed budget, makes amendments (as necessary), and adopts the 
budget by resolution .48 After the board adopts the budget, a public hearing on the budget is held and 
the board may make further changes as it deems necessary.49 At least sixty days prior to adoption , 
district is required to submit its budget to the local government entities having jurisdiction over the 
area. 5° This submission is for the purposes of disclosure and information only, but the local government 
entities may submit written comments to the COD board .51 CDDs are also required to take affirmative 
steps to provide full disclosure of information related to public financing and maintenance of 
improvements constructed by the district. 52 The district must furnish any developer of residential 
property in the district with sufficient copies of this information to be able to provide a copy to each 
prospective initial purchaser of property. 53 Districts must file disclosures of this information in the 
property records of each county in which the district is located. 54 DEO is required to keep a current list 
of districts and their disclosures of public financing . 55 

COOs, like other special districts, also must comply with the annual financial reporting and financial 
audit reporting requirements of Chapter 218, F.S. 56 A COD with revenues or total expenditures or 
expenses in excess of $100,000 is required to have an annual audit conducted by an independent 
certified public accountant. 57 The auditor shall review the financial accounts and records of the district, 
reports on compliance and internal control , management letters, and financial statements, as required 
by rules adopted by the Auditor General. 58 The auditor must present these findings to the chair of the 
district's governing board and submit a copy of the report to the Auditor General. 59 The audit report is a 

41 Section 190.0 12, F.S. 
42 Section 190.0 12(2)(a), F.S. 
43 Section 190.0 12(2)(b), F.S. 
44 Section 190.0 12(2)(c), F.S. 
45 Section 190.012(2)(d), F.S. 
46 Sections 189.0 13, 190.008( 1), F.S. 
47 Section 190.008(2)(a), F.S. 
48 !d. 
49 !d. 
50 Section 190.008(2)(b ), F.S. 
51 Section 190.008(2)(b)-(c), F.S. 
52 Section 190.009(1), F.S. 
53 !d. 
54 Section 190.009(1), F.S. 
55 Section 190.009(2), F.S. 
56 Section 189.016(9), F.S. , s. 190.008(1), F.S. 
57 Section 218.39(1 ), F.S. An entity is exempt from this requirement if it is informed by the first day of the fiscal year that the Auditor 
General will be conducting an audit of the entity for that fiscal year. 
58 Section 218.39(2), F.S . The rules ofthe Auditor General are Rules 10.550, 10.650, 10.700, 10.800, and 10.850, F.A.C. See Rule 
61H1-20.0093, F.A.C. 
59 Sections 218.39(5), (7), F.S. 
STORAGE NAME: h0971 .LGAS.DOCX PAGE: 5 
DATE: 1/15/201 6 



public record once the report is submitted by the auditor to the district. 5° All CDDs are required to file an 
annual financial report with the Department of Financial Services.61 

Expansion or Contraction of a COD 

A landowner or the board of a COD may petition for the boundaries of the district to be expanded or 
contracted .62 This petition must contain the same information as is required to form a district and 
follows the same hearing process.63 For districts established by FLWAC rule , the petitioner must pay a 
$1,500 filing fee to each county or municipality in which the proposed COD will be located and also to 
each municipality contiguous with or containing a portion of the land proposed for inclusion in the 
district, and the required public meeting is conducted by the board of the COD instead of a hearing 
officer.64 

The amount of land that can be added to a COD is restricted . If a district was initially established by 
FLWAC rule, the cumulative additions to the district may not be greater than the lesser of ten percent of 
the land area of the district or 250 acres.65 If a district was initially established by county or municipal 
ordinance, the cumulative additions to the district may not be greater than the lesser of fifty percent of 
the land area of the district or 500 acres.66 

Dissolution of a COD 

A COD remains in existence unless the district is merged with another district, all community 
development services associated with the district have been transferred to a county or municipal 
government, or the district is dissolved as provided in statute. 57 Ch. 190 provides three ways a district 
may be dissolved: 

• Automatic dissolution: If a landowner does not receive a development permit for some part of 
the area covered by the COD within five years of the effective date of the rule or ordinance 
establishing the district, the COD is automatically dissolved.68 

• Action by local government: If a COD is declared inactive by DEO pursuant to s. 189.062, F.S. , 
the county or municipal government that created the district must be informed and is required 
to take "appropriate action ."69 

• Petition for dissolution: A district with no outstanding financial obligations and no operating or 
maintenance responsibilities may petition the authority that created the district to dissolve the 
district by appropriate action. 70 If the district was created by a county or municipal government, 
the COD may be dissolved by a non-emergency ordinance.71 If the district was created by 
FLWAC rule, the COD may petition the commission to repeal the rule . 

60 See s. 119.0713(3) , F.S. 
61 Section 218.32(1 )(a), F.S. 
62 Section 190.046(1 ), F.S. 
63 Sections 190.046(l )(a)-(d), F.S. 
64 Section 190.046(1)(d)l.-4. , F.S. 
65 Section 190.046( 1)(e) l. , F.S. 
66 Section 190.046( 1)(e) l. , F.S. 
67 Section 190.046(2) , F.S. 
68 Section 190.046(7), F.S. This subsection also requires a "j udge of the circuit shall cause a statement (of di ssolution) to be filed in 
the public records." No guidance is provided as to whether a party must ask the court for the statement, who is authorized to ask, or 
the procedure to bring the matter before the court. 
69 Section 190.046(8), F.S. 
70 Section 190.046(9), F.S. 
71 Id. 
STORAGE NAME: h0971 .LGAS.DOCX PAGE : 6 
DATE: 1/15/2016 



A COD may merge with another COD upon fil ing a petition for merger.72 The petition must meet the 
requirements and will be evaluated by the criteria for establishing a new district. 73 The district created 
as a result of the merger may be a new district, or one of the districts may be the noted as the surviving 
district. 74 The newly merged district assumes all assets and liabilities of the previous districts.75 Before 
filing the petition , the merging districts must enter into a merger agreement to properly allocate 
indebtedness.76 The approval of the merger agreement and the petition by the boards of each district is 
considered to constitute consent of the landowners of the district. 77 

Effect of Proposed Changes 

The bill modifies the establishment of CDDs in several ways. First, the bill increases the size of CDDs 
that can be created by county or municipal ordinance from less than 1,000 acres to less than 2,500 
acres. The bill makes the corresponding changes to the threshold required for needing FLWAC 
approval for creation of a COD. The bill also reduces the period notice of the public hearing conducted 
by a hearing officer on the petition to the FLWAC from four weeks immediately prior to the hearing to 
two weeks. 

The bi ll requires any COD in the territorial jurisdiction of two or more counties to be established by 
FLWAC rule , mirroring the requirement for FLWAC approval of any COD in two or more municipalities 
in current law. 

The bill clarifies that the prohibition on a COD exercising police power does not prevent a district from 
contracting with a towing operator to remove a vehicle or vessel from facilities or property owned by the 
district. The district may only exercise its power to tow if the district follows the statutory authorization, 
notice, and procedural requirements78 for an owner or lessee of private property. The district is not 
required to solicit bids when selecting a towing operator if the operator is included in an approved list of 
operators maintained by the local government that has jurisdiction over the district's facilities or 
property. 

The bill raises the maximum threshold by which a district can expand. If a district was established 
initially by FLWAC rule , the cumulative additions to the district may not be greater than the lesser of fifty 
percent of the land area of the district or 1,000 acres. If a district was established initially by county or 
municipal ordinance, the cumulative additions to the district may not be greater than the lesser of fifty 
percent of the land area of the district or 1,000 acres. 

The bill also contains a streamlined merger procedure for CDDs created by the same county or 
municipality. Up to five districts, created by the same local general-purpose government and whose 
boards are composed entirely of qualified electors, may merge into one district by adoption of an 
ordinance by the local general-purpose government that created them . CDDs would be able to utilize 
this provision even if the merged district would have been required to have been created by the 
FLWAC if it were a new district. The filing of a petition approved by the board of each COD applying 
constitutes consent of the landowners within each district. 

The CDDs planning to merge must meet the requirements of s. 190.046(3), F.S. and must enter into a 
merger agreement specifying that: 

• The merged district's board will consist of five members, 

72 Section 190.046(3), F.S. 
73 Jd. 
74 !d . 
75 !d. 
76 !d. 
77 !d. 
78 Section 715.07, F.S. 
STORAGE NAME: h0971.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/15/201 6 

PAGE: 7 



• Each at-large member of the merged district's board represents the entire district, 
• Each former district is entitled to elect at least one board member from its former boundary, 
• The member of the merger district 's interim board will consist of: 

o If two COOs merge, two members from each district and one at-large member 
o If three COOs merge, one member from each district and two at-large members 
o If four COOs merge, one member from each district and one at-large member 
o If five COOs merge, one member from each district 

• All pre-existing board members terms will end at the next general election and a new board 
representing the entire district will be elected 

Before filing the merger petition , each district must hold a public hearing to take comment on the 
proposed merger, the merger agreement, and the assignment of board seats. The hearing must be 
noticed at least 14 days beforehand. If any district withdraws after the public hearing, the remaining 
districts considering merger must hold a public hearing on a revised merger agreement between the 
remaining parties. The petition may not be filed for at least 30 days after the last public hearing . 

B. SECTION DIRECTORY: 

Section 1: Amends s. 190.005, F.S. , increasing the maximum acreage for community development 
districts established by an ordinance of the county commission having jurisdiction. 

Section 2: Amends s. 190.012, F.S., to authorize community development districts to contract with 
a towing operator to remove a vehicle or vessel from district property. 

Section 3: Amends s. 190.046, F.S. , increasing the permissible expansion of districts by petition 
and enabling districts created by county or municipal ordinance to merge, subject to 
certain conditions. 

Section 4: Providing an effective date of July 1, 2016. 

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT 

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT: 

1. Revenues: 

None. 

2. Expenditures: 

None. 

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS: 

1. Revenues: 

The bill may have an indeterminate positive impact on local government revenues to the extent the 
bill makes COOs easier to create. 

2. Expenditures: 

The bill may have an indeterminate positive impact on COD expenditures to the extent COOs 
created by local ordinance may merge more readily and reduce administrative and reporting costs. 

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR: 

None. 

STORAGE NAME: h0971.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/15/2016 

PAGE: 8 



D. FISCAL COMMENTS: 

None. 

Ill. COMMENTS 

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES: 

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision: 

Not applicable. The bill does not appear to require counties or municipalities to spend funds or take 
any action requiring the expenditure of funds , reduce the authority that counties or municipalities 
have to raise revenue in the aggregate, nor reduce the percentage of state tax shared with counties 
or municipalities . 

2. Other: 

None. 

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY: 

The bill does not provide rulemaking authority or require executive branch rulemaking. 

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS: 

None. 

IV. AMENDMENTS/ COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES 

STORAGE NAME: h0971.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/15/2016 

PAGE : 9 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 971 2016 

1 A bill to be entitled 

2 An act relating to community development d i str i cts ; 

3 amending s . 1 90 . 005 , F.S .; amending the acreage 

4 thresho ld for the establishment, by rule or ord inance , 

5 of a community developmen t dis t r i c t; revising the 

6 notice requirements for holding a l oca l publi c hearing 

7 on a petition to f orm a district ; rev i sing criteria 

8 for requiring a pet i tion for a proposed district to be 

9 filed with the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory 

10 Commission ; amending s . 190 . 012 , F. S .; au t horizing a 

11 district t o contract with a towing operator to remove 

12 vehicles or vesse l s f rom specified f ac ilities or 

13 properties , s ubject t o certain requirements; amending 

14 s . 190 . 046 , F.S .; revising the criteria necessary for 

15 amending the boundaries of a dis t rict ; authorizing up 

1 6 to a ce rtain numbe r o f distr i cts to merge int o one 

17 surviving district, subject to certain requirements; 

18 providing for member sh i p of the surviving merged 

19 d i st r ict board ; providing requirements of the merger 

20 agreement ; providing for public hear i ngs subject to 

21 certa i n requirements ; prohibit ing a petition to merge 

22 from being f il ed within a spec i fied timeframe; 

23 conforming cross-references ; providing an effect i ve 

24 date . 

25 

26 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State o f Fl o rida: 

Page 1 of 14 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0971-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 971 201 6 

27 

28 Section 1. Subsections (1) and (2) of section 190.005 , 

29 Florida Statutes , are amended to read: 

30 190 . 005 Establishment of district.-

31 (1 ) The exclusive and un i form method for the establishment 

32 of a commun i ty development district with a size of 2 , 500 1 , 000 

33 acres or more sha l l be pursuant to a rule, adopted under chapter 

34 120 by the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission , 

35 granti ng a petition for the establishment of a commun i ty 

36 development district . 

37 (a) A petition for the establishment of a community 

38 deve l opment district shal l be filed by the petitioner with the 

39 Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission. The petition 

40 shall contain: 

41 1 . A metes and bounds description of the externa l 

42 boundaries of t he district. Any real property with i n the 

43 external boundaries of the district which is to be excluded from 

44 the distr i ct shall be specificall y described, and the last known 

45 address o f a l l owners of such real property s hall be l isted . The 

4 6 pet it ion shall also address the impact of the proposed distr i ct 

47 on any rea l proper t y with i n the external boundaries o f the 

48 dist r ict which is to be excluded f rom the distr i ct . 

49 2 . The wr i tten consent to the establishment of the 

50 d i str i ct by a l l l andowners whose rea l property is to be included 

5 1 in the district or documenta t ion demonstrating that the 

52 petitioner has control by deed, trust agreement , con t ract , or 

Page 2 of 14 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0971-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 971 2016 

53 option of 100 percent of the real property to be included in the 

54 d i strict, and when real property to be included in the district 

55 is owned by a governmental enti ty and subject to a ground l ease 

56 as described ins. 190.003(14), the written consent by such 

57 governmenta l ent i ty . 

58 3 . A designation of fi v e persons to be the initial members 

5 9 o f the board of supervisors, wh o shall serve in that office 

60 until replaced by elected members as provided in s. 190.006. 

61 4. The proposed name of the district. 

62 5 . A map of the proposed district showing current major 

63 trunk water mains and sewer intercepto rs and outfalls if in 

64 existence. 

65 6 . Based upon available data , the proposed t imetable for 

66 construction of the distr i ct servi c es and the est i mated cost of 

67 constructing the proposed servi c es. These estimates shall be 

68 submitted in good faith but are not b ind ing and may be subje c t 

6 9 to c hange. 

70 7 . A designat i on of the future general distribution, 

71 location, and extent of public and private uses of land proposed 

72 for the area within the district by the future l and use p l an 

73 element of the ef f ective l ocal government comprehensive plan o f 

74 which all mandatory elements have been adopted by the applicable 

75 general-purpose l ocal government in c ompliance with the 

76 Community Planning Act. 

77 8. A statement of estimated regulatory costs in a c cordance 

78 with the requirements of s . 120 .5 41. 

Page 3 of 14 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0971-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 971 201 6 

79 

80 

(b) Prior to filing the petition , the petitioner shall: 

1 . Pay a filing fee of $15,000 to the county , if located 

81 within an unincorpora ted area , or to the municipality , if 

82 located within an incorporated area , and to each municipality 

83 the boundaries of which are contiguous with , o r contain a ll or a 

84 portion of the land within, the external boundaries of the 

85 district . 

86 

87 

88 

89 

90 

91 

92 

93 

94 

95 

96 

97 

98 

99 

100 

2 . Submit a copy of the petition to the county , if located 

within an unincorporated area , or to the municipality, if 

located within an incorporated area, and to each municipality 

the boundaries of which are contiguous wi th , or contain all or a 

portion of, the land within the external boundaries o f the 

district . 

3 . If land to be included within a district is located 

partially within the unincorporated area of one or more counties 

and partially within a muni cipa lity or within two or more 

municipalities , pay a $15,000 filing fee to each entity . 

Districts established across county boundaries shall be required 

to maintain records, hold meetings and hearings , and publish 

notices only in the county where the majority o f the acreage 

within the district lies . 

(c) Such county and each such municipality required by law 

101 to receive a petition may conduct a public hearing to consider 

1 02 the relationship of the petition to the factors specified in 

103 paragraph (e). The public hearing shall be concluded within 45 

104 days after the date the petition is filed unless an extension of 

Page 4 of 14 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0971-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 971 2016 

105 time is requested by the petitioner and granted by the county or 

106 municipality. The county or municipality holding such public 

1 07 hearing may by resolution express its support of , or objection 

1 08 to the grant ing of , the petition by the Florida Land and Water 

1 09 Adjudicatory Commiss i on. A resolution mus t base any ob jection to 

110 the granting of the petition upon the factors specified in 

111 pa ra graph (e). Such county or municipality may present its 

112 resolution of support or objection at the Florida Land a nd Water 

113 Adjudicatory Commission hearing and shall be afforded an 

114 opportunity to present relevant information in support of its 

115 resolution. 

1 1 6 (d) A local publi c hearing on the petition shall be 

11 7 conducted by a hearing officer in conformance with the 

118 applicable requirements and procedures of the Administrat i ve 

119 Procedure Act. The hearing shall include oral and written 

120 comments on the petition pertinen t to the fact o r s specified in 

121 paragraph (e). Th e hearing shall be held at an accessible 

122 location in the county in which the community development 

123 district is to be located. The pe titioner shall cause a not ice 

124 of the hearing to be published in a newspaper at leas t once a 

125 week for the 2 4 successive weeks immediately prior to the 

126 hearing. Su ch notice shall give the time and p l ace for the 

127 hearing , a description of the area to be included in the 

128 dis t rict , which descript i on shall include a map showing c l ea rl y 

129 the area to be covered by the district, and any other relevant 

1 30 information which the establishing governing bodies may require. 

Page 5 of 14 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0971-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 971 

131 The advertisement shall not be placed in that portion of the 

13 2 newspaper where legal notices and classified advertisements 

1 33 appear . The advertisement shall be published in a newspaper of 

1 3 4 general paid circulation in the county and of general interest 

1 35 and readership in the community , not one of limited subject 

136 matter, pursuant to chapter 50 . Whenever possible , the 

2016 

137 advertisement shall appear in a newspaper that is published at 

138 least 5 days a week, unless the on ly newspaper in the community 

139 is published fewer than 5 days a week . In addition to being 

140 published in the newspaper , the map referenced above must be 

141 part of the online advertisement required pursuant to s. 

142 50 . 021 1 . All affected units of general-purpose local government 

143 and the general public shall be given an opportunity to appear 

144 at the hearing and present ora l or written comments on the 

145 petition. 

146 (e) The Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission 

147 shall consider the entire record of the local hearing , the 

148 transcript of the hearing , resolutions adopted by local general -

149 purpose governments as provided in paragraph (c) , and the 

15 0 following factors and make a determination to grant or deny a 

151 petition for the establishment o f a community development 

152 district : 

153 1 . Whether all statements contained within the petition 

154 have been found to be true and correct . 

155 2 . Whether the establishment of the district is 

156 inconsistent with any applicable element or portion of the state 

Page 6 of 14 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0971-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 971 

157 comprehensive p l an or of the effective local gove r nment 

158 comprehensive plan. 

159 3 . Whether the area of land within the proposed district 

160 i s of su f ficient size , is sufficient l y compact , and is 

161 suffic i ently cont i guous to be developable as one functiona l 

162 interrelated community . 

2016 

163 4 . Whether the district is the best a l ternative available 

164 for delivering commun i ty development services and facilit i es t o 

165 the area that will be served by the distr i ct . 

166 5 . Whether the community development services and 

167 faci li ties of the district will be incompatible with the 

168 capac i ty and uses of existing local and regional community 

169 development services and facilities. 

170 6 . Whether the area that will be served by the district is 

171 amenable to separat~ specia l-district government . 

172 (f) The Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission 

173 shal l not adopt any rule which would expand , modify , or de l ete 

174 any provision of the un i form community development d i strict 

175 charter as set forth in ss. 190 . 006 - 190 . 041 , except as provided 

176 ins . 190 . 012 . A rule establishing a community development 

177 district shall on l y contain the f ollowing : 

178 1 . A metes and bounds description of the external 

179 boundaries of the distr i c t and any real property within the 

180 extern a l boundaries o f the district which i s to be exc l uded . 

181 2 . The names o f five persons designated to be the i nit i al 

182 members of the board of supervisors . 

Page 7 of 14 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0971-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 971 201 6 

3 . The name o f the district . 183 

184 (g) The Fl or ida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission may 

185 adopt rules setting f orth i ts procedures f or conside ring 

186 pet i t i ons to establish, expand , modify , or delete un iform 

187 communit y development distri cts or portions thereof consistent 

188 wit h the provisions of this section . 

189 (2) The exclusive and uniform method for the establishment 

1 90 of a communit y development district of less than 2 , 500 1,000 

191 acres in size or a community development district of up to 7 , 000 

192 acres in size located within a connected- city corridor 

193 established pursuant t o s. 163.3246(14) shall be pursuant to an 

194 ordinance adopted by the count y commission of the county having 

1 95 jurisdiction over the majority of land in the area in which the 

196 district is to be l ocated granting a petition f or the 

1 97 establishment o f a communit y development district as follows: 

198 (a ) A petition for the es t abli shmen t of a communit y 

199 development distr ict shal l be file d by the petitioner with the 

200 county commiss i on . The petition shall conta in the same 

20 1 information as required i n paragraph ( 1 ) (a) . 

202 (b) A public hearing on the petition shall be conducted by 

203 the county commission in accordance with the r equireme nt s and 

204 procedures of paragraph ( 1 ) (d) . 

205 (c) The county commissi on shall consider t he record o f the 

20 6 public hearing and the factors set forth in paragraph ( 1) (e) in 

207 making its determination to grant or deny a petition for the 

208 es tablishment o f a communi ty development district . 

Page 8 of 14 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0971 -00 



FLOR I DA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 971 

209 (d) The county commission shall not adopt any o rdinance 

210 which would expand , modify , or delete any provision of the 

211 uniform community development district charter as set forth in 

212 ss. 190.006- 190.041. An ordinance establishing a communi ty 

201 6 

213 development district shall only inc l ude the matters provided for 

2 14 in paragraph ( 1) (f) un l ess the commission consents to any of the 

215 optional powers under s . 190 . 012(2) at the request of the 

216 petitioner. 

217 (e) If all o f the l and in the area for the proposed 

218 district is within the territorial jurisdiction o f a municipal 

219 corporation , then the petition requesting establishment of a 

220 community development district under th i s act shall be filed by 

221 the petitioner with that particular municipal corporation. In 

222 such event , the duties of the county , hereinabove described, in 

223 action upon the petition shall be the duties of the municipal 

224 corporation . If any of the land area of a proposed distr ict is 

225 within the land area of a municipality, the county commission 

226 may not create the dist r ict without municipal approval . If a l l 

227 of the land in the area for the proposed district , even if less 

228 than 2 , 500 1 , 000 acres , is within the territorial jurisdiction 

229 of two or more municipalities or two or more counties, except 

230 for proposed districts within a connected- city co rridor 

231 established pursuant to s. 163 . 3246(14) , the petition shall be 

232 filed with the Florida Land and Water Ad jud i catory Commission 

233 and proceed in accordance with subsection (1) . 

234 ( f ) Notwithstanding any other provi sion of this 

Page 9 of 14 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0971-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 971 2016 

235 subsection , within 90 days after a petition f o r the 

236 establishment o f a communit y development district has been fil ed 

237 pursuant to this subsection , the governing body of the county or 

238 municipal corpora tion may transfer the petition to the Florida 

239 Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission , wh i ch shall make the 

240 determination to grant or deny the petition as provided in 

241 s ubsect i on (1) . A county o r municipal corporation s hall have no 

242 r ight or power to grant o r d en y a petition that h as b ee n 

243 transferred to t h e Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory 

244 Commission. 

2 45 Section 2 . Paragraph (d) of subsecti on (2) of section 

2 46 1 90.012 , Florida Sta tutes , is amended to read : 

247 190 . 012 Special powers ; public improvements and community 

248 facilities .-The distr i ct shall have , and the board may exerc i se , 

249 subject to the regulato r y jurisdiction and permitting authority 

250 of a ll applicable gov e r nment a l bodies , agencies , and special 

251 distr i cts hav ing authori ty with respect to any area inc luded 

252 therein, any o r all of the foll owi ng special powers re l at i ng to 

253 public improvements and community facilities authorized by this 

254 act : 

255 (2) After t he local general - purpose government wi thin the 

256 jurisdiction of which a power spec ified in this subsection is to 

257 be exe r cised consents t o the exerc ise o f such power by the 

258 dis tri ct , the distri ct shall have the powe r to plan , establi sh , 

259 acquire , construct o r re const ruct , enlarge or extend , equip , 

260 ope rate , and maintain additional systems and fa c ilitie s for: 

Page 10 of 14 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0971-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 971 2016 

2 61 (d) Secur i ty , including, but not limited to , guardhouses , 

262 f ences and gates, electronic i ntrusion- detection systems, and 

263 patrol cars , when authorized by proper governmenta l agenc i es; 

264 except that the district may not exercise any police power , but 

265 may contract wi th the appropr i ate l ocal general - purpose 

266 government agenc i es for an increased level o f such services 

267 within the district boundaries. However, this paragraph does no t 

268 prohibit a distr i c t from contracting with a towing ope r ator to 

269 remove a vehicle o r vessel from a d i strict- owned facility or 

270 prope r ty if the district foll ows t he aut horizat i on and notice 

271 and p r ocedural requirements in s. 715 . 07 for an owner or lessee 

272 of private property . The d ist rict 's se l ection o f a tow i ng 

273 operator is not subject to publi c bidding if the towing operator 

274 is included in an approved list of towing operato r s maintained 

275 by the l ocal government that has jur i sdiction ove r the 

276 distr i c t' s facility o r proper t y . 

277 Section 3 . Paragraph (e) of subsection (1) and subsection 

278 (2) of section 190 . 046 , Florida Statutes , a re amended , 

279 subsections (4) through (9) are renumbered as subsections (5 ) 

280 through (10) , respective l y, and a new subsection (4 ) is added to 

281 that section , to r ead: 

282 1 90.046 Terminati on, contraction , or expansion o f 

283 district.-

284 (1) A landowner or the board may petition to contract or 

285 expand the boundaries of a communi t y development district in t he 

286 f oll owing manner: 

Page 11 of 14 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0971-00 



FLOR I DA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 971 2016 

287 (e ) 1 . During the exi sten c e o f a dist rict initially 

288 establ ished by administrative rule, the process to amend the 

289 boundaries of the di strict pursuant to paragraphs (a) - (d) shall 

290 not permit a cumulative net tota l greater than 2Q ~ percent of 

29 1 the land in the initial district , and in no event greate r than 

292 1 , 000 ~ acre s on a cumulative net basis. 

293 2 . During the exis tence of a district initiall y 

294 established by county o r municipal ordinance , the process to 

295 amend the boundaries o f the district pursuant to paragraphs (a ) -

296 (d) shall not permit a cumulative net total greate r than 50 

297 percent o f the land in the initi a l district , a nd in n o event 

298 greater than 1, 000 ~acre s on a c umulative net bas is . 

299 

300 

(2 ) The dist rict shall remain in existence unless : 

(a ) The district i s merged with another distric t as 

301 provided in subsecti on (3) or subsection (4) ; 

302 (b) All of the spe c i fic communi ty development syst ems, 

303 fa cil ities , and services that it is authorized t o perform have 

30 4 bee n transferred to a general - p u rpose unit of local gove rnment 

30 5 in the manner provided in subsect i ons +4+, (5) , l2lL and l2l 
306 -f-6+- ; or 

307 

308 

309 

(c) The district is dissolved as provided in subsection 

++tT subsection (8) , er subsecti on (9) , or subsect i on (10) . 

(4) (a) To achieve economies of scale, r educe costs to 

310 affec t ed district resident s and businesses in areas with 

311 multip l e existing districts , and encourage the merger of 

312 multiple d i stricts , up to five districts that were established 

Page 12 of 14 

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0971 -00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 971 

313 by the same local general - purpose government a nd whose board 

314 memberships are composed entire l y of qualified electors ma y 

315 merge into one surviving district through adoption of an 

316 ordinance by the local general purpose governme n t , 

2016 

3 17 notwithstanding the acreage limitations otherwise set f o rth for 

318 the es t ablishment of a district in this chapter . The filing of a 

319 petition by the majority o f the members of each of the district 

320 board of supervisors seeking to merge constitutes consent of the 

321 l andowners within each applicable distr i ct . 

322 (b) In add i tion to meeting the requirements of subsection 

323 (3) , a merge r agreement entered into between the district boards 

324 subject to this subsection must also: 

325 1. Require the surviving merged district board to consist 

326 of five elected board members. 

327 2 . Require each at-l arge board seat to represent the 

328 entire geographic area of the surviving merged dis trict. 

329 3 . Ensure that each district to be merged is entitled t o 

330 e l ect at least one board member from its f o rmer boundary. 

331 4 . Ensure a fair allocation of board membership to 

332 represent the districts being merged . To that end: 

333 a . If two d i stricts merge , two board members s h a l l be 

334 elected from each of the distr i cts and one me mber shall be 

335 elected at-large. 

336 b. If three districts merge, one board member sha ll be 

337 elected from each of the th ree distr i c ts and two board members 

338 shal l be elected at-large. 

Page 13 of 14 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0971-00 



FLOR I DA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 971 

339 c . If four districts merge, one board member shall be 

340 e l ected from each of the four distric t s and one board member 

341 s ha ll be e l ected at - large . 

342 d. If five d i str i cts merge, one board member shall be 

343 elected f r om each of t h e five districts. 

201 6 

344 5. Requ i re the e l ection of board members for the survi ving 

345 merged d i s t r i ct to be held at the next general e l ection 

346 fo llowing the merger , at which time a ll terms of preexisting 

347 board members shall end and the merger shal l be legally in 

348 effect. 

349 (c) Before fi ling the merger petition with the local 

350 genera l-purpose government under this s ubsection , each district 

351 proposing to merge must ho l d a public hearing within its 

352 district to provide i nformation about and take public comment on 

353 the proposed merger , merger agreement , and assignment of board 

354 seats. Notice of the hearing sha ll be published at least 14 days 

355 before the hearing. If , after the pub l ic hearing , a district 

356 board decides that it n o l onger wants t o merge and cancels the 

357 proposed me r ger agreement, the remaining districts must each 

358 ho l d another public hearing on the revi sed merger agreement. A 

359 petition to merge may not be filed for at least 30 days afte r 

360 the last pub l ic hear i ng he l d by the districts proposing to 

361 merge . 

362 Section 4 . This act shall take effect July 1, 2016. 

Page 14 of 14 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0971-00 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No . HB 971 (2016) 

COMM ITTEE /SUBCOMM ITTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECTION 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WI TH DRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Loca l Government Affairs 

2 Subcommittee 

3 Representative Sull i van offered the following: 

4 

5 Amendment (with title amendment) 

6 Remove line 125 and insert: 

7 week for the 4 successive weeks immediately prior to the 

8 

9 -----------------------------------------------------

10 T I T L E A M E N D M E N T 

11 Remove lines 5-7 and insert: 

12 of a community development dist ri ct ; revising criteria 

979255 - HB 971 Amendment 1 . docx 

Published On: 1/15/2016 5 :5 2 : 48 PM 

Page 1 of 1 



...... 
0 
w 
..0 



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES LOCAL BILL STAFF ANALYSIS 

BILL#: HB 1039 Babcock Ranch Community Independent Special District, Charlotte and Lee 
Counties 
SPONSOR(S): Caldwell 
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: 

REFERENCE 

1) Local Government Affairs Subcommittee 

2) Finance & Tax Committee 

3) Local & Federal Affairs Committee 

ACTION 

SUMMARY ANALYSIS 

ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR or 
BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF 

The Babcock Ranch Community Special District (District) is an independent district located in Charlotte 
County. This bill will expand the borders of the District to include seven parcels in Lee County, increasing the 
overall size of the District from approximately 13,630 acres to approximately 17,787 acres. The bill also makes 
conforming changes to the enabling act to reflect that the District will now be located in both Lee and Charlotte 
Counties. The bill updates statutory references to Chapter 189, F.S. Finally, the bill changes a provision 
regarding the District's public facilities report to indicate that the counties m<;~y, instead of shall , rely on that 
report when preparing or amending their comprehensive plan. 

The bill provides that sections 6 and 7 shall take effect upon the bill becoming law. 

Section 7 provides for the remaining sections of the bill, and the inclusion of property in Lee County, to be 
approved by a majority of qualified landowners within the existing district and within the seven parcels 
proposed for addition at a landowners' meeting to be held within 90 days from the effective date of the act. 

Section 7 reiterates the provisions in the present charter that the District's authority to levy ad valorem taxes 
and issue general obligation bonds shall take effect only after approval by a majority of qualified electors in the 
District at a referendum to be conducted only after all members of the District's governing board themselves 
are qualified District voters elected by the other voters in the District. 

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives. 
STORAGE NAME: h1039.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/15/2016 



FULL ANALYSIS 

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS 

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES: 

Current Situation 

The Babcock Ranch Community Special District (District) is an independent special district created in 
2007 and located in Charlotte County.1 The boundaries of the district currently encompass 
approximately 13,630 acres in Charlotte County.2 The purpose of the District is to plan, construct, 
maintain , operate, finance, and improve the provision of systems, facilities , and services necessary to 
meet the infrastructure needs of the Babcock Ranch Community- a sustainable, compact, mixed-use 
community.3 

Proposed Changes 

The bill will expand the borders of the District to include seven parcels in Lee County, increasing the 
overall size of the district from approximately 13,630 acres to approximately 17,787 acres total. 

The bill also makes conforming changes to the enabling act to reflect that the District will now be 
located in both Lee and Charlotte Counties. These changes include changing the term "Charlotte 
County" to "Charlotte and Lee Counties" and changing references from "the county" to "the counties" or 
"the respective county." 

The bill provides that if an amendment to the District's boundaries or powers is proposed which only 
affects one county, the District only need obtain a resolution or statement from the affected county 
before such change may be considered by the Legislature. 

The bill also updates statutory references to ch. 189, F.S., to conform with the changes which have 
been made to the statute since 2007. 

Finally, the bill changes a provision regarding the District 's public facilities report to indicate that the 
Counties may, instead of shall , rely on that report when preparing or amending their comprehensive 
plan. 

B. SECTION DIRECTORY: 

Section 1 amends the District's enabling act to: 

• Amend the definitions of "Babcock Ranch Community" and "Qualified elector" to conform the 
charter to the inclusion of land within Charlotte and Lee Counties within the District. 

• Make other conforming changes to reflect that the District will now be located in both Lee and 
Charlotte Counties. 

• Specify that if an amendment to the District's boundaries or powers is proposed which only 
affects one county, the District only need obtain a resolution or statement from the affected 
county before such change may be considered by the legislature. 

Section 2 amends the District's enabling act to : 
• Make conforming changes to reflect that the District will now be located in both Lee and 

Charlotte Counties. 

1 Ch. 2007-306, Laws of Fla. 
2 Section 4, Chapter 2007-306, L.O.F. 
3 Sections 2(l)(c) and (d), Chapter 2007-306, L.O.F. 
STORAGE NAME: h1039.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/15/2016 

PAGE : 2 



• Update statutory references to Chapter 189, F.S., to reflect the changes which have been made 
to the statute since 2007. 

Section 3 amends the District's enabling act to: 

• Expand the borders of the District to include seven parcels in Lee County, increasing the overall 
size of the district from approximately 13,630 acres to approximately 17,787 acres total. 

Section 4 amends the District's enabling act to: 

• Make conforming changes to reflect that the District will now be located in both Lee and 
Charlotte Counties. 

• Update statutory references to Chapter 189, F.S., to reflect the changes which have been made 
to the statute since 2007. 

Section 5 makes changes to the District's enabling act to: 

• Change a provision regarding the District's public facilities report to provide the Counties may, 
instead of shall, rely on that report when preparing or amending their comprehensive plan. 

• Make conforming changes to reflect that the District will now be located in both Lee and 
Charlotte Counties. 

• Update statutory references to Chapter 189, F.S., to reflect the changes which have been made 
to the statute since 2007. 

Section 6 specifies that the election provided for in Section 7 of the bill will be held on a one-acre/one
vote basis. 

Section 7 specifies that ss. 6 and 7 of the bill will take effect upon becoming law. The remainder of the 
bill will take effect upon approval by a majority vote of the owners of the land within the district, 
including land in Charlotte and Lee Counties, who are not exempt from ad valorem taxes or non-ad 
valorem assessments and who are present in person or by proxy at a landowners' meeting to be held 
within 90 days after this section is effective. Finally, this section reiterates the provisions in the present 
charter that the District's authority to levy ad valorem taxes and issue general obligation bonds shall 
take effect only after approval by a majority of qualified electors in the District at a referendum to be 
conducted only after all members of the District's governing board themselves are qualified District 
voters elected by the other voters in the District.4 

II. NOTICE/REFERENDUM AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS 

A. NOTICE PUBLISHED? Yes [X] No [] 

IF YES, WHEN? October 21, 2015 and October 22, 2015 

WHERE? Charlotte Sun and News-Press 

B. REFERENDUM($) REQUIRED? Yes [X] No[] 

IF YES, WHEN? At a landowner's meeting to be held within 90 days of the effective date of this act. 

C. LOCAL BILL CERTIFICATION FILED? Yes, attached [X] No[] 

4 Sections 5(3)(a)l. and 6(12)(a) , Chapter 2007-306, L.O.F. 
STORAGE NAME: h1039.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/15/2016 

PAGE: 3 



D. ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT FILED? Yes, attached [X] No 0 

Ill. COMMENTS 

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES: 

None. 

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY: 

The bill does not provide authority or require implementation by administrative agency rulemaking . 

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS: 

None. 

IV. AMENDMENTS/ COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES 

STORAGE NAME: h1039.LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/15/2016 

PAGE: 4 



The News-Press 
media group 
news-preSS.COm A GANNETT COMPANY 

Attn: 
HOPPING GREEN & SAMS PA 
119 5 MONROE ST STE 300 

TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF LEE: 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared 

Shari Terrell, who on oath says that he or she is a Legal 
Assistant of the News-Press, a daily newspaper 

published at Fort Myers in Lee County, Florida; that the 

attached copy of advertisement, being a Legal Ad in the 
matter of 

NOTICE 

In the Second Judicial Circuit Court was published in 
said newspaper in the issues of: 

Affiant further says that the said News-Press is a paper 

of general circulation daily in Lee, Charlotte , Collier, 

Glades and Hendry Counties and published at Fort 

Myers, in said Lee County, Florida, and that the said 

newspaper has heretofore been continuously published 

in said Lee County, Florida each day and has been 

entered as periodicals matter at the post office in Fort 

Myers, in said Lee County, Florida , for a period of one 

year next preceding the first publication of the attached 

copy of advertisement; and affiant further says that he or 

she has never paid nor promised any person , firm or 

corporation any discount, rebate, commission or refund 

for the purpose of securing this advertisement for 
publicaiion in the said newspaper. 

Sworn to and Subscribed before me this 21th of October 

2015, by Shari Terrell who is personally known to me. 

~~;~ 
€ *: . 

I 
1401) 398-0153 

JESSICA HANFT 
MY COMMISSION# EE874397 

EXPIRES February 12, 2017 
F com 

0000805790 I FNP-498840 



THE NEWS-PRESS 
Published every morning 

Daily and Sunday 
Fort Myers, Florida 

Affidavit of Publication 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEE 

Before the undersigned authority, personally appeared 
Shari Terrell who on oath says that he/she is the 
Legal Assistant of the News-Press, a daily newspaper, 
published at Fort Myers, in Lee County, Florida; that the 
attached copy of advertisement, being a 

Notice Of Meeting 
In the matter of: 

Lee County Legislative Delegation 

In the court was published in said newspaper 
in the issues of 
Sept. 3, 2015 

Affiant further says that the said News-Press is a paper of 
general circulation daily in Lee, Charlotte, Collier, Glades and 
Hendry Counties and published at Fort Myers, in said Lee 
County, Florida and that said newspaper has heretofore been 
continuously published in said Lee County; Florida, each day, 
and has been entered as a second class mail matter at the post 
office in Fort Myers in said Lee County, Florida, for a period of 
one year next preceding the first ,publication of the attached 
copy of the advertisement; and affiant further says that hefshe 
has neither paid nor promised any person, firm or corporation 
any discount, rebate, commission or refund for the purpose of 
securing this advertisement for publicati in the said 
newspaper. 

Sworn to and 
September, 2015. 

by Shari Terrell 
personally known to me or who has produced 

did not take an 

Print Name: Jessica Hanft 
My commission Expires: February 12, 2017 

.-~~~:~. JESSICA HANFT r:: ~-E MY COMMISSION# EE874397 
··., .~ .. •' EXPIRES February 12, 2017 

!.07) 39e-0153 Sef\olc:e 
00111 



~\J"~L 
~~L 
--..... I 

NEWSPAPERS 
Charlotte • DeSoto • Englewood • North Port • Venice 

PUBLISHER'S AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF CHARLOTTE: 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared Natalie Musser, who 
on oath says that she is legal clerk of the Charlotte Sun, the Englewood Sun, 
and the North Port Sun, each a newspaper published at Charlotte Harbor in 
Charlotte County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement, being 
a Notice of Intent to Seek Legislation, was published in said newspaper 
in the issue(s) of: 

October 22, 2015 

Affiant further says that the said newspaper is a newspaper published at 
Charlotte Harbor, in said Charlotte County, Florida, and that the said 
newspaper has heretofore been continuously published in said Charlotte 
County, Florida, Sarasota County, Florida and DeSoto County, Florida, each 
publication day and has been entered as periodicals matter at the post office in 
Punta Gorda, in said Charlotte County, Florida, for a period of one year next 
preceding the first publication of the attached copy of advertisement; and affiant 
further says that he or she has neither paid nor promised any person, firm or 
corporation any discount, rebate, commission or refund for the purpose of 
securing this advertisement for publication in said newspaper. 

Notice of Intent 
to Seek .Legislation 

C\\;-\o, 0 AA. .. CD\ },.;~\__)\ -C 

(Sign~re of Affiant) 

. TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 

Sworn and subscribed before me this 22nd day of October, 2015 . 

PHVLIS MOLL 
MY COMMISSION I# FF 48827 

EXPIRES A>Jgust 27. 2017 

Personally known / oR Produced Identification_ 

Type of Identification Produced ________ _ 

Pursuant to section 10, Article Ill, 
of the Florida Constitution and sec
tion 11.02, Florida Statutes, 
please be advised that notice is 
hereby given of an intent to seek 
legislation before the 2016 Legis
lature and any SpeciaL or Ex
tended. Sessions amending the 
Chapter 2007-306, Laws of 
Florida, relating to the Babcock 
Ranch Community Independent 
Special District in Charlotte 
County. This legislation expands 
the boundaries of the Babcock 
Ranch Independent Special Dis
trict to include areas of Lee 
County; provides legislative intent 
and procedures of the District; de
scribes the amended District 
boundaries; provides for a govern
ing board, board member qualifi
cations, terms of office, election 
procedures and compensation ; 
provides District powers and rev
enue raising capabilities; provides 
for appropriate referenda in char
ter and provides an effective date. 
Publish: October 22, 2015 
233250 3232889 . 



BILL#: HB 1039 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

2016 LOCAL BILL CERTIFICATION FORM 

SPONSOR(S): Representative Roberson & Representative Caldwell 

RELATING TO: Babcock Ranch Community Independent Special District, Charlotte and Lee Counties 
[Indicate Area Affected (City, County, or Special District) and Subject] 

NAME OF DELEGATION: Charlotte County 
--------------~----------------------------------------

CONTACT PERSON: Jae Williams ------------------------------------------------------------
PHONE NO.: (94d) 613-0914 E-Mail: Jae.Williams@myfloridahouse.gov 

I. House local bill policy requires the following steps must occur before a committee or subcommittee of 
the House considers a local bill: 
(1) The members of the local legislative delegation must certify that the purpose of the bill cannot be 
accomplished at the local level; 
(2) The legislative delegation must hold a public hearing in the area affected for the purpose of 
considering the local bill issue(s); and 
(3) The bill must be approved by a majority of the legislative delegation, or a higher threshold if so 
required by the rules of the delegation, at the public hearing or at a subsequent delegation meeting. 
(4) An Economic Impact Statement for local bills must be prepared at the local level and submitted to 
the Local Government Affairs Subcommittee. Under House policy, no local bill will be considered by a 
committee or subcommittee without an Economic Impact Statement. 

(1) Does the delegation certify the purpose of the bill cannot be accomplished by 
ordinance of a local governing body without the legal need for a referendum? 

YESIZ] NOD 

(2) Did the delegation conduct a public hearing on the subject of the bill? 

YESIZ] NO 

Date hearing held: _o_c_to_b_e_r_1_5_, 2_0_1_5 __________________ _ 

Location: Punta Gorda Isles Civic Association, 2001 Shreve Street, Punta Gorda 33950 

(3) Was this bill formally approved by a majority of the delegation members? 

YESIZ] 

(4) Was an Economic Impact Statement prepared at the local level and submitted to the 
Local Government Affairs Subcommittee? 

YES(Z] 

II. Article Ill, Section 10 of the State Constitution prohibits passage of any special act unless notice of 
intention to seek enactment of the bill has been published as provided by genera/law (s. 11.02, F. S.) or 
the act is conditioned to take effect only upon approval by referendum vote of the electors in the area 
affected. 

Has this constitutional notice requirement been met? 

Notice published: YESl~J NOD DATE October 22,2015 

Where? Charlotte Sun County _C_h_a_rl_ot_te ________ _ 

Page 1 of 2 



Referendum in lieu of publication: YES D NO I v"J 
Date of Referendum -----------------------------

Ill. Article VII, Section 9(b) of the State Constitution prohibits passage of any bill creating a special taxing 
district, or changing the authorized millage rate for an existing special taxing district, unless the bill 
subjects the taxing provision to approval by referendum vote of the electors in the area affected. 

(1) Does the bill create a special district and authorize the district to impose an ad 
valorem tax? 

YES(Z] 

(2) Does this bill change the authorized ad valorem millage rate for an existing special 
district? 

YESD 

If the answer to question (1) or (2) is YES, does the bill require voter approval of the ad 
valorem tax provision(s)? 

YES(Z] 

Please submit this completed, original form to the Local Government Affairs Subcommittee. 

~:==2 ;if~-~----' 
Oelegat n Chair (Oigl al Signature) 

Kenneth L. Roberson 
Printed Name of Delegation Chair 

Page 2 of 2 



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

2016 ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT FORM 

*Read all instructions carefully.* 
House local bill policy requires that no local bill will be considered by a committee or a subcommittee without an 
Economic Impact Statement. This form must be prepared at the LOCAL LEVEL by an individual who is qualified 
to establish fiscal data and impacts and has personal knowledge of the information given (for example. a chief 
financial officer of a particular local government). Please submit this completed, original form to the Local 
Government Affairs Subcommittee as soon as possible after a bill is filed. Additional pages may be attached as 
necessary. 

BILL#: HB 1039 ---------------------------------------------------------------
SPONSOR(S): Rep. Caldwell & Rep. Roberson 

RELATING TO: Charlotte and Lee Counties - Babcock Ranch Independent Special District 
[Indicate Area Affected (City, County or Special District) and Subject] 

I. REVENUES: 

These figures are new revenues that would not exist but for the passage of the bill. 
The term "revenue" contemplates, but is not limited to, taxes, fees and special assessments. 
For example, license plate fees may be a revenue source. If the bill will add or remove 
property or individuals from the tax base, include this information as well. 

Revenue decrease due to bill : 

Revenue increase due to bill: 

II. COST: 

FY 16-17 

$ 0 

$ 0 

FY 17-18 

$ 0 ----

$ 0 ----

Include all costs, both direct and indirect, including start-up costs . If the bill repeals the 
existence of a certain entity, state the related costs , such as satisfying liabilities and 
distributing assets. 

Expenditures for Implementation, Administration and Enforcement: 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 

$_0 __ _ 

Please include explanations and calculations regarding how each dollar figure was 
determined in reaching total cost. 

The proposal would expand the boundaries of the Babcock Ranch Community Independent Special District 

("District") by 4,157.2 acres in Lee County ("Expansion Area") . There is no residential or commercial 

development planned for this area which is currently expected to be used for sports fie lds somtime 

in the future (3-to-5 years at the earliest). 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 1 of 4 



Ill. FUNDING SOURCE(S): 

State the specific sources from which funding will be received, for example, license plate 
fees, state funds, borrowed funds, or special assessments. 

If certain funding changes are anticipated to occur beyond the following two fiscal years, 
explain the change and at what rate taxes, fees or assessments will be collected in those 
years. 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 

Local: $ 0 $0 

State: $0 $ 0 

Federal: $ 0 $ 0 

IV. ECONOMIC IMPACT: 

Potential Advantages: 

Include all possible outcomes linked to the bill, such as increased efficiencies, and 
positive or negative changes to tax revenue. If an act is being repealed or an entity 
dissolved, include the increased or decreased efficiencies caused thereby. 

Include specific figures for anticipated job growth. 

1. Advantages to Individuals: 

2. Advantages to Businesses: 

3. Advantages to Government: 

Potential Disadvantages: 

The expansion provides additional recreational 

opportunities in the future. 

The expansion will provide additional customers 

for local businesses from the spectators and the 

participants in the expected sporting events. 

At no cost to the State, local or federal governments 

recreational sports fields will be developed. 

Include all possible outcomes linked to the bill, such as inefficiencies, shortages, or 
market changes anticipated. 

Include reduced business opportunities, such as reduced access to capital or training. 

State any decreases in tax revenue as a result of the bill. 

1. Disadvantages to Individuals: _N_o_n_e _____________ _ 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 2 of 4 



2. Disadvantages to Businesses: Some existing, low quality, range land would be 

converted for use as sporting fields with supporting 

low impact development. 

3. Disadvantages to Government: _N_o_n_e _____________ _ 

V. DESCRIBE THE POTENTIAL IMPACT OF THE BILL ON PRESENT GOVERNMENTAL 
SERVICES: 

The District would be responsible for providing services and infrastructure to support the 

expected recreational uses in the Expansion Area. Charlotte County would provide 

public safety services. 

VI. SPECIFIC DATA USED IN REACHING ESTIMATES: 

Include the type(s) and source(s) of data used, percentages, dollar figures, all 
assumptions made, history of the industry/issue affected by the bill, and any audits. 

See attached Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs. 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 3 of4 



VII. CERTIFICATION BY PREPARER 

I hereby certify I am qualified to establish fiscal data and impacts and have personal 
knowledge of the information given . I have reviewed all available financial information 
applicable to the substance of the above-stated local bill and confirm the foregoing 
Economic Impact Statement is a true and accurate estimate of the economic impact of 
the bill. 

Digitally signed by Henry H. Fish kind, 

Henry H. Fish kind, Ph.D. Ph.D. 
PREPARED BY: Date: 2015.12.01 11:35:52 -05'00' 

[Must be signed by Prep-a-re-r=-] -

Print preparer's name: 
Henry H. Fishkind, Ph.D. 

December 1, 2015 
Date 

TITLE (such as Executive Director, Actuary, Chief Accountant, or Budget Director): 

REPRESENTING: 

PHONE: 

E-MAIL ADDRESS: 

The District 

407-382-3256 

Hankf@fishkind .com 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 4 of 4 



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

2016 LOCAL BILL CERTIFICATION FORM 

BILL#: HB 1039 ----------------------------------------------------------------
SPONSOR(S): Representative Matt Caldwell 

RELATING TO: Babcock Ranch Community Independent Special District, Charlotte and Lee Counties 
(Indicate Area Affected (City, County, or Special District) and Subject] 

NAME OF DELEGATION: Lee County 
--------~~--------------------------------------------

CONTACT PERSON: Charlotte Codie ------------------------------------------------------------
PHONE NO.: (2?j) 694-0161 E-Mail: Charlotte.Codie@myfloridahouse.gov 

I. House local bill policy requires the following steps must occur before a committee or subcommittee of 
the House considers a local bill: 
(1) The members of the local legislative delegation must certify that the purpose of the bill cannot be 
accomplished at the local level; 
(2) The legislative delegation must hold a public hearing in the area affected for the purpose of 
considering the local bill issue(s); and 
(3) The bill must be approved by a majority of the legislative delegation, or a higher threshold if so 
required by the rules of the delegation, at the public hearing or at a subsequent delegation meeting. 
(4) An Economic Impact Statement for local bills must be prepared at the local/eve/ and submitted to 
the Local Government Affairs Subcommittee. Under House policy, no local bill will be considered by a 
committee or subcommittee without an Economic Impact Statement. 

(1) Does the delegation certify the purpose of the bill cannot be accomplished by 
ordinance of a local governing body without the legal need for a referendum1 

YESIZJ NOD 

(2) Did the delegation conduct a public hearing on the subject of the bill? 

YESIZJ NOD 

Date hearing held: October 14, 2015 -----------------------------------------------------
Location: Florida Southwestern State College, Nursing Building (Room AA-177) , 8099 College Pkwy. Fort Myers, FL 33919 

(3) Was this bill formally approved by a majority of the delegation members? 

YES[Z] 

(4) Was an Economic Impact Statement prepared at the local level and submitted to the 
Local Government Affairs Subcommittee? 

YESIZJ 

II. Article Ill, Section 10 of the State Constitution prohibits passage of any special act unless notice of 
intention to seek enactment of the bill has been published as provided by genera/law (s. 11.02, F. S.) or 
the act is conditioned to take effect only upon approval by referendum vote of the electors in the area 
affected. 

Has this constitutional notice requirement been met? 

Notice published: YESitJ NOD DATE October 21,2015 

Where? News-Press County _L_e_e ____________________ __ 

Page 1 of 2 



Referendum in lieu of publication: YES D NOD 
Date of Referendum _____________ _ 

Ill. Article VII, Section 9(b) of the State Constitution prohibits passage of any bill creating a special taxing 
district, or changing the authorized millage rate for an existing special taxing district, unless the bill 
subjects the taxing provision to approval by referendum vote of the electors in the area affected. 

(1) Does the bill create a special district and authorize the district to impose an ad 
valorem tax? 

YES(Z] 

(2) Does this bill change the authorized ad valorem millage rate for an existing special 
district? 

YESD NO({] 
If the answer to question (1) or (2) is YES, does the bill require voter approval of the ad 
valorem tax prov1sion(s)? 

YES(Z] 

Please submit this completed, original form to the Local Government Affairs Subcommittee. 

#~ D~o:air (Original Signature) 

Matt Caldwell 
Printed Name of Delegation Chair 

Page 2 of 2 



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

2016 ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT FORM 

*Read all instructions carefully.* 
House local bill policy requires that no local bill will be considered by a committee or a subcommittee without an 
Economic Impact Statement. This form must be prepared at the LOCAL LEVEL by an individual who is qualified 
to establish fiscal data and impacts and has personal knowledge of the information given (for example, a chief 
financial officer of a particular local government). Please submit this completed, original form to the Local 
Government Affairs Subcommittee as soon as possible after a bill is filed. Additional pages may be attached as 
necessary. 

BILL#: HB 1039 ----------------------------------------------------------------
SPONSOR(S): Representative Matt Caldwell 

RELATING TO: Babcock Ranch Community Independent Special District, Charlotte and Lee Counties 
[Indicate Area Affected (City, County or Special District) and Subject] 

I. REVENUES: 

These figures are new revenues that would not exist but for the passage of the bill. 
The term "revenue" contemplates, but is not limited to, taxes, fees and special assessments. 
For example, license plate fees may be a revenue source. If the bill will add or remove 
property or individuals from the tax base, include this information as well. 

Revenue decrease due to bill : 

Revenue increase due to bill : 

II. COST: 

FY 16-17 

$ 0 

$ 0 

FY 17-18 

$_0 __ _ 

$_0 __ _ 

Include all costs, both direct and indirect, including start-up costs. If the bill repeals the 
existence of a certain entity, state the related costs, such as satisfying liabilities and 
distributing assets. 

Expenditures for Implementation, Administration and Enforcement: 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 

$_0 __ _ 

Please include explanations and calculations regarding how each dollar figure was 
determined in reaching total cost. 

The proposal would expand the boundaries of the Babcock Ranch Community Independent Special District 

("District") by 4,157.2 acres in Lee County ("Expansion Area"). There is no residential or commercial 

development planned for this area which is currently expected to be used for sports fields somtime 

in the future (3-to-5 years at the earliest). 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 1 of 4 



Ill. FUNDING SOURCE(S): 

State the specific sources from which funding will be received , for example , license plate 
fees , state funds, borrowed funds, or special assessments. 

If certain funding changes are anticipated to occur beyond the following two fiscal years, 
explain the change and at what rate taxes, fees or assessments will be collected in those 
years. 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 

Local : $ 0 $ 0 

State: $ 0 $ 0 

Federal : $ 0 $ 0 

IV. ECONOMIC IMPACT: 

Potential Advantages: 

Include all possible outcomes linked to the bill , such as increased efficiencies, and 
positive or negative changes to tax revenue. If an act is being repealed or an entity 
dissolved , indude the increased or decreased efficiencies caused thereby. 

Include specific figures for anticipated job growth. 

1. Advantages to Individuals: 

2. Advantages to Businesses: 

3. Advantages to Government: 

Potential Disadvantages: 

The expansion provides additional recreational 

opportunities in the future. 

The expansion will provide additional customers 

for local businesses from the spectators and the 

participants in the expected sporting events. 

At no cost to the State, local or federal governments 

recreational sports fields will be developed. 

Include all possible outcomes linked to the bill , such as inefficiencies, shortages or 
market changes anticipated . ' 

Include reduced business opportunities, such as reduced access to capital or training . 

State any decreases in tax revenue as a result of the bill. 

1. Disadvantages to Individuals: _N_o_n_e _ _ ___________ _ 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 2 of 4 



2. Disadvantages to Businesses: Some existing, low quality, range land would be 

converted for use as sporting fields with supporting 

low impact development. 

3. Disadvantages to Government: _N_o_n_e _____________ _ 

V. DESCRIBE THE POTENTIAL IMPACT OF THE BILL ON PRESENT GOVERNMENTAL 
SERVICES: 

The District would be responsible for providing services and infrastructure to support the 

expected recreational uses in the Expansion Area . Charlotte County would provide 

public safety services. 

VI. SPECIFIC DATA USED IN REACHING ESTIMATES: 

Include the type(s) and source(s) of data used, percentages, dollar figures , all 
assumptions made, history of the industry/issue affected by the bill , and any audits. 

See attached Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs. 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 3 of 4 



VII. CERTIFICATION BY PREPARER 

I hereby certify I am qualified to establish fiscal data and impacts and have personal 
knowledge of the information given. I have reviewed all available financial information 
applicable to the substance of the above-stated local bill and confirm the foregoing 
Economic Impact Statement is a true and accurate estimate of the economic impact of 
the bill. 

Digitally signed by Henry H. Fishkind, 

Henry H. Fishkind, Ph.D. Ph.o. 

PREPARED BY: Date: 2015.12.01 11:35:52 -05'00' 
[Must be signed by Prep-a-re.....,r].-

Print preparer's name: 
Henry H. Fishkind, Ph.D. 

December 1, 2015 
Date 

TITLE (such as Executive Director, Actuary, Chief Accountant, or Budget Director) : 

REPRESENTING: 

PHONE: 

E-MAIL ADDRESS: 

The District 

407-382-3256 

Hankf@fishkind .com 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 4 of 4 



STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS 

BOUNDARY EXPANSION OF THE 
BABCOCK RANCH INDEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICT 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Purpose and Scope 

This statement of estimated regulatory costs ("SERC") supports the 
petition to expand the boundaries of Babcock Ranch Community 
Independent Special District ("District"). The District's boundaries are 
proposed to be expanded to include 4,157.2 acres in Lee County. The 
District will provide infrastructure and community services to the additional 
acreage. 

1.3 Requirements for Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs 

Section 120.541 (2), FS defines the elements a statement of estimated 
regulatory costs must contain: 

(a) An economic analysis showing whether the rule directly or 
indirectly: 

1. Is likely to have an adverse impact on economic growth, private 
sector job creation or employment, or private sector investment in excess 
of $1 million in the aggregate within 5 years after the implementation of 
the rule; 

2. Is likely to have an adverse impact on business 
competitiveness, including the ability of persons doing business in the 
state to compete with persons doing business in other states or domestic 
markets, productivity, or innovation in excess of $1 million in the 
aggregate within 5 years after the implementation of the rule; or 

3. Is likely to increase regulatory costs, including any transactional 
costs, in excess of $1 million in the aggregate within 5 years after the 
implementation of the rule. 



(b) A good faith estimate of the number of individuals and entities likely to 
be required to comply with the rule, together with a general description 
of the types of individuals likely to be affected by the rule. 

(c) A good faith estimate of the cost to the agency, and to any other state 
and local government entities, of implementing and enforcing the 
proposed rule, and any anticipated effect on state or local revenues. 

(d) A good faith estimate of the transactional costs likely to be incurred by 
individuals and entities, including local government entities, required to 
comply with the requirements of the rule. As used in this section, 
"transactional costs" are direct costs that are readily ascertainable 
based upon standard business practices, and include filing fees , the 
cost of obtaining a license, the cost of equipment required to be 
installed or used or procedures required to be employed in complying 
with the rule , additional operating costs incurred, the cost of monitoring 
and reporting, and any other costs necessary to comply with the rule. 

(e) An analysis of the impact on small businesses as defined by s. 
288.703, and an analysis of the impact on small counties and small 
cities as defined ins. 120.52. The impact analysis for small businesses 
must include the basis for the agency's decision not to implement 
alternatives that would reduce adverse impacts on small businesses. 

(f) Any additional information that the agency determines may be useful. 

(g) In the statement or revised statement, whichever applies, a description 
of any regulatory alternatives submitted under paragraph (1 )(a) and a 
statement adopting the alternative or a statement of the reasons for 
rejecting the alternative in favor of the proposed rule 

2.0 Will the proposed expansion of the District directly or indirectly have 
an adverse impact on economic growth, private sector job creation 
or employment, or private sector investment in excess of $1 million 
in the aggregate within 5 years after the implementation of the rule? 

No. Although development alternatives are being considered , over the 
next five years there is no development planned for the expansion area. 
However, if the District's plans for infrastructure development should 
change, any impact would be positive for economic growth , private sector 



job creation, employment and investment. The accelerated installation of 
District infrastructure would support private development and construction 
giving rise to increased employment and private sector investment. 

3.0 Will the proposed expansion of the District directly or indirectly have 
an adverse impact on business competitiveness, including the ability 
of persons doing business in the state to compete with persons 
doing business in other states or domestic markets, productivity, or 
innovation in excess of $1 million in the aggregate within 5 years 
after the implementation of the rule 

No. Although development alternatives are being considered, over the 
next five years there is no development planned for the expansion area. 
However, if the District's plans for infrastructure development should 
change, it would have a positive impact on business competitiveness by 
supporting private sector investment and supporting increases in the 
productivity of the property. There would be no adverse impact on the 
ability of any person to compete with others in other states or in alternative 
domestic markets in light of the location of the expansion area. 

4.0 Will the proposed expansion of the District directly or indirectly 
increase regulatory costs, including any transactional costs, in 
excess of $1 million in the aggregate within 5 years after the 
implementation of the rule 

No. Although development alternatives are being considered, over the 
next five years there is no development planned for the expansion area. 
However, if the District's plans for infrastructure development should 
change, then the District would impose special assessments on the 
properties in the expansion area benefitting from the District's 
infrastructure. However, the precise nature and amount of any such 
assessments, if any, are not known at this time. 



5.0 A good faith estimate of the number of individuals and entities likely 
to be required to comply with the rule, together with a general 
description of the types of individuals likely to be affected by the 
rule. 

If this petition is granted, all landowners within the proposed expansion 
area of the District will come under the jurisdiction of the District. This will 
include the property of the current landowner prior to the development and 
sale of its property in the expansion area. 

6.0 Good faith estimate of the cost to the agency, and to any other state 
and local government entities, of implementing and enforcing the 
proposed rule, and any anticipated effect on state or local revenues. 

Cost to State Government Entities 

The proposed expansion of the District will add 4,157.2 acres of land 
located in Lee County. Since the District was established by the 
Legislature, the Legislature's staff will process the petition to expand the 
District's boundaries. 

The processing of the petition and the analysis of the petition by the staff 
of the Legislature will absorb staff time and resources. However, these 
costs will be minimal because: (a) the petition contains all of the 
information necessary for its review requiring no additional research and 
(b) the Legislative staff is already in place and is very experienced in 
reviewing similar matters. In this case the issues are relatively simple and 
straightforward requiring little staff time and resources. 

The ongoing costs to various State entities to implement and enforce the 
proposed boundary amendment relate strictly to the receipt and 
processing of various reports that the District is required to file annually 
with the State and its various entities. These annual reports are outlined 
in the attached Appendix. However, the costs to these State agencies 
that will receive and process the reports will not be increased because the 
District would have been required to file these annual reports regardless of 
whether the proposed boundary amendment is approved. 



Cost to Lee County 

Lee County ("County") staff also will analyze the petition to expand the 
District's boundaries. These activities will absorb some County resources. 
However, these costs to the County are likely to be minimal for a number 
of reasons. First, review of the petition does not include analysis of the 
development to be served by the District. Second, the petition itself 
provides much of the information needed for a staff review. Third , the 
County currently employs the staff needed to conduct the review without 
the need for new staff. Fourth, there is no capital required to review the 
petition. Finally, local governments routinely process similar petitions for 
land use and zoning changes that are far more complex than is the 
petition to amend the boundaries of an existing community development 
district. 

The annual costs to Lee County, related to the continued existence of the 
District, are also very small and are within the control of the local 
government. The District is an independent unit of local government. The 
only annual costs incurred are the minimal costs of receiving and to the 
extent desired, reviewing the various reports that the District is required to 
provide to the local governments. 

Impact on State and Local Revenue 

Adoption of the proposed ordinance will have no negative impact on State 
or local revenues. The District is an independent unit of local government. 
It is designed to provide community facilities and services to serve the 
development. It has its own sources of revenue. No State or local 
subsidies are required or expected. Furthermore, the petition involves 
only the amendment of the boundaries of an existing District. 

In this regard it is important to note that any debt obligations incurred by 
the District to construct its infrastructure, or for any other reason, are not 
debts of the State of Florida or any unit of local government. By State law 
debts of the District are strictly its own responsibility. 



7.0 A good faith estimate of the transactional costs likely to be incurred 
by individuals and entities, including local government entities, 
required to comply with the requirements of the rule. As used in this 
section, "transactional costs" are direct costs that are readily 
ascertainable based upon standard business practices, and include 
filing fees, the cost of obtaining a license, the cost of equipment 
required to be installed or used or procedures required to be 
employed in complying with the rule, additional operating costs 
incurred, the cost of monitoring and reporting, and any other costs 
necessary to comply with the rule. 

The District already exists and plans to provide community facilities and 
services to a portion of the Development. The proposal is to expand the 
District's boundaries. However, there will be no change in the scope of 
facilities or services provided by the District. The District will provide 
precisely the same services and facilities to the new District areas that it 
planned on providing to the lands located within the current boundaries of 
the District. 

However, prospective future landowners in the expansion area of the 
District may be required to pay non-ad valorem assessments levied by the 
District to fund the installation of capital improvements in the expansion 
area. In addition to the levy of non ad valorem assessments for debt 
service, the District will also impose a non ad valorem assessment to fund 
the operations and maintenance of the District and its facilities and 
services if any such services and facilities are installed in the expansion 
area. 

It is important to note that the various costs referenced above are typical 
for developments of the type contemplated here. In other words, there is 
nothing peculiar about the District's financing that requires additional 
infrastructure over and above what would normally be needed. Therefore, 
these costs are not in addition to normal development costs. Instead, the 
facilities and services provided by the District are substituting in part for 
developer provided infrastructure and facilities . Along these same lines, 
District imposed assessments for operations and maintenance cost are 
similar to what would be charged in any event by a property owner's 
association common to most master planned developments. 



Real estate markets are quite efficient, because buyers and renters 
evaluate all of the cost and benefits associated with various alternative 
locations. Therefore, market forces preclude developers from marking up 
the prices of their products beyond what the competition allows. To remain 
competitive the operations and maintenance charges must also be in line 
with the competition. 

Furthermore, locating in the District by new residents is completely 
voluntary. So, ultimately, all owners and users of the affected property 
choose to accept the District's costs in tradeoff for the benefits that the 
District provides. 

The District is an alternative means to finance necessary community 
services. District financing is no more expensive, and often less 
expensive, than the alternatives of a municipal services taxing unit 
(MSTU), a neighborhood association, County provision (directly or via a 
dependent special district) , or through developer-bank loans. 

8.0 An analysis of the impact on small businesses as defined by s. 
288.703, and an analysis of the impact on small counties and small 
cities as defined in s. 120.52. The impact analysis for small 
businesses must include the basis for the agency's decision not to 
implement alternatives that would reduce adverse impacts on small 
businesses. 

There will be no impact on small businesses because of the amendment 
of the District's boundaries. If anything, the impact may be positive. This 
is because the District must competitively bid certain of its contracts. This 
affords small businesses the opportunity to bid on District work. 

Charlotte County has an estimated population greater than 25,000 in the 
most current census (201 0). Therefore, the County is not defined as a 
"small" County according to Section 120.52, F.S. However, as noted 
above there will be no adverse impact on either local government or small 
business due to the amendment of the District's boundaries. 



9.0 Any additional information that the agency determines may be 
useful. 

The analysis provided above is based on a straightforward application of 
economic theory, especially as it relates to tracking the incidence of 
regulatory costs and benefits. 

Finally, it is useful to reflect upon the question of whether the District is the 
best alternative to provide community facilities and services to the 
Development. As an alternative to the District, the County could approve 
a dependent special district for the area, such as an MSBU or a special 
taxing district under Chapter 170, F.S. Either of these alternatives could 
finance the improvements contemplated in Table 2 in a fashion similar to 
the proposed District. 

However, unlike the District, the alternatives would require the County to 
continue to administer the project and its facilities and services. As a 
result, the costs for these services and facilities would not be sequestered 
to the land directly benefiting from them, as the case would be with the 
District. In addition, administering a project of the size and complexity of 
the development program anticipated for the District is very significant and 
expensive undertaking. 

With a District, residents and renters within the District would have a 
focused unit of government under their direct control. The District can 
then be more responsive to resident needs without disrupting other 
County responsibilities. 

Third, any debt of a District is strictly the District's responsibility. While it 
may be technically true that the debt of the County-established, dependent 
special district, is not strictly the County's responsibility, any financial 
problems that the special District may have inevitably will entangle the 
County. This will not be the case if the District's boundaries are amended. 

Another alternative to the District would be for the developer to provide the 
infrastructure and to use a property owners association (POA) for 
operations and maintenance of community facilities and services. A 
District is superior to a POA for a variety of reasons. First, unlike a POA a 
District can impose and collect its assessments along with other property 



taxes. Therefore, the District is far more assured of obtaining its needed 
funds than is a POA. 
Second, the proposed District is a unit of local government. Therefore, 
unlike the POA the District must abide by all governmental rules and 
regulations. 

10.0 In the statement or revised statement, whichever applies, a 
description of any regulatory alternatives submitted under paragraph 
(1 }(a) and a statement adopting the alternative or a statement of the 
reasons for rejecting the alternative in favor of the proposed rule 

No regulatory alternatives were submitted. Alternatives to the proposed 
rule were discussed above in paragraph 9. 



APPENDIX A 
LIST OF REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

FLORIDA 
STATUTE 

REPORT CITE DATE 

Annual Financial Audit 11.45 9 months after end of 
fiscal year 

Annual Financial Report (AFR) 218.32 by March 31 

TRIM Compliance Report 200.068 130 days after 

Form 1 -Limited Financial Disclosure 112.3144 by July 1 

Public Depositor 215 by November 15 

Proposed Budget 218.34 by September 1 

Public Facilities Report 189.415 March 1 

Public Meetings Schedule 189.417 beginning of fiscal year 

Bond Report 218.38 When issued 

Registered Agent 189.417 30 Days after 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 1039 2016 

1 A bill to be entitled 

2 An act relating to the Babcock Ranch Community 

3 Independent Special District, Charlotte and Lee 

4 Counties; amending chapter 2007-306, Laws of Florida; 

5 expanding the Babcock Ranch Community Independent 

6 Special District to include areas o f Lee County; 

7 amending legislative intent, definitions, legislative 

8 policy, district creation and establishment, governing 

9 board administrative duties, district budgets and 

10 financial reports, and district powers to include 

11 references to Lee County; amending the distri ct 's 

12 legal boundaries to include areas of Lee County; 

13 requiring district governing board election procedures 

14 to involve officials from both counties; requiring 

15 general obligation bond elections t o occur in both 

16 counties; authorizing the levy and collection of non-

17 ad va l orem maintenance taxes in both counties ; 

18 providing for required notices to be published in both 

19 count ies; requiring a referendum; providing an 

20 effective date. 

21 

22 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida: 

23 

24 Section 1. Paragraphs (a) , (g) , (j), (n), (o), (p) , and 

25 (q) of subsecti on (1) , paragraphs (f) and (w) of subsection (2) , 

Page 1 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 1039 2016 

2 6 and paragraphs (a) , (d ) , and (f) of subsection ( 3 ) of section 2 

27 of chapter 2007 - 306 , Laws of Florida, are amended to read: 

28 Section 2. Legislative findings and intent; de finit ions; 

29 policy. -

30 (1 ) LEGIS LATIVE FINDINGS AND INTENT.-

31 (a ) The unincorporated areas area of southeastern 

32 Char l otte County and northeastern Lee County, i ncluding the 

33 Babcock Ranch lands , a re unique and special with a need towards 

34 protecting natural resources and retaining a v iable agricultural 

35 system while protecting private property rights and promo ting a 

36 sound economy. 

37 (g) There are two a lternatives for the creation of 

38 independent special districts for properties of this size : the 

39 establishment by rule o f the Governor and Cabinet o f one o r more 

40 uniform community development d i str i cts ove r the property; and 

41 the establi shment by special act of the Legislature of a s i ngle 

42 independent specia l district meeting the minimum requirements of 

43 c hapter 189 , Fl orida Statutes, the applicab l e d istrict 

44 accountability genera l law. Use of this special ac t, created 

45 under chapter 189 , Florida St atutes , i s the better of the two 

46 alternatives in th i s case because it will allow for use of a 

47 single specia l dis tri c t, with longer involvement and 

48 responsibility on the part of the init ial landowner, which wil l 

49 result in better intergovernmental coordinati on and lower 

50 administrative costs for Charlotte County , Lee County , and the 

51 district, includin g its landowners and res i dents . Additionally, 

Page 2 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 1039 2016 

52 use of this special act '•<ill provide the fleHibility to include 

53 ,,,ithin the district , at a later date , contiguous Babeoelc Ranch 

54 lands r.vithin Lee County , r.vhereas chapter 190 , Florida Statutes , 

55 'oWUld prevent a single uniform COH\Ff\Unity development d i st ri ct 

56 from crossing county l ines. Additionally , use o f this special 

57 act updat es the charter of a uniform community development 

58 district under c hapter 190 , Flor ida Sta tutes , e liminates 

59 potential f or it s abuse , c larifies and sets forth ce rtain 

60 uniform procedures f or liens on property , and makes other 

61 substantial reforms to the benefi t of the peopl e of Charlotte 

62 and Lee Counties County and future landowners , residen ts , and 

63 visito r s . 

64 (j) The existence and use of s uch a l imited, specialized 

65 single - purpose l oca l governmen t for the Babcock Ranch Communit y , 

66 subject to the respective Charlotte coun t y comprehensive plan 

67 and land development regulati ons , will result in a higher 

68 propensity to provide for orderly development and prevent urban 

69 sprawl; protect and prese r ve environmental and conservation u ses 

70 and assets; potentially enhance the market va lue for both 

71 present and future landowners of the proper ty consistent with 

72 the need t o protect private property ; potentially enhance the 

73 ne t economi c benefit t o Char l otte and Lee Countie s County , 

74 includ i ng an enhanced tax base to the benefit of all p r esent a nd 

75 future taxpayers in Charlotte and Lee Counties County; a nd 

76 result i n the sharing of costs of providing certain systems , 

Page 3 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 1039 2016 

77 facilities, and services in an innovative, sequential, and 

78 flexible manner within the area to be serviced by the district. 

79 (n) In order to be respons i ve to the critical timing 

80 required through the exercise of its special management 

81 functions, an independent district requires financing of those 

82 functions, including bondable, lienable , and nonlienable 

83 revenue, with full and continuing public disc losure and 

84 accountability, funded by landowners, both present and future, 

85 and funded also by users of the systems, facilities, and 

86 serv i ces provided to the land area by the district , without 

87 burdening the taxpayers and citizens of the state, Charlotte 

88 Coun ty, Lee County , or any municipality therein. 

89 (o) The district created and established by this act shal l 

90 not exercise or have any comprehensive planning, zoning, or 

91 development permitting power; the establishment of the district 

92 shall not be considered a development order within the meaning 

93 of chapter 380, Florida Statutes ; and a ll applicable planning 

94 and permitt ing laws, rules, regulations, agreements , and 

95 policies of Charlotte and Lee Counties County shall control the 

96 development of the land within each respective county to be 

97 served by the district . 

98 (p) The creation by This act of the Babcock Ranch 

99 Coffiffiunity Independent Special District is not inconsistent with 

100 either the Charlotte County or Lee Coun ty comprehensive plan . 

101 (q) Neither Charlotte County nor Lee County ob jects 4eee 

102 not object to the creation of the district. 

Page 4 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 1039 2016 

103 (2) DEFINI TI ONS .-As used i n this act : 

104 (f ) " Babcock Ranch Commun i ty " means that portion of the 

105 Babcock Ran ch to be developed wi t h a new , sustainable , compact , 

106 mi xed- use community pursuant to that certa in Interlocal Planning 

107 Agreement for the Babcock Ranch , dated January 2 4, 2006 , among 

10 8 the Florida Department of Community Affairs , Lee and Charlotte 

109 Countie s , and the then contract purchaser of the Babcock Ranch , 

110 and pursuant to development approva ls issued or to be issued by 

11 1 Lee and Charlot t e Countie s County and Charlotte County , 

11 2 consisting o f approximately 17, 800 acres . The subject of this 

113 act is that portion of the Babcock Ranch Coffiffiunity located in 

114 Char lotte County , consisting of approHiffl:ately 13,631 acres, as 

115 descr ibed i n sect i on 4. 

116 (w) "Qualif ied elector " means any person at leas t 18 years 

117 of age o r o l der , who is a citizen of the Un ited States , a legal 

118 resident of the state and the d i st rict , ttft4 who registers to 

119 vote with the Supervisor of Elect i ons in Char l otte County or Le e 

120 Coun t y , and resides in either Charlott e Count y or Lee County. 

121 (3) POLI CY .-Based upon its findings, ascertainments , 

122 determinat i ons , intent , purpose , and definiti ons, the 

123 Legislature states its pol i cy express l y : 

124 (a ) The d istrict and the district charter, with its 

125 gene ral and special powers , as created in t hi s act , are 

126 essential and the best alternative for the residential , 

127 commercial, and other community u ses , projects, or functions in 

128 the included portions portion of Charlotte County and Lee County 

Page 5 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 1039 

129 consistent with the effective comprehensive plans and serve a 

1 30 lawful public purpose. 

1 31 (d) The district shall ope rat e and function subject to , 

2016 

1 32 and not incons istent with , the applicable comprehensive plan of 

1 33 either Charlotte County or Lee Count y comprehensive plan and any 

134 applicable development orders , zoning regulations, and other 

135 land development regulations . 

136 (f ) Thi s act ma y be amended , in who le o r in part , only by 

1 37 subsequent specia l act o f the Legislature . No amendment to this 

1 38 act that alters the district boundaries or the general or 

139 specia l powers of the district may be cons i dered by the 

140 Legis l ature unl ess it is accompanied by a resoluti on or offi c ial 

141 statement as provided f o r in sect i on 189.031 (2) (e) 4 . 

1 42 189 . qoq (2) ( e ) q ., Fl o ri da Statutes . However , if an amendment 

14 3 alters the d istri c t boundaries i n only one county , o r affects 

14 4 the district's special powers in on l y one county , it is 

145 necessary to secure the res o lution or statement fr om on ly the 

14 6 affected county . 

147 Section 2 . Subsection ( 1 ) of section 3 of chapter 2007 -

14 8 306 , Laws of Florida , is amended to read: 

149 Section 3 . Crea ti on and establishment; jurisdiction ; 

150 construction ; c harter with legal desc ription.-

151 (1) The Babcock Ranch Commun ity Independent Special 

1 52 Dist ri ct , which also ma y be referred to as the "district, " is 

153 created and incorporated as a public body corporate and politic , 

154 an independent, limited, special purpose local government , an 

Page 6 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTAT I V E S 

HB 1039 

155 independent special district under section 189 . 031 189.404 , 

156 Florida Statutes, and as defined in this act and section 

157 189.012(3) 189.403(3) , Florida Statutes, in and for a certain 

158 portions portion of Charlotte County and Lee County. Any 

159 amendments to chapter 190 , Florida Statutes , after January 1 , 

160 2007, granting additiona l general powers , special powers , 

201 6 

161 authorities , or projects to a community development district by 

162 amendment to its uniform charter, sections 190 . 006-190.041 , 

163 Florida Statutes , shall constitute a general power , special 

164 power, authority, or function of the Babcock Ranch Community 

165 Independent Special District. All notices for the enactment by 

166 the Leg i slature of this special act have been provided pursuant 

167 to the State Constitution , laws of the state, and the Rules of 

168 the Florida House of Representatives and of the Florida Senate . 

169 Section 3 . Section 4 of chapter 2007 - 306 , Laws of Florida , 

170 is amended to read : 

171 Section 4 . Legal description of the Babcock Ranch 

172 Community Independent Spec i al District.-

173 

174 

175 

176 

177 

178 

179 

180 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION . The metes and bounds legal 

description of the district , within which there are no 

parcels of property owned by those who do not wish 

their property to be included within the district , is 

a s fol l ows : 

CHARLOTTE COUNTY PARCEL : 

Page 7 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

181 

182 

183 

184 

185 

186 

187 

188 

189 

190 

19 1 

192 

193 

194 

1 95 

1 96 

1 97 

1 98 

1 99 

200 

201 

202 

203 

204 

205 

206 

HB 1039 

A parcel of land l ying within Sections 29 , 31 through 

33 , Township 41 South , Range 26 East , AND , Sections 4 

through 10 , Sections 15 through 17 and Sections 19 

through 36 , Township 42 South , Range 26 East, 

Charlotte Count y, Fl or i da , being more particularly 

described as f o llows: 

Commence at the Southwest corner o f Section 31, 

Township 42 South , Range 26 East and run S89°41 ' 45"E , 

along the South line of said Section 31, a distance of 

50. 00 feet to a point on t he East right-of-way line o f 

State Road No . 31 , said point also being the Point of 

Beginning of the parcel of l and here i n described ; 

Thence continue S89°41 ' 45 "E a d i stance of 5 ,1 89 . 75 

feet to the Northeas t corner of Section 6 , Townsh ip 43 

South , Range 26 East; Thence S89°41 ' 45 "E a distance o f 

5 , 306 . 08 feet to the Northeast corner of Section 5, 

Townsh ip 43 South, Range 26 East ; Thence S89°37 '1 6 "E a 

d istance of 5 , 289 .1 1 feet to the Northeast corner o f 

Section 4 , Township 43 South , Range 26 East ; Thence 

S89°35 ' 44 " E a distance of 5 , 294 . 60 f eet to the 

No r theast corne r of Section 3 , Township 43 South , 

Range 26 East ; Thence S89°35 ' 44 "E a di stance of 

5,294. 60 feet to the Northeast corner of Section 2 , 

Township 43 South , Range 26 East ; Thence S89°35 ' 44 " E, 

Page 8 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

2016 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 1039 2016 

207 along the North line of Section 1 , Township 43 South , 

208 Range 26 East, a distance of 3 , 430 . 66 feet; Thence 

209 N00°00 ' 40 "W a distance of 10 , 185 . 53 feet ; Thence 

210 N05°46 ' 23 " E a distance of 1 , 058 . 56 feet ; Thence 

211 N66°40'38 "W a d i stance of 200 . 62 feet ; Thence 

212 S83°12 ' 47 "W a distance of 1 , 373 . 33 feet ; Thence 

213 N30°17 ' 33 "W a distance of 1 , 686 . 63 feet ; Thence 

214 N70°02 ' 41 "W a distance of 1 , 332 . 41 feet ; Thence 

215 S72°42 ' 44 "W a distance of 1 , 430 . 81 feet ; Thence 

216 N49° 18 ' 31 "W a distance of 2 , 362 . 25 feet ; Thence 

217 S69°00 ' 57 "W a distance of 1 , 518 . 19 f eet ; Thence 

218 S2 1 °08 ' 17 "W a distance of 865 . 44 feet ; Thence 

219 S20°29 ' 11 "E a distance of 1 , 376 . 91 f eet ; Thence 

220 N74°38 ' 25 "E a distance of 1 , 635 . 69 feet ; Thence 

221 S00°18 ' 50 "E a distance of 1 , 309.92 feet ; Thence 

222 S89°45 ' 02 "W a distance of 4 , 154 . 48 feet ; Thence 

223 N51°39 ' 36 "W a dis t ance of 782.53 feet ; Thence 

224 N04°14 ' 12 "E a d istance of 1 , 329.59 feet ; Thence 

225 N39°20 ' 59 "W a dis t a nce of 1 , 779 . 16 feet ; Thence 

226 N42°01 ' 35 "W a distance of 1 , 162 . 94 feet ; Thence 

227 S52°01 ' 16 "W a distance of 818 . 34 feet ; Thence 

228 S62°56 ' 46 "W a distance of 516 . 42 feet ; Thence 

229 S89°59 ' 33 "W a distance of 307 . 20 feet ; Thence 

230 N80°06 '1 8 "W a distance of 334 . 84 f e et; Thence 

23 1 N20°54 ' 51 "W a distance of 336 . 86 fee t; Thence 

232 N05°03 ' 05 " E a distance of 533 . 35 feet ; Thence 

Page 9 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 1039 2016 

233 N22°47'49"E a distance of 5,490.82 feet; Thence 

234 N55°42 ' 26 " E a distance of 195.73 feet ; Thence 

235 N21°59 ' 06 "W a distance of 1 , 739 . 17 feet; Thence 

236 N52°37 ' 55 "E a distance of 867 . 75 feet ; Thence 

237 N13°36 ' 57 "W a distance of 2 , 507 . 33 feet; Thence 

238 S78°50 ' 16 "W a dis tance of 687 . 95 feet; Thence 

239 N19°48 ' 25 " W a d is tance of 366 . 25 feet ; Thence 

240 N08°01 ' 21 " W a distance of 493 . 32 feet ; Thence 

241 N03°43 ' 40 " E a distance of 687 . 22 feet ; Thence 

242 N00 °28 ' 20 " E a distance of 674 . 51 feet ; Thence 

243 N25°12 ' 33 "W a distance of 261 . 13 feet; Thence 

244 N4 2°5 4' 55 "W a dis t ance of 643 . 19 feet; Thence 

245 N07°19 ' 37 "W a distance of 171.40 feet; Thence 

246 N13°05 ' 30 "E a distance of 20 1. 96 feet; Thence 

247 N32°40 ' 01 " W a distance of 186 . 12 feet ; Thence 

2 48 N05°04 ' 15 " W a d i stance of 1 , 832 . 77 fe et ; Thence 

249 N19°47 ' 08 "W a d i stance of 527 . 20 feet ; Thence 

250 N26°13 ' 22 "W a distance o f 802 . 13 feet ; Thence 

251 S79°06 ' 55 "W a distance of 475.20 feet ; Thence 

252 N74°19 ' 19 " W a dis tance of 1 , 689.05 feet ; Thence 

253 N01°26 ' 06 " W a distance of 897 . 42 feet ; Thence 

254 N89°51 ' 42 " W a distance of 67 . 91 feet; Thence 

255 N00°00 ' 03 "W a d istance of 1,21 8 . 37 feet; Thence 

256 N3 9°50 ' 11 "W a distance of 190.86 feet; Thence 

257 N00°00'2 9 "W a distance of 324 . 62 feet; Thence 

258 N89°59 ' 52 " W a distance of 688 . 20 feet ; Thence 

Page 10 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 1039 2016 

259 N00°00 ' 00 "E a distance of 1 , 967 . 22 feet; The nce 

260 N41°13'25 "W a distance of 2 , 825 .17 feet ; Thence 

26 1 S89°59 ' 57 "W a distance o f 3 , 566 . 80 f eet ; Thence 

262 S00°00 ' 03 "E a distance o f 2 , 799 . 34 feet; Thence 

263 S89°11 ' 17 "W a distance of 5 , 960 . 98 feet to a point 

264 l ying 50 . 00 feet East o f the East right-of- way line 

265 f or State Road No. 31; Thence along a line 50 . 00 feet 

266 East o f, a nd parallel with , the East ri ght - of - way line 

267 f o r State Road No . 31 , the following courses a nd 

268 d i stances : S00°48 ' 43 " E a distance of 2 , 976 . 13 feet and 

269 S00 °3 4'01"W a distance of 786 . 2 5 feet; Thence 

270 S89° 25'5 9"E a distance of 4 ,1 04 . 32 feet; Thence 

27 1 S00°01 ' 22 " E a distance of 2 , 084 .04 feet; The nce 

272 S16°46 ' 15 "E a distance of 1 , 740 . 24 feet; Thence 

273 S09°11 '5 9"W a d istance of 1 , 325 . 85 feet; Thence 

274 S73 o 15 ' 18 "E a distance of 66 1.1 5 feet ; Thence 

275 N59°20 ' 29 "E a distance of 577 . 75 feet; Thence 

276 S38° 10 ' 48 "E a d istance of 55 1. 46 f eet ; Thence 

277 S86°25 ' 58 "E a distance o f 385 . 80 feet ; Thence 

278 S24°01 ' 11 "E a distance of 975 .1 2 feet ; Thence 

279 S57°46 ' 34"E a d i stance of 530 . 20 feet ; Thence 

280 S70°04 ' 12 " E a d i stance of 1 , 843 . 47 f eet ; Thence 

281 N63 °0 1' 21"E a d is tance of 1 , 214 . 99 fe et ; Thence 

282 S50 ° 03' 22 "E a distance of 2 , 565 . 56 feet; Thence 

283 S13°5 6 ' 09 "W a d istance of 1, 953 . 90 feet; Thence 

284 S12°51 ' 59 "E a dis tance of 1 , 862 . 33 feet; Thence 

Page 11 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 1039 2016 

285 S71°59 ' 01 "W a d i stance of 448.53 feet ; Thence 

286 N45°00 ' 57 "W a d i stance of 266 . 60 feet ; Thence 

287 S69°50 ' 23 "W a d i stance of 1 , 104 . 27 f ee t; Thence 

288 S28°10 ' 55 " E a d i stance of 1 , 272 . 60 feet ; Thence 

289 S62°45 ' 03 "W a d i s tance of 4 , 638 . 30 feet ; Thence 

290 S82° 12 ' 01"W a d i s tance of 71 1. 48 feet ; Thence 

291 S81°38 ' 00 "W a d i s t ance of 5 , 167 . 82 f e et ; Thence 

292 N77°54 ' 41 "W a distance of 707 . 32 feet ; Thence 

293 N89°28 ' 15 "W a dis t a nce of 299 . 98 fe et to a point lying 

294 50 . 00 feet East of the East right - o f- way line for 

295 St a t e Road No . 31; Thence a l ong a line 50 . 00 fee t East 

296 of, and parallel wi th , the Eas t r ight-of - way line for 

297 St ate Road No . 31, the fo llowing courses and 

298 distances : S00°31' 45 "W a distance of 4 , 197 . 71 fee t, 

299 S00°26 '1 0 "W a d i stance of 5 , 282 . 33 feet and 

300 S00°36 ' 46 "W a d i stance of 5 , 337 . 00 f eet to the Point 

301 o f Beg i nning . 

302 

303 Containing 13 , 630 . 64 acres , more or l ess . 

304 

305 

306 

307 

308 

309 

310 

Bearings hereinabove me n tioned a r e based on the North 

line of Section 6 , Township 43 South , Range 26 Eas t t o 

bear S89° 41'4 5 "E. 

LEE COUNTY PARCEL : 

Page 12 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

311 

312 

313 

314 

315 

316 

317 

318 

319 

320 

321 

322 

323 

324 

325 

326 

327 

328 

329 

330 

331 

332 

333 

334 

335 

336 

HB 1039 

A parcel of land lying within Sections 1 through 7 and 

Section 9, Township 43 South , Range 26 East, Lee 

County , Florida, being more particularly described as 

follows: 

Commence at the Southwest corner of Section 31 , 

Township 42 South, Range 26 East and run S89°41 '45"E, 

along the South line of said Sect i on 31 , a distance of 

50.00 feet to a point on the East right-of-way line of 

State Road No. 31 , said point also being the Point of 

Beginning of the parcel of land herein described; 

Thence continue S89°41 ' 45" E a distance of 5,189.75 

feet to the Northeast corner of Section 6 , Township 43 

South , Range 26 East; Thence S89°41 '4 5 "E a distance of 

5,306.08 feet t o the Northeast corner of Section 5, 

Township 43 South, Range 26 East; Thence S89°37 '1 6 "E a 

distance o f 5,289.11 feet to the Northeast corner o f 

Section 4 , Township 43 South, Range 26 East; Thence 

S89°35 ' 44 "E a distance of 5,294.60 feet to the 

Northeast corner o f Section 3 , Township 43 South , 

Range 26 East; Thence S89°35 ' 44 "E a distance of 

5,294.60 feet to the Northeast corner of Section 2 , 

Township 43 South , Range 26 East; Thence S89°35'44"E, 

along the North line o f Sect i on 1, Township 43 South , 

Range 26 East , a distance of 155.76 feet; Thence 

S09°58'52"W a distance of 4 , 667 .96 feet; Thence 

Page 13 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

2016 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

337 

338 

339 

340 

341 

342 

343 

344 

345 

346 

347 

348 

349 

350 

351 

352 

353 

354 

355 

356 

357 

358 

359 

360 

361 

362 

HB 1039 

S04°10'14"W a distance of 283 . 52 feet; Thence 

S03°53 '1 9 "E a distance of 5 15.32 feet to a point on 

the South line of Section 2, Township 43 South, Range 

26 East (said point being 558.41 feet West of the 

Southeast corner of said Section 2); Thence 

N88°38 ' 22"W a distance of 2 , 084.07 feet to the South 

one-quarter corner of said Section 2; Thence 

N88°38 '42"W a distance of 2,642. 06 feet to the 

Southwest corner of said Section 2 ; Thence N89°51'49"W 

a distance of 5,300.09 feet to the Southwest corner of 

Section 3, Township 43 South , Range 26 East; Thence 

N89°51'54"W a distance of 2,650.09 feet to the South 

one-quarter corner of Section 4, Township 43 South , 

Range 26 East; Thence S00°23 ' 25 "W a distance of 

1,330.65 feet to the Southwest corner of the North 

one-half of the Northeast one -quarter of Sect i on 9 , 

Township 43 South, Range 26 East; Thence S06°02 '41"E a 

d i stance of 1,338.36 feet to a point on the North line 

of the Southeast one-quarter of said Section 9 (said 

point being 150 .0 0 feet East of the Northwest corner 

of the Southeast one - quarter of said Section 9); 

Thence S00°22 '5 8 "W, parallel with and 150.00 feet East 

of the West line of the Southeast one -quarter of said 

Section 9 , a distance of 2,6 11.56 feet to a point on 

the North ri ght - of - way line of County Road No. 78 ; 

Thence along said right-of-way line the following 

Page 14 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

2016 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

363 

364 

365 

366 

367 

368 

369 

370 

371 

372 

373 

374 

375 

376 

377 

378 

379 

380 

381 

382 

383 

384 

385 

386 

387 

388 

HB 1039 

courses and distances , N89°54'54 "W a distance of 

150.26 feet and N89°54'44"W a distance of 2,648 . 95 

feet to a point on the West line of said Section 9; 

Thence N00°22 ' 31 "E a distance of 2,612 . 02 feet to the 

West one - quarter corner of said Section 9 ; Thence 

N00 °2 1'56"E a distance of 2 , 663.13 feet to the 

Southeast corner of Section 5 , Township 43 South , 

Range 26 East ; Thence N89°52'00"W a distance of 

2,666 .70 feet to the South one -quarter corner of said 

Section 5; Thence N89°50'47 "W a distance of 2 , 667.42 

feet to the Southwest corner of said Section 5 ; Thence 

S00°23'16"W, a l ong the East line o f Section 7, 

Township 43 South, Range 26 East , a distance of 

5,294.00 feet to a point on the North right-of-way 

line of County Road No. 78; Thence Westerly along the 

curved right-of-way line, (said curve being curved 

concave to the North, having a delta angle of 

00°53 ' 52 " and a radius of 11,339.1 7 feet , with a chord 

bearing of N89°19'12"W and a chord length of 177.69 

feet) a distance o f 177.69 feet to the end of the 

curve; Thence N88°52'16"W, along sa id North right-of

way line, a distance of 4,406 . 31 feet to the beginn ing 

of a curve to the right; Thence along the arc of the 

curved right-of-way line, (said curve being curved 

concave to the Northeast, having a delta angle of 

89°12 '05" and a radius of 522.94 feet, with a chord 

Page 15 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

2016 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

389 

390 

391 

392 

393 

394 

395 

396 

397 

398 

399 

400 

401 

402 

403 

404 

HB 1039 

bear i ng of N44°16 ' 14 "W and a chord l ength of 734 . 37 

feet) a distance of 814 . 14 feet to a point on the East 

right - of- way line of State Road No. 31 ; Thence along 

the East right - of - way line for State Road No . 31 , the 

f o llowing cou rses a nd distances , N00° 1 9 ' 49 " E a 

distance of 4, 776 . 07 feet , N00°18 ' 54 " E a distance o f 

5 , 313.41 feet and N00°36 ' 46 " E a distance of 0 . 14 feet 

to the Point of Beginning . 

Containing 4 , 157 . 2 acres , more or less . 

Bearings hereinabove mentioned are based on the North 

line of Section 6 , Township 43 Sou t h, Ra n ge 26 East to 

bea r S89°41 ' 45 "E. 

CONTAINING A TOTAL AREA OF 17 , 787 . 84 ACRES , PLUS OR 

MINUS . 

Section 4 . Paragraphs (a) and (d) of subsection (3) a nd 

405 subsection (8) of section 5 of chapter 2007 - 306 , Laws of 

406 Florida , are amended t o r ead : 

407 Section 5 . Gove r n i ng board ; members and meetings ; 

2016 

408 organization ; powers ; duties ; terms of office ; related election 

409 requirements . -

410 (3) (a)1 . The board may not exercise the ad valorem taxing 

411 power or general obligation bond power author i zed by this act 

412 unt il suc h t ime as all members of the board , except for 

413 nonvoti ng members , are qual i fied electors wh o are elected by 

414 qua li f i ed electors of the district. 

Page 16 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 1039 

415 2.a . Regardless of whether the district has proposed to 

416 levy ad valorem taxes or issue general obligation bonds, board 

417 members i n i t i ally elected by landowners shall be elected by 

418 qualified electors of the district as the district becomes 

2016 

419 populated with qualified electors. The trans ition shall occur 

420 such that the compos iti on of the board, after the first general 

421 election following a trigger of t he qualified elector population 

422 thresholds set forth below, shall be as follows : 

423 ( I ) Once 4,600 qualified electors reside within the 

424 district , one voting board member shall be a person who was 

425 elected by the qualified electors, and four voting board members 

426 shall be persons who were elected by the landowners. 

427 (II ) Once 8,900 qualified electors reside within the 

428 district , two voting board members shall be persons who were 

429 e l ected by the qual ified electors, and three voting board 

430 members shall be persons elected by the landowners. 

431 (III ) Once 22 , 000 qualified electors reside wi thin the 

432 distr i ct , three vo ting board members shall be persons who were 

433 e l ected by the qual ified electors and two voting board members 

434 shall be persons who were elected by the landowners. 

435 (IV ) Once 24 , 000 qualified electors reside within the 

436 district, four voting board members shall be persons who were 

437 e l ected by the qualified elec t ors and one voting board member 

438 shall be a person who was e l ected by the landowners . 

Page 17 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 1039 

439 (V) Once 25,000 qualified electors reside within the 

440 district, all five voting board members shall be persons who 

441 were elected by the qualified electors. 

442 

443 Nothing in this sub-subparagraph is intended to requ ire an 

444 election prior to the expiration of an existing board member's 

445 term . 

446 b. On or before June 1 of each year , the board shall 

2016 

447 determine the number of qualified electors in the district as of 

448 the immediately preceding April 15. The board sha ll use and rely 

449 upon the offi cial records maintained by the supervisor of 

450 e lections and property appraiser or tax col lector in and f or 

451 each Charlotte county in making this determina tion . Such 

452 determination shal l be made at a properly noticed meeting of the 

453 board and shall become a part of the official minutes of the 

454 d i strict . 

455 c . All governing board member s elected by qualified 

456 electors shall be elected at large at an election occur ring as 

457 provided in subsection (2) and this subsection. 

458 d . Once the district qualifies to have any of its board 

459 members e l ected by the qua li fied electors of the district , the 

460 initial and al l subsequent elections by the qualified electors 

46 1 of the district shall be he l d at the general election in 

462 November. The board shall adopt a resolution if necessary to 

463 implement this requirement. The transition process described 

Page 18 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 1039 

464 herein is intended to be in lieu of the process set forth in 

465 section 189 . 041 189 . 40§ 1, Florida Statutes . 

201 6 

466 (d) The supervisors supervisor of elections shall appoint 

467 the inspectors and c l e r ks of elections , prepare and furn i sh the 

468 ballots , designate poll ing p l aces , and canvass the retu r ns o f 

469 the election of board members by qualified electors . The coun t y 

470 canvassing boards boa r d shall declare and certify the resu l ts of 

471 the election . 

472 (8) The board shall keep a permanent record book entitled 

473 " Reco r d of Proceedings of Babcock Ranch Commun i ty Independent 

474 Special District ," in which shall be recorded minutes of all 

475 meet i ngs , resolutions , proceedings , cert ifi cates , bonds given by 

476 all emp l oyees , and any and all corporate acts . The record book 

477 and all other district records sha ll at reasonable times be 

478 opened to inspection in the same manner as state , county , and 

479 municipal records pursuant to chapter 119 , Florida Statutes . The 

480 record book shall be kept at the office or other regular p l ace 

481 of business mainta ined b y the board in a designated locat i on i n 

482 either Charlotte County or Lee County. 

483 Section 5. Paragraphs (c) and (d) of subsection (4) , 

484 paragraphs (f) and (q) of subsection (6) , paragraph (s) of 

485 subsection (7) , paragraphs (i ) and (n) of subsection (10) , 

486 paragr aph (c) of subsection (12) , paragraph (a) of subsection 

487 (13) , p aragraph (a) of subsection (19) , paragraph (b) of 

488 subsect i on (20) , and subsection (26) o f sect i on 6 of chapter 

489 2007 - 306 , Laws of Florida , are amended to read : 

Page 19 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

490 

491 

4 92 

HB 1039 

Section 6 . Gove rning board ; genera l duties .

(4) BUDGET; REPORTS AND REV I EWS .-

(c) At least 60 days prior t o adopt i on , the boa rd o f the 

2016 

493 d istrict shall submit to the boards of coun t y commiss ione r s of 

494 Cha rlotte and Lee Cou nti es County Board o f County Cofflff\i ss ioners , 

4 95 for purposes of disc l osure and informat i on only , the proposed 

496 annua l budget for the ensuing fis cal yea r, and each ~ board o f 

497 county commissioners may submit wr i tten comme nts to t he board o f 

498 the district so lel y f or the assistance and information of the 

499 board of the district in adopting its annual district budget . 

500 (d) The board o f the dist ri ct sha ll submit annually to the 

50 1 boards o f county commissioners o f Charlotte and Lee Counties 

502 County Boa r d of County Cofflff\issioners its distri c t public 

503 f ac i l ities report under section 189 . 08(2) 189 . 415 (2 ) , Florida 

504 Statutes , wh i ch report each ~ board of county commissioners 

505 ma y shall use and rely on in the preparation or revision of its 

506 comprehensi ve plan , specifically under section 189 . 08(6) 

507 189 .41 5 (6) , Fl or i da Sta tu tes . 

508 (6) GENERAL POWERS .-The district shall have , a nd the board 

509 may exercise , t he f o l l ow i ng general powers : 

510 (f ) To maintain an off i ce at such place or places as the 

511 board designates in either Charlotte Coun ty o r Lee County , and 

512 wi th i n the district when facil ities are avai l able . 

513 (q ) To exercise such spec ial powe r s and other express 

514 powers as may be authorized and granted by th i s act in the 

515 char t er of the district , including powers as provided in any 

Page 20 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 1039 2016 

516 inter l ocal agreement entered into pursuant to chapter 163 , 

517 Florida Statutes , or that shall be required or permitted to be 

518 undertaken by the district pursuant to any development order or 

519 development of regional i mpact , or any other agreement wi th 

520 Charlotte County , Lee County , or other governmental e n tities , 

521 including , without l imi tation , any school district , sheri ff, 

522 fire district , drainage district , and health care district for 

523 proportionate , fair - share, or pipelining capital construction 

524 funding for any certain capital facilities or systems required 

525 from the development pursuant to any applicable development 

526 order or agreement. 

527 

528 The provisions o f this subsection shall be construed liberally 

529 in order to carry out effectively the specialized purpose of 

530 this act . 

531 ( 7 ) SPECIAL POWERS .-The district shall have , and the board 

532 may exercise , the fo l lowing spe c ial powers to implement its 

533 lawful and special purpose and t o provide , pursuant to that 

534 purpose, systems , faci l it i es, services, improvements , projects , 

535 works , and infrastructure , each o f which constitutes a lawful 

536 public purpose when exercised pursuant to this charter, subject 

5 37 to , and not incons istent with , the regulatory jurisdiction and 

538 permitting author ity of all other applicable governmental 

539 bod i es , agencies , and any special distr i c t s having authority 

540 with respect to any area included there i n , and to plan , 

541 establish , acquire, construct or re construct , enlarge or extend , 

Page 21 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 1039 

542 equ i p , operate , finance , fund , and maintain improvements , 

543 systems , facilities , services , works , projects , and 

2016 

544 infrastructure , including , without limitation , any obligat i ons 

545 pursuant to a development order or ag reemen t . Any o r all of the 

546 following specia l powe r s are granted by this act in o r der t o 

547 implement the special p u rpose o f the district : 

548 (s) To provide for affo rdable housing and affordab l e 

549 housing assistance in accordance with section 189 . 081(6) 

550 1 89 . 4155(6) , Florida Statutes , and other provisions of general 

55 1 l aw . 

552 (10) BONDS.-

553 

55 4 

( i ) Genera l obligation bonds . -

1 . Subje c t to the limitations o f th i s charter, the 

555 distri c t shall have the power from time t o time to issue general 

556 obl igation bonds to financ e o r refinance capital projects o r t o 

557 refund outstand ing bonds in an aggregate principal amount of 

558 bonds outstanding at any one time not in excess o f 35 percent of 

559 the assessed va l ue o f t he taxable property withi n the d i st rict 

560 as shown on the pertinent tax re cords at the time o f the 

561 authorization o f the general ob ligati on bonds for which the full 

562 faith and credit o f the district is pledged . Except f or 

563 refunding bonds , no general obligation bonds s hall be issued 

564 un l ess the bonds are issued to finance or refinance a cap i ta l 

565 pro ject a nd the issuance has been approve d at an election held 

566 in accordance with the requirements for such election as 

567 prescribed b y the State Constitut i on . Such elections shall be 

Page 22 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESEN T ATIVES 

HB 1039 2016 

568 called to be held in the district by the boards Board of county 

569 commissioners of Charlotte and Lee Counties County upon the 

570 request of the board of the district . The expenses of calling 

571 and holding an election shall be at the expense of the district , 

572 and the district sha ll r e i mburse each tfie county for any 

573 expenses incurred in ca lling or holding such election . 

574 2 . The district may pledge its full faith and cred i t for 

575 the payment of the principal and interest on such general 

576 obligat i on bonds and for any reserve funds provided therefor and 

577 may unconditionally and irrevocably pledge itself to levy ad 

578 valo r em taxes on all taxable property in the district , to the 

579 extent necessary for the payment thereo f, without limitation as 

580 to rate or amount . 

581 3 . If the board determines to issue general obligation 

582 bonds for more than one capital project , the approval of the 

583 issuance of the bonds fo r each and all such projects may be 

584 submitted to the e l ec t o r s on one and the same ballot . The 

585 fa i lure of the elector s t o approve the issuance of bonds f o r any 

586 one or more capital projects sha l l not defeat the approval o f 

587 bonds for any capita l project that has been approved by the 

588 electors . 

589 4 . In arriving at the amount of general ob l igation bonds 

590 permi tted to be outstanding at any one time pursuant to 

591 subparagraph 1. , there shall not be included any general 

592 obligat i on bonds that are additionally secured by the pledge of : 

Page 23 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 1039 2016 

593 a . Any assessmen t s levied in an amount sufficient to pay 

594 the principal and interest on the general obligation bonds so 

595 additionally secured , which assessments have been equalized and 

596 conf irmed by resolution of the board purs uant to th i s act or 

597 section 170 . 08 , Fl orida Statutes . 

598 b . Water revenues, sewer revenues , or water and sewer 

599 revenues of the dist rict to be derived from user fees in an 

600 amount sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the 

601 general obligation bonds so additionally secured . 

602 c . Any comb ination of assessments and revenues described 

603 in sub- subparagraphs a . and b . 

604 (n ) Applicat i on o f section 189 . 051 189 .40 85 , Florida 

605 Statutes .-Bonds issued by the district shall meet the criteria 

606 set forth in section 189 . 051 189 .4 085 , Florida Statutes . 

607 (12) AD VALOREM TAXES; ASSESSMENTS , BENEFIT SPECIAL 

608 ASSESSMENTS , MAINTENANCE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS , AND SPEC I AL 

609 ASSESSMENTS; MAINTENANCE TAXES . -

610 (c) Non - ad va lorem maintenance t axes.-If and whe n 

61 1 a uthorized by general law, to maintain and preserve the physical 

612 facilities and servi ces constituting the works , improvement s , or 

613 infrastructure provided by the district pursuant to this act ; to 

614 repair and restore any one or more of them , when needed ; a nd to 

615 defray the current expenses of the district , including any sum 

616 that may be required to pay state and count y ad va l orem taxes on 

617 any lands that may have been purchased a nd that are held by the 

618 district under the provi s i ons of this act , the governing board 

Page 24 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 1039 2016 

619 may, upon the comp l etion of said systems , f ac ili ties , services, 

620 works , improvements, or infrastructure, in whole or in part , as 

621 may be cert i fied to the board by the engineer of the board, levy 

622 annually a n on- ad va l orem and nonmillage tax upon each t ract or 

623 parcel of land within the district, to be known as a 

624 "maintenance tax ." This non- ad valorem maintenance tax shall be 

625 apportioned upon the basis of the net assessments of benefits 

626 assessed as a ccruing from the or i ginal constructi on and shall be 

627 evidenced to and cert ified by the govern i ng board of the 

628 d istrict not later than June 1 of each year to the property 

629 appraisers appraiser o f Charlotte and Lee Counties County and 

630 shall be extended by the property appraise r on the tax roll o f 

631 the property appraiser, as certi fied by the property appraiser 

632 to the tax collector , and collected by the tax collector on the 

633 merged collection roll of the tax co llector in the same manner 

634 and at the same time as county ad va l orem taxes, and the 

635 proceeds therefrom shall be paid to the district . This non-ad 

636 va l orem maintenance tax shall be a lien until paid on the 

637 property against whi c h assessed and enforceable in li ke manner 

638 and of the same dignity as county ad valorem taxes. 

639 (13) SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS.-

640 (a) As an alternative method to the levy and imposit i on of 

64 1 special assessments pursuant to chapter 170, Florida Statutes , 

642 pursuant to the authority of section 1 97 . 363 1, Fl or ida Statutes, 

643 or pursuant to other prov i s i ons o f general law, now o r hereafter 

644 enacted, wh i ch provide a supplemental means or authority t o 

Page 25 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R 0 A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 1039 2016 

645 impose, levy, and collect special assessments as otherwise 

646 authorized under this act , the board may levy and impose special 

647 assessments to finance the exercise of any of its powers 

648 permitted under this act using the following uniform procedures: 

649 1. At a noticed meeting, the governing board of the 

650 district may consider and review an engineer's report on the 

651 costs of the systems, facilities, and services to be provided, a 

652 preliminary assessment methodology, and a preliminary roll based 

653 on acreage or platted lands, depending upon whether platting has 

654 occurred. 

655 a. The assessment methodology shall address and discuss 

656 and the board shall consider whether the systems, facilities, 

657 and services being contemplated will result in special benefits 

658 peculiar to the property, different in kind and degree than 

659 general benefits, as a logical connection between the systems, 

660 facilities, and services themselves and the property, and 

661 whether the duty to pay the assessments by the property owners 

662 is apportioned in a manner that is fair and equitable and not in 

663 excess o f the special benefit received. It shall be fair and 

664 equitable to designate a fixed proportion o f the annual debt 

665 service, t ogether with interest thereon, on the agg regate 

666 principal amount of bonds issued to finance such systems, 

667 facilities, and services that give rise to unique, special , and 

668 peculiar benefits to property of the same or similar 

669 characteristi cs under the assessment methodology so l ong as such 

670 fixed proportion does not exceed the unique, special, and 

Page 26 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 1039 2016 

671 

672 

673 

674 

675 

676 

677 

678 

679 

680 

681 

682 

683 

684 

685 

686 

687 

688 

689 

690 

691 

692 

693 

694 

695 

peculiar benefits enjoyed by such property from such systems , 

fac ili t i es , and services. 

b. The engineer ' s cost report shall identify the nature of 

the proposed systems , faciliti es , and services , their location, 

a cost breakdown plus a total estimated cost , including cost o f 

construction or reconstruction , labor , and materials , lands , 

property , rights , easements , franchises , or systems , facilities, 

and services to be acquired , cost o f plans and specifications , 

surveys of estimates of costs and rev enues, costs of 

enginee ring , legal , and other profess i onal consultation 

services, and other expenses or costs necessary or incident to 

dete rmini ng the feasibility or pract i c ability o f such 

cons truct i on , reconstruction , or acquisi ti on , administrative 

expenses , relationsh ip to the authority and power of the 

district in its charter , and such other expenses or costs as may 

be necessary or incident to the financing to be authorized by 

the governing board . 

c . The pre liminary ass essment roll t o be prepared wil l be 

in accordance with the method of assessment provided for in the 

assessment methodology and as may be adopted by the governing 

board ; the assessment roll shall be completed as prompt l y as 

possible a nd shall show the acreage , lots , lands , or plats 

assessed and the amount of the fairly and r easonably apport i oned 

assessment based on special and peculiar benefit to the 

property, l ot , parcel , or acreage of land; and, if the 

696 assessment against each such l ot , parcel , acreage, or portion of 

Page 27 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 1039 2016 

697 land is to be paid in installments, the number of annual 

698 installments in wh i ch the assessmen t is divided shall be entered 

699 into and shown upon the assessmen t roll. 

700 2 . The gove rning board o f the district may determine and 

701 declare by an initial assessment resolution to levy and assess 

702 the assessments with respect to assessable improvements stating 

703 t he nature of the systems, facilities, and services , 

704 improvements, projects, or infras tructu r e const i tuting such 

705 assessable improvements , the informat i on in the eng ineer ' s cost 

706 report, the in formation in the assessment methodology as 

707 determined by the board at the noticed meeting and referencing 

708 and incorporati ng as part of the resolution the engineer ' s cost 

709 report, the pre limi nary assessment methodology, and the 

710 preliminary assessment roll as referenced exhibits to the 

711 resolution by reference. If the board determines to declare and 

712 levy the specia l assessments by the initial assessment 

713 res olution , the board shall a l so adopt and declare a notice 

714 resolution that shall provide and cause the initia l assessment 

715 reso l ution to be published once a week f or a per i od o f 2 weeks 

71 6 in newspapers a nevJSpaper of general circul ation published in 

717 Char l otte and Lee Counties County and said board s hall by the 

718 same resolution fix a time and place at which the owner or 

719 owners of the property to be assessed o r any o ther person s 

720 interested therein may appear before said b oard and be heard as 

721 t o the propriety and advisability of making such improvements , 

722 as to the costs thereof , as to the manner of payment therefor , 

Page 28 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 1039 2016 

723 and as to the amount thereof to be assessed against each 

724 property so improved. Thirty days' notice in writing of such 

725 time and place shall be given to such property owners. The 

726 notice shall include the amount of the assessment and shall be 

727 served by mailing a copy to each assessed property owner at his 

728 or her last known address, the names and addresses of such 

729 property owners to be obtained from the record of the property 

730 appraiser of the county political subdivision in which the land 

731 is located or from such other sources as the district manager or 

732 engineer deems reliable, and proof of such mailing shall be made 

733 by the affidavit of the manager of the district or by the 

734 engineer, said proo f to be filed with the district manager , 

735 provided that failure t o mail said notice or notices shall not 

736 invalidate any of the proceedings hereunder. It is provided 

737 further that the last publication shall be at least 1 week prior 

738 to the date of the hearing on the final assessment resolution. 

739 Said notice shal l describe the general areas to be improved and 

740 adv i se all persons interested that the description of each 

741 property to be assessed and the amount to be assessed to each 

742 piece, parcel, lot, or acre of property may be ascertained at 

743 the office of the manager of the district. Such service by 

744 publication shall be verified by the affidavit of the publisher 

745 and filed with the manager of the district. Moreover, the 

746 initial assessment resolution with its attached, referenced , and 

747 incorporated engineer's cost report, preliminary assessment 

748 methodology, and preliminary assessment roll , along with the 

Page 29 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 1039 2016 

749 notice resoluti on , shall be available for public inspection at 

750 the office of the manager and the office of the engineer or any 

751 other office designated by the governing board in the notice 

752 resolution . Notwithstanding the foregoing, the landowners of all 

753 of the property that is proposed to be assessed may give the 

754 district written notice of waiver of any notice and publicati on 

755 provided for in this subparagraph and such notice and 

756 publication shall not be required, provided, however, that any 

757 meeting of the governing board to consider such resolution shall 

758 be a publicly noticed meeting. 

759 3. At the time and place named in the noti ced resolution 

760 as provided for in subparagraph 2 ., the governing board of the 

761 district shall meet and hear testimony from affected property 

762 owners as to the propriety and advisabi lity of making the 

763 systems , facilities , services , projects, works, improvements , or 

764 infrastructure and funding them with assessments referenced in 

765 the initial assessment resoluti on on the property . Fol lowing the 

766 testimony and questions from the members of the board or any 

767 professional advisors to the district of the preparers of the 

768 engineer 's cost report , the assessment methodology, a nd the 

769 assessment roll, the governing board shall make a final decision 

770 on whether to levy and assess the particular assessments . 

771 Thereafter, the governing board shall meet as an equalizing 

772 board to hear and to consider any and all complaints as to the 

773 particular assessments and shall adjust and equalize the 

774 assessments on the basis of justice and right. 

Page 30 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 1039 2016 

775 4. When so equalized and approved by resolution or 

776 ordinance by the governing board , to be called the final 

777 assessment resolution , a final assessment roll shall be filed 

778 with the clerk of the board and such assessment shall stand 

779 confirmed and remain legal, valid , and binding first liens on 

780 the property aga i nst which such assessments are made until paid , 

781 equal in dignity to the firs t liens of ad valorem taxat i on of 

782 county and municipa l governments and school boards . However, 

783 upon completion of the systems , facilities, service , project , 

784 improvement, works , or infrastructure, the district shall credit 

785 to each of the assessments the difference in the assessment as 

786 orig inally made, approved , levied, asses sed, and confirmed and 

787 the proportionate part of the actual cost o f the improvement to 

788 be paid by the particular special assessments as finally 

789 determined upon the comp l etion of the improvement ; but in no 

790 event shall the final assessment exceed the amount of the 

791 specia l and peculi a r benefits as apportioned fairly and 

792 reasonably to the property from the system, faci li ty , or service 

793 being provided as originall y assessed . Promptly after such 

794 confirmation , the assessment shall be recorded by the clerk of 

795 the district in the minutes of the proceedings of the district , 

796 and the record of the lien in this set o f minutes shall 

797 const itute prima facie evidence of its va lidity . The governing 

798 board, in it s sole discretion , may , by resoluti on, grant a 

799 discount equal to a ll or a part of the payee's proportionate 

800 share of the cost of the project consist ing of bond financing 

Page 31 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 1039 

801 cost, such as capitalized interest, funded reserves, and bond 

802 discounts included in the estimated cost of the project , upon 

803 payment in full of any assessments during such period prior to 

804 the time such financing costs are incurred as may be specified 

805 by the governing board in such resoluti on. 

806 5 . District assessments may be made payable in 

807 installments over no more than 30 years after ~ the date of 

808 the payment of the first installment thereof and may bear 

809 interest at fixed or var i able rates. 

2016 

810 (19) COMPET ITI VE PROCUREMENT; BIDS; NEGOTIATIONS; RELATED 

811 PROVISIONS REQUIRED.-

812 (a) No contract shall be le t by the board for any goods , 

813 supplies, or materials to be purchased when the amount thereof 

814 to be paid by the district shall exceed the amount provided in 

815 section 287.017 , Fl orida Statutes , for category four, unless 

81 6 notice of b i ds shall be advertised once in newspapers a 

817 ner,vspaper i n general circul at i on in Charlotte and Lee Count i es 

818 County. Any board seeking to construct o r improve a public 

819 building , structure , o r o ther public works shall comply with the 

820 bidding procedures of section 255 . 20 , Florida Statutes , and 

821 other app li cable general law . In each case , the bid of the 

822 l owest responsive and responsible bidder shall be accepted 

823 unless al l bids are rejected because the bids are t oo high or 

824 the board determines it is in the bes t interests of the district 

825 to reject all bids. The board may require the b i dders to furnish 

826 bond with a responsible surety to be approved by the board. 

Page 32 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 1039 2016 

827 Nothing in this section shall prevent the board from undertaking 

828 and performing the construction , operation , and maintenance of 

829 any project or facility authorized by this act by the employment 

830 of labor , materia l, and machinery. 

831 (20) FEES, RENTALS , AND CHARGES; PROCEDURE FOR ADOPTION 

832 AND MODIF I CATI ONS; MINIMUM REVENUE REQUIREMENTS. -

833 (b) No such rates, fee s , rentals, or other charges for any 

834 of the facilities or services of the district shall be fixed 

835 until after a public hearing at which all the users of the 

836 proposed fa ci lity or services or owners , tenants, or occupants 

837 served o r to be served thereby and al l other interested persons 

838 shal l have an opportunity to be heard concerni ng the proposed 

839 rates, fees, rentals, or other charges. Rates , fees, rentals , 

840 and other charges shall be adopted under the administrative 

841 rulemaking authority o f the distr i ct , but shall not apply to 

842 district l eases. Noti ce of such publ i c hearing sett i ng forth the 

843 proposed schedule or schedules of rates, fees, rentals, and 

844 o ther charges shal l have been published in newspapers a 

845 newspaper of genera l c irculati on in Charlotte and Lee Count ies 

846 County at l east once and at least 10 days prior to such public 

847 hearing. The rulemak i ng hearing may be adjourned from time to 

848 time. After such hearing, such schedule or schedul es , ei t her as 

849 i niti a ll y proposed or as mod ified or amended, may be finally 

850 adopted. A copy o f the schedu l e or schedule s of such rates , 

851 fees, rentals, or charges as finally adopted shall be kept on 

852 file in an o ffi ce designated by the board a nd shall be open at 

Page 33 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 1039 2016 

853 all reas onable times to publi c inspection. The rates, fee s , 

854 rentals, o r charges so fixed for any class of users or proper ty 

855 served shall be extended to cover any additional users or 

856 properties therea fter served that shall fall in the same class, 

857 wi thout the necessity of any notice or hearing . 

858 (26) TERMINATION, CONTRACTION, OR EXPANSION OF DISTRICT.-

859 

860 

861 

862 

863 

864 

865 

866 

867 

868 

869 

870 

871 

872 

(a) The board ma y ask t he Leg i slature through it s local 

legislative delegations in and f or Charlotte and Lee Counties 

County to amend this act to contra c t, to expand or to contract , 

and t o expand the boundaries of the district. 

(b) Th e district shall remain in existence until: 

1. The district i s terminated and diss o l ved pursuant to 

amendment to thi s act by the Legislature. 

2. The district has become inact i ve pursuant t o section 

189 . 062 1 89 .4044, Fl or i da Statut es . 

Section 6. In the election provi ded for in section 7 , each 

l andowner present in person o r by proxy is entit l ed t o cast one 

vo t e f o r each assessable acre or f raction of an acre of land 

owned by him o r her and loca ted with in the district. 

Section 7 . This section and section 6 sha ll take e ffe ct 

873 upon this act becoming a l aw , and the remaining sections shall 

874 take effect upon approva l by a majo rit y vote of the owners of 

875 land within the district, including land in Charlotte and Lee 

876 Counties, who are not exempt from ad valorem taxes or non - ad 

877 valorem assessments and who are present in person o r by proxy at 

878 a landowne rs' mee t ing to be held within 90 days after the 

Page 34 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 1039 2016 

879 effective date o f this act. Such landowners' meeting shall be 

880 noticed in the same manner as provided in section 5 of chapter 

88 1 2007 - 306 , Laws of Florida. However, the provisions of this act 

882 a uthorizing the levy of ad valorem taxation and the issuance o f 

883 general obligat i on bonds shall take effec t only upon express 

8 8 4 approval by a majority vote of those qualified electors of the 

8 8 5 Babcock Ranch Community Independent Special District voting in a 

886 referendum election held at such time as all members o f the 

887 district ' s governing board are qualified elec t o rs of the 

8 88 district who are elected by qualified electors of the district 

8 8 9 as provided in this act. 

Page 35 of 35 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1039-00 





HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES LOCAL BILL STAFF ANALYSIS 

BILL#: HB 1071 South Broward Hospital District, Broward County 
SPONSOR(S): Stark 
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: 

REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST 

1) Local Government Affairs Subcommittee 

2) Finance & Tax Committee 

3) Local & Federal Affairs Committee 

SUMMARY ANALYSIS 

STAFF DIRECTOR or 
BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF 

iller 

The South Broward Hospital District {the District) is a special district created by law, operating under ch. 2004-
397, Laws of Florida. The current law limits investments made under an investment plan to an enumerated list 
of investment vehicles. In contrast, general law under s. 218.415, F.S. , provides a broader array of investment 
vehicles to counties, municipalities, school districts, and special districts . 

The bill removes the current enumerated list in ch. 2004-397, Laws of Florida, enabling the District to utilize the 
full range of investment tools available to other units of local government under general law and to approve 
other investment vehicles not specifically authorized by law through a resolution of the District Board of 
Commissioners. 

The fiscal impact is indeterminate because the amount of accrued interest will vary based upon the amount of 
principal invested, the interest rate being applied, and protocols for crediting interest. 

This bill is effective upon the bill becoming a law. 

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives. 
STORAGE NAME: h1071 .LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/14/2016 



FULL ANALYSIS 

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS 

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES: 

PRESENT SITUATION 

A "special district" is a unit of local government created for a particular purpose, with jurisdiction to 
operate within a limited geographic boundary. Special districts are created by general law, 1 special act,2 

local ordinance, 3 or by rule of the Governor and Cabinet.4 Special districts provide specific municipal 
services in addition to, or in place of, those provided by a municipality or county. 5 A special district has 
only those powers expressly provided by, or reasonably implied from, the authority provided in the 
district's charter. 

The South Broward Hospital District (District), was created in 1947 by special act6 in order to provide 
for and maintain any and all types of health facilities, equipment, and services within Broward County. 7 

The District is managed by a seven member Board of Commissioners (Board).8 The Board has the 
power to levy an ad valorem tax of up to 2.5 mils as well as any additional mils necessary to pay 
interest and principle on bonds not to exceed $50 million dollars used to establish , construct, acquire, 
add to, operate, or maintain District facilities. 9 

The District has the ability to invest any funds in its possession pursuant to an investment policy 
approved by the Board10 and limited to an enumerated list of approved instruments, specifically: 

• The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund under s. 218.405, F.S. 
• Commercial bankers' acceptances 
• Prime quality commercial paper 
• Interest bearing bonds, debentures and other forms of debt with a fixed maturity of a domestic 

corporation 
• Direct obligations of the United States Government and various federal financial institutions 
• Options for the purpose of hedging to protect underlying asset values. 11 

Contrastingly, units of general local government have investment powers under a separate statutory 
scheme proscribed by generallaw. 12 The range of investment tools available with an investment policy 
in place under this section is broader than the options currently available to the District, including : 

• The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund under s. 218.405 F.S. or any 
intergovernmental investment pool authorized by the Florida lnterlocal Cooperation Act of 1969, 
as provided ins. 163.01, F.S.; 

• Security Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest credit rating 
• Interest-bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories authorized 

under s. 280.02, F.S.; 
• Direct obligations of the United States Treasury; 

1 Section 189.031(3), F.S. 
2 Id. 
3 Section 189 .02(1 ), F. S. 
4 Section 190.005(1), F.S. See, generally, s. 189.01 2(6), F.S. 
5 2015 - 201 6 Local Gov 't Formation Manual, p. 67, at 
http:/ /myfloridahouse.gov/Sections/Committees/commi tteesdetail.aspx?Committeeld=2836 (accessed 9/28/20 15). 
6 Ch. 2441 5, Laws ofF1a. 
7 Ch. 84-400, Laws ofF!a. 
8 Ch. 2004-397, s. 3, Laws of F!a. 
9 Ch. 2004-397, s. 27 & 11 , Laws ofF!a. 
1° Ch. 2004-397, s. 37 ofs. 3, Laws ofF!a. 
11 Ch. 2004-397, s. 37(1)-(6) ofs . 3, Laws ofF!a. 
12 Section 218.41 5, F.S. 
STORAGE NAME: h1071 .LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/14/2016 

PAGE: 2 



• Federal agencies and instrumentalities; 
• Rated or unrated bonds, notes, and certain instruments guaranteed by the government of Israel ; 
• Securities of certain management-type investment companies and trusts which invest only in 

United States government entities ; 
• Other investments authorized by law or resolution for a special district. 13 

EFFECT OF THE BILL 

The bill amends ch. 2004-397, Laws of Florida, to authorize the District to invest surplus public funds 
through the more expansive list of investment tools available to counties, municipalities, school districts 
and other special districts under general law. The bill also allows the District to authorize additional 
investment vehicles by resolution of the Board under the statutory authorization.14 

The bill includes a savings clause for this act, providing that a ruling invalidating any provision or 
application of the law created by the bill does not render invalid any other provision or application of the 
new law. 

B. SECTION DIRECTORY: 

Section 1. Amends ch. 2004-397, Laws of Florida , to expand the investment options available to the 
District by deleting the present list of available options and relying on the provisions available to other 
units of local government under general law. 

Section 2. Provides that the act created by the bill shall be liberally construed to effectuate its purposes. 

Section 3. Provides that if any provision of the act created by the bill is rendered invalid, the portions 
which are valid are severable and to be given effect. 

Section 4. Provides the bill is effective upon becoming a law. 

II. NOTICE/REFERENDUM AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS 

A. NOTICE PUBLISHED? Yes [X] No[] 

IF YES, WHEN? Oct. 4, 2015 

WHERE? Broward, County 

B. REFERENDUM(S) REQUIRED? Yes 0 No [X] 

IF YES, WHEN? 

C. LOCAL BILL CERTIFICATION FILED? Yes, attached [X] No[] 

D. ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT FILED? Yes, attached [X] No 0 

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES: 

None. 

13 Section 218.41 5(1 6)(a)-(i) , F.S. 
14 Section 218.41 5(16)(i), F.S. 
STORAGE NAME: h1071 .LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/14/201 6 

Ill. COMMENTS 

PAGE: 3 



B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY: 

The bill does not provide authority or require implementation by administrative agency rulemaking. 

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS: 

Section 2 requires liberal construction only of the new law created by the bill. Section 3 provides a 
savings clause only for the new law created by the bill. 

IV. AMENDMENTS/ COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES 

STORAGE NAME: h1071 .LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/14/2016 

PAGE: 4 



SUN-SENTINEL 
Published Daily 

Fort Lauderdale, Broward County, Florida 
Boca Raton, Palm Beach County, Florida 

Miami, Miami-Dade County, 'Florida 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF: BROWARD/PALM BEACH/MIAMI-DADE 

Before the unders igned authority personally appeared 
\'<\f\Q '( \(V "2..(\ I+ 2... , who on oath says that he or she is a duly authorized 

representative of the SUN- SENTINEL, a DAILY newspaper published in BROWARD/PALM 
BEACH/MIAMI-DADE County. Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement, being a Legal 
Notice in : 

The matter of I 1745-0ther Legal Notices 

BROWARD COUNTY 
Lombardo, Faith 

Was publi shed in said newspaper in the issues of; Oct 04 , 2015 

3635358 

Affiant further says that the said SUN-SENTINEL is a newspaper published in said 
BROW J\RDIPALM BEACH/MIAMI-DADE County, Florida, and that the said newspaper has 
heretofore been continuous ly publi shed in said BROWARD/PALM BEACH/MIAMI-DADE County , 
Florida , each day and has been entered as second class matter at the post office in BROW ARD 
County, Florida. for a period of one year next preceding the first publication of the attached copy of 
advertisement; and affiant further says that he or she has neither paid nor promised, any person , firm 
or corporation , any discount, rebate, commission or refund , for the purpose of securing this 

'dbY~tE~''d "'W'P'"" 

Signature of Affiant 
Sw and subscribed be ·ore me this: October 05 , 2015. 

Si 

Notice IS~OTICE OF lEGISLATION 
bill wllf be ereby given that the following 
tive SeSs,a:;r~sented to the 2016 Legis/a
consideration .~';; :~~~g~e~islature for 

A BILL TO BE ENTITlED • 

~J:~~J~~~~~~~%~~ S8~~~~~0-
lAWS OF F~6~~g~N~R~~~ER 2004-397, 
ClAUSE INTHEEv'· · GASAVING . 
THE AC r IS DE ENT ANY PROVISION OF 
AN EFFECTIVE ~"!EO INVALID; PROVIDING 

ATE. 

BROWARD COUNTY 
EGA nON lEGISLATIVE DEL-
REPRESENTATIIIE GWY 
REED, CHAIR NDOlEN ClARKE· 
_10/4/201S -

Order#- 3635358 



BILL#: 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

2016 LOCAL BILL CERTIFICATION FORM 

SPONSOR(S): 

RELATING TO: 
[Indicate Area Affected {City, C unty, or Special District) and Subject] 

NAME OF DELEGATION: \j\0\i~Q{C\ Lf~V~\l€, .iliag:tb ()C) 
CONTACT PERSON: BnC\XfC\ V:J QC,A)\.PS. 

PHONE NO.: A~I D .3 Q-5 --aC!?>O E-Mail: f.\'{JQC\\ " 1\e::,@ bco\h'Ov\. Ofj 
I. House local bill policy requires the following steps must occur before a committee or subcommittee of 

the House considers a local bill: 
(1) The members of the local legislative delegation must certify that the purpose of the bill cannot be 
accomplished at the local/eve/; 
(2) The legislative delegation must hold a public hearing in the area affected for the purpose of 
considering the local bill issue(s); and 
(3) The bill must be approved by a majority of the legislative delegation, or a higher threshold if so 
required by the rules of the delegation, at the public hearing or at a subsequent delegation meeting. 
(4) An Economic Impact Statement for local bills must be prepared at the local/eve/ and submitted to 
the Local Government Affairs Subcommittee. Under House policy, no local bill will be considered by a 
committee or subcommittee without an Economic Impact Statement. 

(1) Does the delegation certify the purpose of the bill cannot be accomplished by 
ordinance of a local governing body without the legal need for a referendum? 

YES~ NO [] 

(2) Did the delegation conduct a public hearing on the subject of the bill? 

YES ~ NO [] . . 

Date hearing held: ~~~\ ~1 -(f[i5 
Location: ~C\NC.\Yc\ L = C ;\if?xn o ~ (ecrte·r 

(3) Was this bill formally approved by a majority of the delegation members? 

YES t4 NO [ ] 

(4) Was an Economic Impact Statement prepared at the local level and submitted to the 
Local Government Affairs Subcommittee? 

YES t)Q NO [ ] 

II. Article Ill, Section 10 of the State Constitution prohibits passage of any special act unless notice of 
intention to seek enactment of the bill has been published as provided by genera/law (s. 11.02, F. S.J or 
the act is conditioned to take effect only upon approval by referendum vote of the electors in the area 
affected. 

Has this constitutional notice requirement been met? 

Notice published: YES [)(

Where? & )(\ -Sf·a-b\oe. l 
NO[] DATE Ot=hl)?( LL lOIS 

County }\(O\NQ'(d 
Page 1 of 2 



Referendum in lieu of publication: YES [ ] NO 

Date of Referendum _____________ _ 

Ill. Article VII, Section 9(b) of the State Constitution prohibits passage of any bill creating a special taxing 
district, or changing the authorized millage rate for an existing special taxing district, unless the bill 
subjects the taxing provision to approval by referendum vote of the electors in the area affected. 

(1) Does the bill create a special district and authorize the district to impose an ad 
valorem tax? 

YES [] NO 

(2) Does this bill change the authorized ad valorem millage rate for an existing special 
district? 

YES [] No)<{ 
If the answer to question (1) or (2) is YES, does the bill require voter approval of the ad 
valorem tax provision(s)? 

YES [] NO [] 

Please submi.t this completed, original form to the Local Government Affairs Subcommittee. 
;; 
IJ:1 

' I 

.. '-J-<-

Print d Name of Delegation Chair 

Page 2 of 2 

Dhte I 



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

2016 ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT FORM 

*Read all instructions carefully. * 
House local bill policy requires that no local bill will be considered by a committee or a subcommittee without an 
Economic Impact Statement. This form must be prepared at the LOCAL LEVEL bv an individual who is qualified 
to establish fiscal data and impacts and has personal knowledge of the information given (for example, a chief 
financial officer of a particular local government). Please submit this completed, original form to the Local 
Government Affairs Subcommittee as soon as possible after a bill is filed. Additional pages may be attached as 
necessary. 

BILL#: 

SPONSOR(S): 

RELATING TO: 

I. REVENUES: 

These figures are new revenues that would not exist but for the passage of the bilL 
The term "revenue" contemplates, but is not limited to, taxes, fees and special assessments. 
For example, license plate fees may be a revenue source. If the bill will add or remove 
property or individuals from the tax base, include th is information as welL 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 

Revenue decrease due to bill : $ --&- $ -e-
Revenue increase due to bill : ·-8-$ ___ _ $ -8-

II. COST: 

Include all costs, both direct and indirect, including start-up costs. If the bill repeals the 
existence of a certa in entity, state the related costs, such as satisfying liabilities and 
distributing assets. 

Expenditures for Implementation, Adm inistration and Enforcement: 

FY 16-1 7 FY 1 7-18 

$ ~fr $ .-e-
Please include explanations and calculations regarding how each dollar figure was 
determined in reaching total cost. 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 1 of4 



Ill. FUNDING SOURCE(S): 

State the specific sources from which funding will be received , for example, license plate 
fees, state funds, borrowed funds, or special assessments. 

If certain funding changes are anticipated to occur beyond the following two fiscal years, 
explain the change and at what rate taxes, fees or assessments will be collected in those 
years. 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 

Local: $ e $ -fr 
State: $ -ti $ ,-A-
Federal : $ £x $---P.r' 

IV. ECONOMIC IMPACT: 

Potential Advantages: 

Include all possible outcomes linked to the bill , such as increased efficiencies, and 
positive or negative changes to tax revenue. If an act is being repealed or an entity 
dissolved , include the increased or decreased efficiencies caused thereby. 

Include specific figures for anticipated job growth . 

1. Advantages to Individuals: No impact an jndjyiduals 

2. Advantages to Businesses: No impact on businesses 

3. Advantages to Government: No impact on government, however 

the bill will provide clearer 

guidelines consistant with state law. 

Potential Disadvantages: 

Include all possible outcomes linked to the bill , such as inefficiencies, shortages, or 
market changes anticipated. 

Include reduced business opportunities, such as reduced access to capital or training . 

State any decreases in tax revenue as a result of the bill. 

1. Disadvantages to Individuals: _N_o_n_e ______________ _ 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 2 of 4 



2. Disadvantages to Businesses: None 

3. Disadvantages to Government: __ N_on_e _____________ _ 

V. DESCRIBE THE POTENTIAL IMPACT OF THE BILL ON PRESENT GOVERNMENTAL 
SERVICES: 

Services will not be impacted. 

VI. SPECIFIC DATA USED IN REACHING ESTIMATES: 

Include the type(s) and source(s) of data used , percentages, dollar figures , all 
assumptions made, history of the industry/issue affected by the bill , and any audits. 

N/A 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 3 of4 



VII. CERTIFICATION BY PREPARER 

I hereby certify I am qualified to establish fiscal data and impacts and have personal 
knowledge of the information given. I have reviewed all available financial information 
applicable to the substance of the above-stated local bill and confirm the foregoing 
Economic Impact Statement is a true and accurate estimate of the economic impact of 
the bill. 

PREPARED BY: 

Print preparer's name: 
Matthew J. Muhart 

August 19, 2015 

Date 

TITLE (such as Executive Director, Actuary, Chief Accountant, or Budget Director): 

REPRESENTING: 

PHONE: 

E-MAIL ADDRESS: 

Exec. VP and Chief Administrative Officer 

Memorial Healthcare System 

954-265-2995 

nunuhart@mhs.net 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 4 of 4 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 1071 201 6 

1 A bill to be entitled 

2 An act relating to the South Broward Hospital 

3 Distr i ct , Broward County ; amending chapter 2004 - 397 , 

4 Laws of Florida ; revising the authority o f the 

5 district ' s board of commissioners to invest funds ; 

6 authorizing inves tmen ts l isted in an investment policy 

7 adopted by the board pursuant to requirements 

8 applicable to various units of local government ; 

9 deleting a list of authoriz e d investments ; providing 

10 construction and severability ; providing an effective 

11 date . 

12 

13 Be I t Enacted by the Legislature of t h e State of Florida : 

14 

15 Section 1 . Section 37 of section 3 of chapter 2004 - 397 , 

16 Laws of Florida, is amended to read : 

17 Section 37 . In addition to any investment authorized by 

18 general law , including s . 218 . 415 , Flor ida Statutes , and to the 

19 extent created by the St a t e Constitution , the Board of 

20 Commissioners of the Sou th Broward Hospital District shal l be 

21 and is hereby authorized and empowered to invest any funds in 

22 its control or possession in accordance with an investment 

23 policy approved by the board which mandates prudent investment 

2 4 practices which shall include , among other items , the investment 

25 object i ves and permitted securities of t he po l icy. Such 

26 investment policy shall be designed to maximize the financial 

Page 1 of 5 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1071-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

27 

28 

29 

30 

3 1 

32 

33 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

39 

40 

41 

42 

43 

44 

45 

46 

47 

48 

49 

50 

51 

52 

HB 1071 

return to the fund consistent with the risks incumbent in ea ch 

inves tment and shall be designed to preserve the appropria te 

diversification of the portfo lio. Accordingly, the follo\Jing 

instruments are authori~ed for investment: 

2016 

( 1 ) In the trust fund Jcno·.m as Local Government Surplus 

Funds Trust Fund as created and established by section 218.405, 

Florida Statutes. 

(2 ) Bankers' acceptances Hhich are draHn upon and accepted 

by a commercial banlc Hhich is a member bank of the Federal 

Reserve System maintaining capital accounts in eJ{Cess of 7.5 

percent of total assets, and '•Jhich member bank of its holding 

company carries a credit rating in one of the tHo highest 

alphabetical categories from at least tHo nationally recogni~ed 

debt rating agencies. 

(3) Commercial paper of prime quality rated by at least 

t\JO nationally recogni~ed debt rating agencies in the highest 

letter and numerical rating of each agency. If not so rated, 

such prime quality commercial paper may be purchased if secured 

by a letter of credit provided by a commercial bank, \Jhich banlc 

or its holding company carries a credit rating in one of the tHo 

highest alphabetical categories from at least t\JO nationally 

recogni~ed debt rating agencies. 

( 4) Interest bearing bonds, debentures, and other such 

evidence of indebtedness ·o~ith a fiHed maturity of any domestic 

corporation Hithin the United States \Jhich is listed on any one 

or more of the recogni~ed national steele e1whanges in the United 

Page 2 of 5 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1071-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 1071 2016 

5 3 States VJhieh is listed on any one or more of the recognized 

54 national steele eHehanges in the United States and conforms ·,Jith 

55 the periodic reporting requirements under the Securities 

5 6 EHehange Act of 1934. Such obligations shall either carry 

57 ratings in one of the t·,Jo highest classifications of at least 

5 8 tHo nationally recognized debt rating agencies or be secured by 

59 a letter of credit provided by a eoffiffiereial banlc, VJhieh banlc or 

60 its holding company carries a credit rating in one of the tHo 

61 highest alphabetical categories from at least tVJo nationally 

62 recognized debt rating agencies. 

63 ( 5) Negotiable direct obligations of, or obligations the 

64 principal and interest of ·,Jhieh are unconditionally guaranteed 

65 by, the United States Government and obligations of the Federal 

66 Farm Credit Banlcs, Federal Home Loan Hortgage Corporations, or 

67 Federal Home Loan Banlc or its district banlcs, including Federal 

68 Home Loan Hortgage Corporation participation certificates or 

69 obligations guaranteed by the Government National Hortgage 

70 Association, v.·hieh are purchased and sold under repurchase 

7 1 agreements and reverse repurchase agreements. Repurchase 

72 agreements and reverse repurchase agreements may be entered into 

7 3 only ·.;ith a member banlc of the Federal Reserve System or primary 

7 4 dealer in United States Government Securities. Fur t her, any such 

7 5 repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements shall be 

76 fully collateralized by the type of securities r,;hieh are named 

77 in this subsection. Securities purchased or repurchased by the 

Page 3 of 5 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1071-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTAT I VES 

78 

7 9 

8 0 

81 

82 

83 

8 4 

8 5 

86 

8 7 

88 

89 

90 

91 

92 

93 

94 

95 

96 

97 

98 

99 

1 00 

1 0 1 

1 02 

1 03 

HB 1071 2016 

South Br m;ard Hospital Di strict shall be delivered to the South 

BroHard Hospital District o r its agent versus payment . 

( 6 ) Purchase of options so as to engage in bona fide 

hedging activities fo r the purpose of protecting the asset value 

of the underlying port f o l io. HoHever , the underlying securit y 

(that i s , the secur ity tha t must be delivered if a put op tion or 

call option contract i s eJrercised) shal l be negotiable d irec t 

obligations of , or obligations the principal and interest o f 

\Jhich are unconditionally guaranteed by , the United States 

Government and obligations of the Federal Fa n fl Credit Banks, 

Fede r a l Home Loan Mortgage Corporations , o r Federal Loan Banlc o r 

its d i st r ict banks, inc l uding Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Corpo rat ion participation certificates , o r ob l igations 

guaran teed by the Government National Mortgage Associa t i on. 

Further, the options of said underlying securities shall be 

traded on a securities eJrchange o r b oard of tr a de regulated by 

the Securities 8Hchange CoH\H\ission or the CoH\H\odity Futur es 

Trading CoH\H\ission . 

Section 2 . This act shall be liberally constru e d to 

e f fectuate t h e p urpo ses set f o r th here i n . 

Se ction 3 . I f a n y provi sion of this act or its appli c ati o n 

to a n y p erson or c irc umstance i s held i nva lid , the inval i d i ty 

does n o t af f ec t other provisions or app li c ati o n s of the ac t t hat 

c an be give n effect wi t h out the invalid provi s i on or 

a pp l ication , and t o t h is e nd the p r ovis i o n s of thi s act a r e 

s everable. 

Page 4 of 5 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1071 -00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

104 

HB 1071 2016 

Sect i on 4 . This act shall take effect upon becoming a law. 

Page 5 of 5 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1071-00 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 1071 (2016) 

COMMITT EE /SUBCOMM ITTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECTION 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WITHDRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Local Government Affairs 

2 Subcommittee 

3 Representative Stark of f ered the following: 

4 

5 Amendment 

6 Remove lines 96 - 98 and insert: 

7 Section 2. Section 4 of chapter 2004-397, Laws of Florida, 

8 is amended to read: 

9 Section 4. This act shall be liberally construed to 

10 effectuate the purposes set forth herein. 

11 Section 3. Section 5 of chapter 2004 - 397, Laws of Florida, 

12 is amended to read: 

13 Section 5. If any provis ion of this act or its application 

035357 - HB 1071 Amendment 1.docx 

Published On : 1/15/2016 5 : 54 : 44 PM 

Page 1 of 1 



...... 

...... 
N ...... 



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES LOCAL BILL STAFF ANALYSIS 

BILL#: HB 1121 City of Fort Lauderdale, Broward County 
SPONSOR(S): Moraitis, Jr. 
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: 

REFERENCE ACTION 

1) Local Government Affairs Subcommittee 

2) Agriculture & Natural Resources Subcommittee 

3) Local & Federal Affairs Committee 

SUMMARY ANALYSIS 

ANALYST 

Darden 

STAFF DIRECTOR or 
BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF 

Miller t~ 

The Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC), counties, and municipalities may establish "boating
restricted areas," placing limits on vessel speed and numbers, for the purpose of protecting public safety. 
Outside of an FWC pilot program of five municipalities, however, counties and municipalities are not allowed to 
regulate anchoring vessels outside of mooring areas. 

The bill would prohibit anchoring in an area previously designated as a boating-restricted area by the City of 
Fort Lauderdale. The bill prescribes the penalty for anchoring in the designated area. The bill authorizes the 
City of Fort Lauderdale to adopt an ordinance defining a violation of the anchoring restriction as a civil 
infraction enforceable by the city's code enforcement officers. 

The bill takes effect upon becoming law. 

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives. 
STORAGE NAME: h1 121 .LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/15/2016 



FULL ANALYSIS 

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS 

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES: 

Present Situation 

Florida Vessel Safety Law 

Under the Florida Vessel Safety Law, boating-restricted areas may be established for "any purpose 
necessary to protect the safety of the public," as long as the restrictions relate to boating accidents, 
visibility, hazardous currents or waters levels, vessel traffic congestion, or other navigational hazards. 1 

Both vessel speed and vessel traffic may be restricted .2 

A boating-restricted area may be created by the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC) by 
adopting an administrative rule pursuant to ch. 120, F.S} or by a county or municipality by adoption of 
an ordinance. 4 Boating can only be restricted in an area with consultation and coordination with the 
governing body of the county or municipality where the area is located, and with the U.S. Coast Guard 
and U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, where the area is part of the navigable waters of the United 
States.5 Under the current federal general definition: 

Navigable waters of the United States are those waters that are subject to the ebb and flow of 
the tide and/or are presently used, or have been used in the past, or may be susceptible 
for use to transport interstate or foreign commerce. A determination of navigability, once made, 
applies laterally over the entire surface of the waterbody, and is not extinguished by later 
actions or events which impede or destroy navigable capacity.6 

It is unlawful to operate a vessel in a boating-restricted area or to carry on any prohibited activity, 7 if the 
area has been clearly marked by regulatory markers.8 Violating the Florida Vessel Safety Law is a 
noncriminal infraction,9 and violators are subject to a $50 fine. 10 The restriction and penalties do not 
apply in the case of an emergency, or to any law enforcement, firefighting, or rescue vessel owned or 
operated by a governmental entity. 11 

Local governments may enact and enforce regulations considering live-aboard vessels within their 
jurisdiction, but are prohibited from regulating the anchoring of non-live-aboard vessels outside of 
mooring fields. 12 A live-aboard vessel is any vessel which is: 

• Used solely as a residence and not for navigation; 13 

• Represented as a place of business or a professional or other commercial enterprise; 14 or 
• Declared a domicile, pursuant to s. 222.17, F.S. 15 

1 Section 327.46(1), F.S. 
2 Jd. 
3 Section 327.46(l)(a), F.S. 
4 Section 327.46(l)(b)-(c), F.S. 
5 Section 327.46(2), F.S. 
6 33 C.F.R. s. 329.4 (2015). 
7 "Prohibited activity" is defined for the purposes of ch. 327 as an "activity that will impede or disturb navigation or creates a safety 
hazard on waterways ofthis state." s. 327.02(35), F.S . 
8 Section 327.46(3), F.S. 
9 Section 327.73(1)(k), F.S. 
10 Section 327.73(1), F.S. 
11 Section 327.46(4), F.S . 
12 Section 327.60(3), F.S. 
13 Section 327 .02(19)(a), F.S . 
14 Section 327.02(19)(b) , F.S. 
STORAGE NAME: h1121.LGAS.DOCX PAGE: 2 
DATE: 1/15/2016 



A pilot program, administered by the FWC in consultation with the Department of Environmental 
Protection, was established in 2009 to explore regulations for anchoring or mooring of non-live-aboard 
vessels outside of public mooring fields. 16 The program was initially established for five years and was 
subsequently renewed until 2017.17 FWC was responsible for selecting five locations for the pilot 
program, two on the east coast of the state, two on the west coast, and one within Monroe County. 18 

Counties and municipalities participating in the pilot program may pass ordinances regulating non-live
aboard vessels outside of a mooring field, subject to FWC approval. 19 

Effect of Proposed Changes 

The bill describes a portion of the Middle River that has been designated by the City of Fort Lauderdale 
as a boating-restricted area, pursuant to s. 327.46, F.S. The bill states that the area has been 
designated a "watersports activity area" by the city, where single-engine vessels, not exceeding twenty
one feet, may engage in watersports activities or other activities, in accordance with idle speed/no 
wake zone or slow speed/minimum wake zone limitations. The bill prohibits anchoring in this 
"watersports activity area." 

The bill states that a person anchoring in the "watersports activity area" has committed a non-criminal 
civil infraction punishable by civil penalty of $50 for a first offense, $100 for a second offense, and $250 
for a third or subsequent offense. The bill authorizes the City of Fort Lauderdale to adopt an ordinance 
making a violation of the anchoring prohibition in the bill a civil infraction, enforceable by a special 
magistrate pursuant to the Code Enforcement chapter of the City of Fort Lauderdale's Code of 
Ordinances. 

The bill is intended to address concerns of residents in the affected area that anchored vessels are 
limitin~ the area available for watersports activities, creating a safety hazard, and generating excessive 
noise. 0 The bill may positively impact local marinas by encouraging anchoring in those areas instead 
of in undesignated areas. 21 

B. SECTION DIRECTORY: 

Section 1: 

Section 2: 

Section 3: 

Section 4: 

Section 5: 

Section 6: 

Provides definitions for the purposes of the act. 

Defines the boundaries a watersports activity area previously established the City of Fort 
Lauderdale, pursuant to s. 327.46, F.S., and describes the watersports activities. 

Prohibits an owner/operator of a vessel from anchoring in the watersports activity area 
described in Section 2 of the bill. 

Provides that a violation of this act is a non-criminal civil infraction pursuant to s. 162.21, 
F.S. 

Authorizes the City of Fort Lauderdale to enforce the act by adoption of an ordinance. 

Provides that the bill shall take effect upon becoming law. 

15 Section 327.02(19)(c) , F.S. 
16 Section 327.4105, F.S. 
17 Chapter 2009-86, Laws of Fla. (pilot program to expire July 1, 2014), ch. 2014-136, Laws ofFla. (pilot program to expire July I , 
2017). 
18 Section 327.4105(2), F.S. FWC selected St. Augustine, Stuart, St. Petersburg, Sarasota, and Key West/Marathon. FWC, Update on 
the Anchoring and Mooring Pilot Program, available at 
http: //www.floridajobs.org/fdcp/dcp/waterfronts/Meetings/CrystalRiver/FWCMooringPilotProjectUpdate.pdf. (last visited Jan. 15, 
2016). 
19 Section 327.4015(3), F.S. 
20 Economic Impact Statement for HB 1121 (2016). 
21 Jd. 
STORAGE NAME: h1121.LGAS.DOCX PAGE: 3 
DATE: 1/15/2016 



II. NOTICE/REFERENDUM AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS 

A. NOTICE PUBLISHED? Yes [x] No[] 

IF YES, WHEN? October 4, 2015 

WHERE? The Sun-Sentinel, a daily newspaper published in Broward, Palm Beach, and 
Miami-Dade Counties, Florida. 

B. REFERENDUM(S) REQUIRED? Yes[] No [x] 

IF YES, WHEN? 

C. LOCAL BILL CERTIFICATION FILED? Yes, attached [x] No[] 

D. ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT FILED? Yes, attached [x] No[] 

Ill. COMMENTS 

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES: 

None. 

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY: 

This bill does not provide authority or require executive branch rulemaking . 

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS: 

None. 

IV. AMENDMENTS/ COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES 

STORAGE NAME: h1121 .LGAS.DOCX 
DATE: 1/15/2016 

PAGE: 4 



SlJN-SENTINEL 
Published Daily 

Fort Lauderdale, Broward County, Florida 
Boca Raton, Palm Beach County, Florida 

Miami, Miami-Dade County, Florida 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF: BROWARD/PALM BEACH/MIAMI-DADE 

Before the undersigned auth\)rity personally appeared 
H A Q V \.( D 1-f\ ll 1- , who on oath says that he or she is a duly authorized 

representative of the SUN- SENTTNEL, a DAILY newspaper published in BROWARD/PALM 
BEACH/MIAMI-DADE Coun ty, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement, being a Legal 
Notice in : 

The matter of I 1745 -0ther Legal Notices 

BROWARD COUNTY 
Lombardo, Faith 

Was publi shed in said newspaper in the issues of; Oct 04,2015 

3635327 

Affia nt further says that the said SUN-SENTINEL is a newspaper published in said 
BROWARD/PALM BEACH/MIAMI-DADE County, Florida, and th at the sa id newspaper has 
heretofore been continuously published in said BROW ARD/PALM BEACH/MIAMI-DADE County , 
Florida, each day and has been entered as second class matter at the post office in BROWARD 
County, Florida, for a period of one year next preceding the first publication of the attached copy of 
advertisement; and affiant furth er says that he or she has neither paid nor promised, any person, firm 
or corporation, any discount , rebate, commission or refund. for the purpose of securing th is 

~~:~:~I:~['('~'P'P"· 
S and subscribed before 2:i:4ctober 05, 2015 . 

MY COMMISSION t: FF2 11904 

EXPIRES March 19. 2019 
F-lor+O.:~NOL'"t'ySr-· ·,. ICf'. C.orr 

Narl'le of Notary, Typed , Printed , or Stamped 
Personall y Known (X) or Produced Identification ( 

NOTICE OF LEGISlATION . 
Notice iS hereby given that the followrog 
bill will be presented to the 2016 Leg•sla· 
tive session. of tl;leJibrida Legislature for 
conslderation·and enactment. 

A BILL TO. BE ENTITLED 
AN ACT-RELATING TO'THE,crtY OF FORT 
LAUDERDALE: .PROVIDING DE~INITIONS, 
PROHIBITING THE ANCHORAGE.OF ·VES· 
SELS IN A DESIGNATED WATERSPORTS 
ACTIVITY' ESTABLISHING SUCH PRO·. 
1-!lSITEO ACTl\lirY AS A V10LATI.ON FOR 
WHICH ONE MfiY.BE CHARGED WITI:I A 
NONCRIMINA!.!INFRACTION; ESTABLISH· 
lNG CWIL PENALTIES FOR. OFFENSES; 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY bF FORT LAUDER· 
DALE TO ENFORCE JHE PROVISIONS OF 
THIS LAW; PROVIDING FQR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

BROWARO cQUNTY LEGISCATIVE DEL· 
EGA liON 
REPRESENT1(1'tvj' GWYN DOLEN CLARKE-
REED. CHAIR 
101412015 

Order#- 3635327 



BILL#: 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

2016 LOCAL BILL CERTIFICATION FORM 

SPONSOR(S): 

~~~~~~~· ~~ RELATING TO: 
[Indicate Area Affected (City, Cou ty, or Special District) and Subject] jl 

NAME OF DELEGATION: b{Q'v\\OJCl Legi~\Cl"\Jeh.Qo_gJfuOO 
CONTACT PERSON: f\oC\{€0.. boow\ec~ 

PHONE NO.: BstO ,3i,S- 3 C1 B'O E-Mail: a noow\es@ k:X('M)Cl\c\. os-g 

I. House local bill policy requires the following steps must occur before a committee or subcommittee of 
the House considers a local bill: 
(1) The members of the local legislative delegation must certify that the purpose of the bill cannot be 
accomplished at the local/eve/; 
(2) The legislative delegation must hold a public hearing in the area affected for the purpose of 
considering the local bill issue(s); and 
(3) The bill must be approved by a majority of the legislative delegation, or a higher threshold if so 
required by the rules of the delegation, at the public hearing or at a subsequent delegation meeting. 
(4) An Economic Impact Statement for local bills must be prepared at the local/eve/ and submitted to 
the Local Government Affairs Subcommittee. Under House policy, no local bill will be considered by a 
committee or subcommittee without an Economic Impact Statement. 

(1) Does the delegation certify the purpose of the bill cannot be accomplished by 
ordinance of a local governing body without the legal need for a referendum? 

YES~ NO[ 1 

(2) Did the delegation conduct a public hearing on the subject of the bill? 

YES '(A NO [ 1 

Date hearing held: Se._~{ ~ ~~ 
Location: ~~Yc\ S/\6 ~{D =·\ Cel'rter 

(3) Was this bill formally approved by a majority of the delegation members? 

YES~ NO[ 1 

(4) Was an Economic Impact Statement prepared at the local level and submitted to the 
Local Government Affairs Subcommittee? 

YES ~ NO [ 1 

II . Article Ill, Section 10 of the State Constitution prohibits passage of any special act unless notice of 
intention to seek enactment of the bill has been published as provided by genera/law (s. 11.02, F. S.J or 
the act is conditioned to take effect only upon approval by referendum vote of the electors in the area 
affected. 

Has this constitutional notice requirement been met? 

Notice published: YES £)4. NO [ 1 DATE OG\()Ce;( Lf1"' ,aO)~ 
Where? S_x\-Sex-m\Q=Q_\ County .}j{Q\f\}C\'{ c\ 

Page 1 of 2 



Referendum in lieu of publication: YES [ ] No_JA{ 
Date of Referendum _____________ _ 

Ill. Article VII, Section 9(b) of the State Constitution prohibits passage of any bill creating a special taxing 
district, or changing the authorized millage rate for an existing special taxing district, unless the bill 
subjects the taxing provision to approval by referendum vote of the electors in the area affected. 

(1) Does the bill create a special district and authorize the district to impose an ad 
valorem tax? 

YES [] 

(2) Does this bill change the authorized ad valorem millage rate for an existing special 
district? 

YES [] 

If the answer to question (1) or (2) is YES, does the bill require voter approval of the ad 
valorem tax prov1sion(s)? 

YES [] NO [ ] 

Page 2 of 2 



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

2016 ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT FORM 

*Read all instructions carefully.* 
House local bill policy requires that no local bill will be considered by a committee or a subcommittee without an 
Economic Impact Statement. This form must be prepared at the LOCAL LEVEL by an individual who is qualified 
to establish fiscal data and impacts and has personal knowledge of the information given (for example. a chief 
financial officer of a particular local government}. Please submit this completed, original form to the Local 
Government Affairs Subcommittee as soon as possible after a bill is filed. Additional pages may be attached as 
necessary. 

BILL#: /Ia I 
SPONSOR(S): Representative George R. Moraitis. Jr. 

RELATING TO: The City of Fort Lauderdale 
[Indicate Area Affected (City, County or Special District) and Subject] 

I. REVENUES: 

These figures are new revenues that would not exist but for the passage of the bill. 
The term "revenue" contemplates, but is not limited to , taxes , fees and special assessments. 
For example, license plate fees may be a revenue source. If the bill will add or remove 
property or individuals from the tax base, include this information as well. 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 

Revenue decrease due to bill: $ __ _ $ __ _ 

Revenue increase due to bill : $ 500 

II. COST: 

Include all costs, both direct and indirect, including start-up costs. If the bill repeals the 
existence of a certain entity, state the related costs, such as satisfying liabilities and 
distributing assets. 

Expenditures for Implementation, Administration and Enforcement: 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 

$-=..0 __ _ 

Please include explanations and calculations regarding how each dollar figure was 
determined in reaching total cost. 

Verbal warnings would be issued for an initial time frame if this bill passes. City staff 
would make boaters aware of the violations. City staff estimate that this would be a 
very low revenue generating infraction. The estimate is based upon the issuance of 
ten first offense violations at $50 per citation. 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 1 of 4 



Ill. FUNDING SOURCE(S): 

State the specific sources from which funding will be received, for example, license plate 
fees, state funds, borrowed funds, or special assessments. 

If certain funding changes are anticipated to occur beyond the following two fiscal years, 
explain the change and at what rate taxes, fees or assessments will be collected in those 
years. 

Local: Citation Revenue 

State: 

Federal: 

IV. ECONOMIC IMPACT: 

Potential Advantages: 

FY 16-17 

$ 500 

$ __ _ 

$ __ _ 

FY 17-18 

$ 500 

$ __ _ 

$ __ _ 

Include all possible outcomes linked to the bill, such as increased efficiencies, and 
positive or negative changes to tax revenue. If an act is being repealed or an entity 
dissolved, include the increased or decreased efficiencies caused thereby. 

Include specific figures for anticipated job growth. 

1. Advantages to Individuals: 

Residents in the area have complained about vessels anchoring in these areas 
being eyesores, reducing the size of the watersport zones (safety), excessive 
noise, and other such issues. These complaints would be reduced. 

2. Advantages to Businesses: 

This bill may encourage ancorign vessels to use local marinas instead of 
anchoring free of charge in undesignated areas. 

3. Advantages to Government: 

Reduction in fire and medical emergency calls to offshore vessels via the fire 
boat (approximately 10 per year currently). Reduction in public safety incidences 
involving anchored vessels. 

Potential Disadvantages: 

Include all possible outcomes linked to the bill, such as inefficiencies, 
shortages, or market changes anticipated. 

Include reduced business opportunities, such as reduced access to capital or 
training. 

State any decreases in tax revenue as a result of the bill. 

1. Disadvantages to Individuals: Limits the availability of free anchoring areas. 
Economic Impact Statement 

PAGE 2 of4 



2. Disadvantages to Businesses: 

3. Disadvantages to Government: 

There are no known disadvantages to 
businesses 

There are no known disadvantages to 
government 

V. DESCRIBE THE POTENTIAL IMPACT OF THE BILL ON PRESENT GOVERNMENTAL 
SERVICES: 

The City of Fort Lauderdale's Police Department already patrols this area and responds 
to complaints so there is no anticipated cost to the City of enforcing this bill. This bill 
would allow police officers to respond to our neighbors' concerns and complaints. 

VI. SPECIFIC DATA USED IN REACHING ESTIMATES: 
Include the type(s) and source(s) of data used, percentages, dollar figures, 
all assumptions made, history of the industry/issue affected by the bill, and 
any audits. 
Revenue was assumed at 10 first offense violation citations at $50 per citation . 
However, it is difficult to estimate the number of vessels that would not comply after 
a written warning. 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 3 of4 



VII . CERTIFICATION BY PREPARER 

I hereby certify I am qualified to establish fiscal data and impacts and have personal 
knowledge of the information given . I have reviewed all available financial information 
applicable to the substance of the above-stated local bill and confirm the foregoing 
Economic Impact Statement is a true and accurate estimate of the economic impact of 
the bill. 

PREPARED BY: 
[Must be signed by Preparer] 

Print preparer's name: 
Lee R. Feldman, ICMA-CM 

Date 

TITLE (such as Executive Director, Actuary, Chief Accountant, or Budget Director) : 

REPRESENTING: 

PHONE: 

E-MAIL ADDRESS : 

City Manager 

City of Fort Lauderdale 

954-828-5894 

lfeldman@fortlauderdale.gov 

Economic Impact Statement 
PAGE 4 of 4 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB1121 2016 

1 A bill to be entitled 

2 An act relating to the City of Fort Lauderdale, 

3 Broward County; providing definitions; designating a 

4 watersports activity area in the city and providing 

5 boundaries; prohibiting the anchorage of vessels in 

6 des i gnated watersports activity areas; providing that 

7 such offense is a noncriminal infraction; establishing 

8 civi l penalties for such offenses; authorizing the 

9 City of Fort Lauderdale to enforce this act; providing 

10 an effective date. 

11 

12 WHEREAS, section 327.46 , Florida Statutes, authorizes the 

13 creation of a boating-restricted area for any purpose necessary 

14 to protect the safety of the pub lic if such restrictions are 

15 based on vessel traffic congestion or o ther navigational 

16 hazards, and 

17 WHEREAS, a boating-restricted area may include vessel -

18 exclusion zones if t he area is reserved for a particular 

19 activity and user group separation must be imposed for the 

20 p r otection and safety of those partic ipating in such activity, 

21 and 

22 WHEREAS, the City of Fort Lauderdale, pursuant to section 

23 327.46 , Florida Statutes , has created a watersports activity 

24 area within a limited area in Middle River , bounded on the south 

25 by the intersection of Middle River and the Intracoastal 

Page 1 of 6 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1121-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 1121 2016 

26 Waterway and bounded on the north by N.E. 21st Court, all within 

27 the corporate limits of the City of Fort Lauderdale, and 

28 WHEREAS, within this watersports activity area, vessels not 

29 exceeding 21 feet in length with a single engine may engage in 

30 watersports activities involving the towing of persons on a pair 

31 of waterskis, slalom waterski, inner-tube, inflated tube, knee-

32 board, wake-board, or similar devices designed and intended to 

33 be towed behind a vessel, and 

34 WHEREAS, the combination of congested vessel traffic and a 

35 pattern of slow speed/minimum wake and idle speed/no wake zones 

36 through the City of Fort Lauderdale means very few areas are 

37 suitable for watersports activities, leaving the restricted area 

38 of Middle River as one of the only remaining areas of the c ity 

39 where watersports activities are appropriate, and 

40 WHEREAS, chapter 327 , Fl or ida Statutes, provides that 

41 activ i t ies that will impede or disturb navigat ion or create a 

42 safety hazard are prohibited, and 

43 WHEREAS, the congregation of anchored vessels within the 

44 watersports activity area in Middle River impedes and disturbs 

45 the navigational freedoms of , and creates a safety hazard f or , 

46 vessels lawfully engaged in watersports activities in such area, 

47 and 

48 WHEREAS, for the safety of the public, anchoring ve ssels in 

49 this boating-restricted area should be prohibited, and 

50 WHEREAS, section 327 .44 (2) , Florida Statutes, provides that 

51 "No person shall anchor, operate, or pe rmit to be anchored, 

Page 2 of 6 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1121-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 1121 2016 

52 except in case of emergency , or operated a vessel or carry on 

53 any prohibited activity in a manner which shall unreasonably or 

54 unnecessarily constitute a navigational hazard o r interfere with 

55 ano ther vessel. Anchoring under bridges or in or adjacent to 

56 heavily traveled channels shall constitute interference if 

57 unreasonable under the prevailing circumstances ," and 

58 WHEREAS , the City of Fort Lauderdale is committed to 

5 9 creating a safe environment in Middle River t o encourage 

60 watersports activities and to preserve the river ' s rich history 

61 of being a watersports activity destination , NOW, THEREFORE , 

62 

63 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida : 

64 

65 Section 1 . As used in this act , the term : 

6 6 (1) " Idle speed/no wake zone " means a boating- restricted 

67 area established to protect the safety of the public. In an idle 

68 speed/no wake zone , a vessel is prohibited from proceeding at a 

69 speed greater than the mi nimum speed necessary to maintain 

70 steerageway . 

71 (2) " S l ow speed/minimum wake zone " means a boating -

72 restricted area established to protect the safety of the public. 

7 3 In a slow speed/minimum wake zone , a vessel must be fully off 

74 plane and completely settled into the water and may not proceed 

75 at a speed greater than the speed that is reasonable and prudent 

76 to avo i d the creation of excessive wake or other hazardous 

77 conditions under the existing cir c umstances . A vessel that is : 

Page 3 of 6 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1121-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

78 

79 

80 

81 

82 

83 

84 

85 

86 

87 

88 

89 

90 

91 

92 

93 

94 

95 

96 

97 

98 

99 

1 00 

101 

102 

103 

HB 1121 

(a) Operat ing on a plane is not proceeding at slow 

speed/minimum wake . 

(b) In the process of coming off plane and settling into 

the water or coming up onto plane is not proceeding at slow 

speed/minimum wake. 

(c) Operating at a speed that creates a wake which 

unreasonably or unnecessarily endangers other vessels is not 

proceeding at slow speed/minimum wake. 

2016 

(d) Completely off plane and which has fully settled into 

the wate r and is proceeding without wake or with minimum wake is 

proceeding at slow speed/minimum wake. 

( 3) "Waterski " means a single or pair of sk i s used in 

planing over water whil e being towed by a vessel. 

( 4) "Waterskiing" means the recrea tiona l act ivity of 

planing or jumping on waterskis while being towed by a vessel . 

The term includes planing or jumping while upon an inner-tube, 

inflated tube, knee board , wake board , or upon a similar dev i ce 

designed and intended for being towed behind a vessel and upon 

which a person or persons may be towed, all while being towed 

behind a vessel . 

( 5) "Water sports activity a rea" means a boating-restricted 

area in which activities involving vessels , not exceeding 21 

feet in l ength, as set forth on the State of Florida vessel 

registration, and powered by a single eng ine on l y, where such 

vesse ls are engaged in the towing of a person or persons , on a 

pair of waterski s, slalom waterski , inner-tube, inflated tube , 

Page 4 of 6 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1121-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 1121 2016 

104 knee - board, wake boa rd, or upon a similar device designed and 

105 intended to be towed behind a vessel and upon which a person or 

106 persons may be towed. A vessel engaged in watersports activities 

107 may not simultaneously tow more than two sets of waterskis , 

108 inner- tubes , or similar devices as set forth above. Vessels 

109 engaged in watersports activities shall proceed at a speed and 

110 cou rse cons i stent wi th the safety of the person or persons being 

11 1 towed, but unde r no circumstances may the vessel proceed at a 

11 2 speed greater than 35 miles per hour . To enhance the safety of 

11 3 the vesse l s and persons engaged in watersports activities , as 

114 well as t h e safety o f all vessels and persons withi n a 

115 watersports activity designated area as provided in this act, 

116 a l l vessels not lawfully engaged i n watersports activities shall 

117 proceed in accorda nce with idle speed/no wake zone or slow 

118 speed/minimum wake zone l i mitations wi thi n the applicable 

119 boat i ng restricted area . 

120 Section 2 . The f o llowing area has been designated, 

121 pursuant to s. 327 . 46( 1 ) (b) and (c) , Florida Statutes, as a 

122 watersports activity are a in the City of Fort Laude rdale in 

123 which si ngle - eng i ne vessels , not exceeding 21 feet , as set forth 

124 on the State of Florida vesse l registrati on , may engage in 

125 watersports activit i es , and all othe r vessels not lawfully 

126 engaged in waterspor ts activities must operate in according with 

127 the idle speed/no wa ke zone or slow speed/minimum wake zone 

128 limitations within the applicable boating- restricted area: the 

129 area of Midd l e River bounded on the North by N.E. 21st Court and 

Page 5 of 6 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1121-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 1121 2016 

130 bounded on the South by the intersection of Middle River and the 

131 Intracoastal Waterway, except those areas designated idle 

132 speed/no wake zones. 

133 Section 3 . An owner, or one who operates, as defined in s. 

134 327 . 02(30) and (31), Florida Statutes, a vessel, as defined in 

135 s. 327.02(43) , Florida Statutes, may not anchor within the 

136 watersports activity area defined in section 2 designated by the 

137 City of Fort Lauderdale pursuant to s. 327 .4 6(1) (b) and (c), 

138 Florida Statutes . 

139 Section 4. A person cited for a violation of this act 

140 commits a noncriminal civil infraction pursuant to s. 162.21, 

141 Florida Statutes , punishable by payment of a civil penalty of: 

142 ( 1 ) Fifty dollars for a first offense. 

143 (2) One hundred dollars for a second offense. 

144 (3) Two hundred fifty dollars for a third or subsequent 

14 5 offense . 

146 Section 5. The City of Fort Lauderdale is authorized to 

147 enforce this act upon adoption of an ordinance making a 

148 violation of section 3 a civil infraction, enforceable by a 

149 special magistrate under City of Fort Lauderdale Code Chapter 

150 11, " Code Enforcement," Article IV, "Citation Violation Not ice 

151 Procedures. " The authority granted to the City of Fort 

152 Lauderdale under this act shall be cumulative to entities 

153 currently authorized to enforce this act . 

154 Section 6 . This act shall take effect upon becoming a law. 

Page 6 of 6 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1121-00 




